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Corporate Information
NGIE-¢

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu
Mr. Ho Yin Sang
(appointed on 11 January 2007)
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie
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Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Ming Fun, Paul

Mr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher
(appointed on 1 July 2007)
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Mr. Henry Tan

COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED
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Mr. Lo Ka Leong
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Bank of America, N.A.

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
China Construction Bank

Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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Mallesons Stephen Jaques

REGISTERED OFFICE
Ground Floor, Caledonian House
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George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

British West Indies

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

5th Floor, Block K

Valiant Industrial Centre

2-12 Au Pui Wan Street

Fo Tan

Shatin

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
The Harbour Trust Co. Ltd.

3rd Floor
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Grand Cayman Islands

British West Indies
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BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Financial Highlights
B REE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

BE-—ZZBtF BE-ZTRF
+-A=+—HLtFEE +-A=+—HILFE
HK$ Million BE3& T HK$ Million BE BT

Revenue e 20,025 16,773
Profit Attributable to Equity KARIREEFEEA
Holders of the Company FE(5 % F 2,619" 2,187
Equity Attributable to Equity RARERFEEA
Holders of the Company FEfh R 18,291 15,969
Basic Earnings Per Share (HK$) FIREARENGETT) 3.139¢ 2.756**
Pre-tax Profit Margin [ T BT 22 B S 1 R 16.3%"* 16.0%**4
Current Ratio EN L & 1.89 2.90
Return on Equity Attributable to NN B REEIEEE A
Equity Holders of the Company JE {5 He 2 [0 R 3R 15.3%" 22.6%**
Revenue Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
LR AR E ARG R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
AEAT AEBT
21,000 p-------me i 5 2,700 [-----c-eeeeeme e eeeeeeeeeeneeeeeaae o D604
19,500 M-
18,000 2,400
16,500 2,100
15,000
13,500 1,800
12,000 1,500
10,500 ’

9,000 1,200
7,500 900
6,000 | |
4,436
;’ggg ””””””””””””””””” 3403 g B ] 600
1’500 '”"””’”"”;;g’;7;1’,5’552’416’2)4% 1 0B 300 | o
? Fisg~ 2ou 410 513 - 734- 599 90~ 1 L L I N 1 s 62 s (02 11
PEEETTT 1 1 02 GGG inimig!
1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 \2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 '\ 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
ZTTZFMAZE+= A" April-Dec 2002 ZZT-FNAZE+ =AY April-Dec 2002”7
Note: Changed financial year end to December from March 2002 onwards WiF: BZTTF=AR VRFEFEASRATZA
*  Excluding the gain from the spin off of copper foil business of HK$178.4 million * NEESIFIAERER S 2178,400,000/8 T2 Was
o Annualized 0 RFEEEHE
** Excluding the gain from the spin off of laminate business of HK$4.8 billion and discount = REIES R R E IR E K FT1S 2.4,800,000,00058 7T 2 Y as &
on acquisition of HK$49.7 million I BE477%49,700,0007% 7T
A Excluding share results of associates and jointly controlled entities A TEIEREEEE DR R RS E IS 4
#  Excluding: #  TEE:
(1) gain on fair value change of conversion and redemption option (1) ATRBREREEZEEETETIAZ ATEZESH W
derivative of HK$182.4 million —EBNAFZEE+EHET
(2) loss on disposal and deemed disposal of interest in an associate of HK$23.7 (2 HERBHELE—MBERAREZZEBEBE-_T=86t1+
million Y
(3) discount on acquisition of HK$1.0 million (3 WEIZE—E8BT
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Having rallied as a team against a challenging business
environment, | am pleased to report that Kingboard Chemical
Holdings Limited (the “Group”) concluded another landmark
performance for the financial year ended 31 December 2007
with both record-breaking revenue and profit. During the year,
we have further strengthened the growth platform across our
core businesses and scaled up our production capabilities. Our
relentless efforts resulted in encouraging payoffs. On the back
of strong revenue of HK$20.0 billion, the Group posted a new
record of HK$2,618.7 million net profit, representing an increase
of 20% over 2006 (excluding one-off exceptional items* in both
financial years). The strong results are a solid testament to our
persistent focus on sustainable growth following the successful
implementation of our business model of vertical integration and
diverse revenue sources.

Leveraging on the premier position in the market place, our
laminate and printed circuit board (“PCB”) divisions continued
to advance market share and make positive contributions to
the Group. In addition, the Group’s chemical division posted
impressive growth of 150% in earnings contribution over 2006
after accounting for the share of profits of our Hainan methanol
joint venture. This clearly demonstrates that our chemical
investments have started to bring in excellent returns. We have
unwavering confidence in the Group’s ability to shape the future
as we have all the right ingredients in place to drive long-term
sustainable growth and create ever increasing value for our
shareholders.

The new glass yarn plant in Qingyuan,
Guangdong province further enhances our
vertical integration development.
URERBBRZTRBYORK - £— TR
FHEEEERAER -

Kingboard
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS HERE

® Revenue recorded strong growth of 19% to exceed
HK$20.0 billion

e Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was up 20% to a record high of HK$2.6 billion *

e Return on equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company stayed healthy at 15.3%*

e Proposed final dividend per share up 84% to HK70

BEBEEFI10%2BHER - R
“HEST

AR REDFFE ARIGRNIER20%E
—HRER TS S

RAREREE ABGEREEEREER
FE15.3%H i B K S

EFH KBRS I8 N84% =+

cents oyl
* Excluding: FeE -
2007 - (1)  gain on fair value change of conversion and redemption option ZETEF — (1) AJRREEREEETAETIAZAF
derivative of HK$182.4 million EEPUE—ENTERT+EET
(2)  loss on disposal and deemed disposal of partial interest in an (2 HERBELE —HBERARBHE
associate of HK$23.7 million HZEEZT=at+8%ET
discount on acquisition of HK$1.0 million (3) WEEHE—AEET
2006 - (1) gain on disposal and deemed disposal of interest in a ZTERF - (1) HERGELERMHBRR#EREZ
subsidiary of HK$4.8 billion Wasr+ /g T
(2)  discount on acquisition of HK$49.7 million (2 WEIrENTFAEETEET

Revenue Breakdown by Product & %5854

5%

FY 2007
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Chairman’s Statement FER %

Performance

To capitalize on the thriving demand for our quality laminate
products, the Group continued to expand the laminate division
in both southern and eastern parts of China in 2007. Being the
largest global laminate supplier backed by the reliable support
from upstream material production capabilities, the Group was
able to make further penetration into both existing and new
customers. As a result, revenue (including inter-segment sales)
for the laminate division recorded a 25% growth to HK$10,276.2
million. Earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”) was up 18% to
HK$2,126.8 million over the previous year. Volume sales were
up around 13% with the average monthly shipment reaching 8.3
million sg. meters. Revenue growth outpaced volume growth
largely due to faster sales growth of glass epoxy laminates
which commanded higher selling price than paper laminates.
The capacity expansion in the new glass epoxy laminate plant
in Jiangyin, Jiangsu province on top of our existing foothold
at Kunshan, Jiangsu province has reinforced our presence in
eastern China which accommodates an enlarging electronic

industry cluster.
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

With regard to PCB division, we encountered some softening
demand in the computer and peripherals segment in the first half
of 2007. However, the computer market rebounded sharply in
the second half. Together with steadily growing automotive and
consumer electronic sectors, revenue for PCB division was up
14% to HK$7,601.2 million. However, EBIT slipped by 16% to
HK$578.6 million from the previous financial year owing to (a)
high volatility in raw materials prices; (b) under performance of
Kaiping plants of Elec & Eltek; and (c) soft pricing environment in

the first half of the year.

Elec & Eltek and Techwise actively participate in trade
exhibitions.
EKHZERNERR2ERES -

ENRIREEIRARPI T - BN ABITEFTKE-Z
TLEF LI FRAME - A - BEERTER
THFHABRYRE  MEEFBERNITELT
EFRIER - AR BEARARFIHO AR I114% =
tHAEZ-—E-TEET - AW - RIKRFER
BMEZBHAAREELTN\BATEETL &L
MIRFE TIF16% - BHF T2 BN @@FEHER A
IEKE  (OKA L ENRTBEEFRZRERD
B8 AR(ERBB LFFRE -

08 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

“ET LR B IEE



Kingboard

Chairman’s Statement EEHE

Our new natural gas based methanol plant in Chongging adds
positive growth momentum to the Group.

URNEEZRARFEMAEES RS BN -

The chemical division continued to reap the benefits from
a series of investments made in the past few years and
achieved remarkable results in 2007. Revenue soared 35% to
approximately HK$5,425.7 milion and EBIT increased by 92%
to HK$658.1 million in 2007. The coke/methanol plant in Hebei
province excelled in its performance with EBIT surging 102%
against 2006 because the ongoing coke industry consolidation
in China has created a favourable operating environment for
suppliers. Meanwhile, our new natural gas based methanol plant
in Chongging which commenced production in September 2007
contributed positively to the Group after some initial teething
problems. The caustic soda plant in Hengyang, Hunan province
also saw substantial earnings growth as a result of robust
domestic demand. The new phenol/acetone plant in Huizhou,
Guangdong province which started production in December

Kingboard

E-FELE REALTHIIEEA
EHEHBELTHRE  REEREAHE
B CFTLFEEERLFEAGY  E

ATOEZFREETEET - RNKRFEKRBIE
2R FFERRY%  EAERTNE—T8HS
T o AR BIERITEREETES - AHEERR
®T —ERBFIEEIRE - LS R PR
Em S5 AESE - RINBRFERMEZBFER=-
Tﬁﬁiﬁ%tﬂﬂm%°ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%§%2
RARFEBE-_ZTEFNARE ERRES
HETERE  DRAKETIIEEER - HRER
TIHHE AT - B L SRR I RIS T B A
BFIER - BREABMNIE X RRERE R =
ETHFFARE - ZMAAEEERACIEH
PIEIE S — g REE - EEET G EBRGE

2007 created another growth dimension to our expanding RARESHENSEHER  BRE_TTLEFF
chemical division. Our joint venture with China BlueChemical Fﬂ%iﬁ'l%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁ =HEMTE - BINARSE
Limited yielded excellent return to our investment in spite of E/IREHR T EZERMEH -

temporary disruption of natural gas supply in late 2007.
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

Kingboard expands its chemical division to meet the thriving
demand of chemical products in China.

BEERERC TP e PETMIZEE TERNFTR -

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Qur financial and liquidity position continued to be strong. As at
31 December 2007, net current assets and current ratio of the
Group were approximately HK$6,377.6 million (31 December
2006 — HK$9,467.1 million) and 1.89 (31 December 2006 — 2.90)
respectively.

The net working capital cycle shortened from 96 days as at 31
December 2006 to 84 days as at 31 December 2007 on the
following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, reduced to
64 days (31 December 2006 — 73 days)

- Trade receivables, in terms of debtors turnover days,
improved to 90 days (31 December 2006 — 97 days)

- Trade and bills payables, in terms of creditors turnover
days, decreased to 70 days (31 December 2006 — 74
days)

S &R MR
EENMBERAFERFER SFER=-Z
T+FFT A=+ RAZARBEEFENA
AT =ZBEFEEATEBL(ZEEAF+=
A=+—B: AtHEATEE—TEBT)
B ERAA1.8(ZEEAF+_A=+—8:
2.90) °

FEEELABNm-TTAE+-A=1—8
WA ABREE-"TELF+-A=+—BH
AT - BHIT

- FEABMEREATHA(ZFTTARF
tZA=+—H:t+=A)

- B HRWHENBERREENATR(ZR
BERF+ZA=+—H: Atth)

- B REHRMRRNAEBHBEEELT
A(C2EAF+-A=+—8: ttm
H)
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

In 2007, the Group invested HK$4 billion in new production
capacity and made deposits of HK$993.2 million for properties,
plant and equipment. The Group also invested HK$1,084.5
million in investment properties so as to generate an inflow of
steady and recurrent rental income. Furthermore, during the
year, we paid the final and special dividend for the year ended
31 December 2006 of HK$832.8 million in May 2007 and interim
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of HK$251.4
million in September 2007 respectively. As a result, the Group’s
net gearing ratio (ratio of interest bearing borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents to total equity) was approximately 17%.
Net gearing ratio of the retained group (excluding Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited and Elec & Eltek International
Company Limited) was approximately 7%.

The proportion of bank borrowings between short term and long
term stood at 24%: 76% (31 December 2006: 24%: 76%). In
December 2007, we successfully arranged a HK$4 billion 5-year
term loan of which HK$500 million was drawn as of 31 December
2007. Together with other bank facilities around HK$1 billion plus
cash on hand of HK$3.5 billion, the Group is in a strong financial
position to invest in future earnings growth. Only 7% of the bank
borrowings was denominated in Renminbi and the rest in Hong
Kong or US dollars.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management
policy. Subsequent to the 2007 year end, we have entered
interest rate swap agreements of notional amount of HK$3.5
billion with reputable financial institutions in order to secure lower
interest rates for part of our bank borrowings in the next few
years. There was no material foreign exchange exposure to the
Group during the year under review. The Group’s revenue, mostly
dominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars,
was fairly matched with the currency requirement of operating
expenses.

Kingboard

R-ZZEZLF  EERETHTEETREARS

EROEBZER  YAME  BEEREXN
TABAT=ZB-_TEETIZ - I KEK
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BEHE_ZTAHF+_A=+—HIEFE2HEK
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hERHBRReRREEERERL MNEEERE
TBEALL )N R17% - REBEB(TRIEREEE
RIERAR AR RENZEEBARAR) 2FE
BRI RT%

RHRREBAEERN LA #ER24%  76% (ZFZR
F+ZA=+—H8 :24% : 76%) - RER-_TZ
tEFZARYMETT —ENHEETZAFHE
o EREAREBTERNFEARR - i1 EEAR
AZBMEBENTESL  UERFERE=THE
B SEAEBRARHNVBEAR  BERENE
ﬁﬂi%ZﬁﬂiE RITEETETRAAREE
C HBMA BB TR ETERK

SEEBERDNEFENMBER R_FTLFF
K& SEEARTE Z%mﬂff%%m RIHEE A
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had a global workforce
of over 47,200 (31 December 2006: 42,900). The increase
in headcount was in line with our ongoing expansion plan. In
addition to offering competitive salary package, the Group grants
share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible employees
based on our overall financial achievement and their individual
performance.

ANER

REZZZHF+ZR=1+—B  SEEZHRALE
AEI#47200A(ZETRF+_A=+—0:
42,900A) - BETABEMEERE S KB EBE
Rz - KER T REEBRF OB -
MERBE QR ZEFBOR R MERI B THRE - &
MEBEERIERER e TEERET -

The caustic soda plant in Hengyang, Hunan province provides new impetus to our
chemical business.

(L FOH R G5 SRR A R B T RSB RAENE N -

PROSPECTS

2008 marks the 20th anniversary of the Group and 15th
anniversary of its listing in Hong Kong. With an excellent
growth track record, we are confident that the competitive
advantages gained in the past will enable the Group to seize
new opportunities and continue to invest for sustainable growth.
Although the recent slow down in the US economy has posted a
challenge to the entire manufacturing sector, we believe, in light
of our financial strength and well balanced business portfolio, the
Group will continue to create shareholders value and, similar to
other downturns in the past, make further advancement against
our competitors.

il

R

TEE N\ FIEFEREC TEBK Y — HEFME
AEXRLTMTHASF - ERERE  REERBEESR
HWAER AT RENATERFES - ATMERR
EBNFRBRIFERE NG RARZBIEER -
BE ML EIL RN AR ERET TR
& BEEERE  GRTHRITENRKEA—
B SEBRERINI SRR RGN EKES
B EERRRAEEENE—PHEREFETF -
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

Demand for laminates at the start of 2008 experienced brief
softness due to seasonal effect of Chinese Lunar New Year.
The power shortage and logistic bottleneck caused by the
snowstorm in eastern and southern China provinces had caused
temporary disruption to certain production facilities located in the
north of Guangdong province for about one week. The affected
operations have since then resumed full production. In view of
fast growing PCB demand in emerging markets including China,
we will continue capacity expansion at our laminate plants in
Fogang, Guangdong province and Jiangyin, Jiangsu province to
bring total laminate monthly production capacity to 11.3 million
sq. meters, up 9.3% by the end of 2008. To capitalize on our
broad customer base with diverse product requirements, the

Group is continuously developing high end laminate products
including thin and high performance laminates.

XEBHENZHNTE T\ FYNERE
RFREE DR - NIMERFERRATIGER
TENHEERIY RS - SREEREL
wE O MEBIEREFEA—ER  BXFEN
FERECARRELTEF - ENFTERMSEE
PR ERERF RE R - SEERERE M
FKI#RE TRNBE BEERETER  2-FTN
FFE - BRERzcSARERSE-TBE=1
BYHK BEFEAI3% - BRTEAEEEZ
MEFER - YA METRERNTR - KEH
BERERESRERNERER  BEERESHN
BEBRMEIR -

Our chairman, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, and
managing director, Mr. Chan Wing Kwan, and
the management team are fully committed to
the future growth of the Group.
RARERRBEEKEE BFHLBIRAKEE
EREBE-EEIRSDEERRER -
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Chairman’s Statement EEHE

For the PCB division, the Group, similar to the laminate division,
began the year with softening orders. Nevertheless, the
rationalization efforts undertaken last year by Elec & Eltek which
accounted for about 57% of total PCB division’s turnover have
laid down a concrete foundation for performance improvement.
Moreover, our major expansion focus in the current year will be
two high density interconnect (“HDI”) PCB plants currently under
construction in Kaiping, Guangdong province and Kunshan,
Jiangsu province. Both plants are expected to be fully operational
by year end of 2008. These new production facilities will address
our untapped segments and hence add new momentum to the
growth for the PCB division in due course.

Chemical division continues to be the strongest growth driver
for the Group in coming years. The methanol demand in China
is expected to grow robustly in the near future as the central
government is interested in clean and alternative fuel to reduce
pollution and reliance on crude oil import. The Group gains
valuable know-how and experience from our successful coke/
methanol project in Hebei. We will complete three more coal
based methanol projects with total new monthly capacity of
34,800 tonnes during 2008, namely, phase two of the coke/
methanol plant in Hebei province and the two joint venture coke
gas based methanol projects in Shanxi province. Furthermore,
in the first half of 2008, phase three of the caustic soda plant in
Hengyang, Hunan province will commence operation, providing
8,300 tonnes new monthly capacity each of caustic soda and
polyvinylchloride (“PVC”).

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 1 February
2008, the Group sold its entire holding of 740,518,325 shares
in G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (* G-Prop ”), a company listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange, to Mass Rise Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese Estates Holdings
Limited at a consideration of HK$120,777,000. As a result, the
Group no longer holds any shares in G-Prop.

ENRIARBEARBRP 7 - SRR BPIBERARE -
REFINFTERRBEARE - BEWUL - HKE
ENRIARBE IR ABSHE 57 UK N 2 =N B ETTEL
G RUCERBIRIT MBEMER o tLih - 88
Mo FEEXBRREMD/UNERERT RTEH
ERINEAERZNME DT E B EERIARFERR
BETMEFTMES FFEEERE - ERANLE
R HE MFFRENFMS - WRRREFHR
AR BNIBRTAFE S -

L THFIRARREARRERYIERE S - hE
HHRENFRARBEBRL LI TEARTPR
BRABRREFRAIERER - WD EHIREN
AR AR O ROM B KRR - B IR E YR TI F
REVAILE ER FEERIEE T ERE &N EER
MR 2B - BFIR TR N\ FREEz={E
AR IR BETENTFEEIRR - BNAbE IR, FEER
FH - ARIEILTRE RO M E A R K RS R
FEALER  BRIMNMENFESAERL=S
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Chairman’s Statement FER %

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
banks, the management and employees for their unreserved
support to the Group in the past year.

CHEUNG Kwok Wing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2008
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

EERSREEBAEZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wing, aged 52, is the chairman and a co-
founder of the Group, the chairman of Kingboard Copper Foil
Holdings Limited (“KCFH”) as well as Elec & Eltek International
Company Limited (“EEIC”), both of which are subsidiaries of the
Company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX”). Mr. Cheung is the brother of Ms. Cheung Wai
Lin, Stephanie, the cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the
brother-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.
Mr. Cheung had over 13 years’ experience in the sales and
distribution of electronic components including laminates prior
to the establishment of the Group. Mr. Cheung is responsible for
the overall strategic planning of the Group and sets the general
direction and goals for the Group. Mr. Cheung won the Young
Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 1993, which was organized by
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and was described as
“far-sighted, enterprising, and having insight in the business”. Mr.
Cheung was the winner of the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award, accredited with the Owner-Operator Award in 2006.

Mr. CHAN Wing Kwan, aged 62, is the managing director and
a co-founder of the Group, the managing director of KCFH and
a non-executive director of EEIC. Mr. Chan acquired a degree
of Doctor of Business Science from Pacific Western University
L.A.. Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Chan had over
22 years’ experience in the sales and distribution of electronic
components, industrial chemicals and printed circuit boards. Mr.
Chan is responsible for the overall implementation of the strategic
plans and goals of the Group.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwong Kwan, aged 43, is the cousin of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He
joined the Group in 1988 and has been working in the PCB
industry since 1984 with particularly extensive experience
in marketing components and materials required for PCB
production. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the Group’s chemical
business operations in the southern region of China.

Mr. CHANG Wing Yiu, aged 41, is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He
joined the Group in 1989 and has over 18 years’ experience in
laminates production. Mr. Chang graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in marine electronics.
He is responsible for the Group’s methanol plant in Chongging
and phenol/acetone plant in Huizhou, Guangdong province. He is
also a non-executive director of EEIC.

BITES
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies EE & aREEAEZ

Mr. MOK Cham Hung, Chadwick, aged 43, joined the Group in
2000 and is responsible for the Group’s financial management.
Prior to this he worked in the financial services industry for
over 11 years. Mr. Mok is an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds an MA in Electrical and Information Engineering from
the University of Cambridge and an MBA with distinction from
Imperial College, the University of London. He is also an executive
director of EEIC and responsible for the strategic planning of
EEIC.

Mr. HO Yin Sang, aged 53, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung
Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. He joined
the Group in 1989 and is responsible for the Group’s chemical
business operations in Hebei and Shanxi province. He is also a
non-executive director of KCFH.

Ms. CHEUNG Wai Lin, Stephanie, aged 37, is the sister of
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing. She joined the Group in 2002 and
is responsible for the Group’s logistic, procurement and
purchasing function. Prior to joining the Group, she worked as an
administration assistant manager in a listed company for about 5
years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. CHENG Ming Fun, Paul, aged 71, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the company in 2003. He
was formerly a member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council
and Chairman of the Link Management Ltd., Inchcape Pacific
Ltd., N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Ltd., the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce and the American Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong. He currently serves as an independent
non-executive director for several listed companies including
Esprit Holdings Ltd. and is an honorary steward of the Hong
Kong Jockey Club as well as an adjunct professor at the Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology.
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Mr. CHENG Wai Chee, Christopher, aged 59, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director in 2007. He holds
directorships in various listed companies in the last three years.
He is currently the chairman of two listed companies in Hong
Kong, namely US| Holdings Limited and Winsor Properties
Holdings Limited, and also an independent non-executive
director of a number of listed companies in Hong Kong, including
New World China Land Limited, NWS Holdings Limited and
PICC Property and Casualty Company Limited. Mr. Cheng is also
an independent director of DBS Group Holdings Limited which
is listed in Singapore. Mr. Cheng was appointed a Justice of the
Peace in 1985, and awarded an OBE and a Gold Bauhinia Star
in 1992 and 2004 respectively. He is a member of the Exchange
Fund Advisory Committee of the HKSAR Government, a Steward
of the Hong Kong Jockey Club and a member of the Council of
the University of Hong Kong. He is also an independent director
of Temasek Foundation CLG Limited and a non-executive
director of the Securities and Futures Commission.

Mr. TSE Kam Hung, aged 55, has over 30 years of experience
in the field of electronic industry. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.

Mr. Henry TAN, aged 54, is the chief executive officer of Luen
Thai Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tan has over 23 years of experience in apparel and logistics
industries. Mr. Tan is an active leader and contributor to charity
and community programmes. He is the chairman of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited and is the former
chairman of the board of directors of Po Leung Kuk of the
year 2004-2005, an authorised charitable organization in Hong
Kong. He also acts as committee member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in Fujian Province,
the PRC and is a member of Election Committee (Textiles and
Garment Subsector). Mr. Tan obtained his Master’s Degree
in Business Administration in 1980 and Bachelor’s Degree in
Business Administration in 1975 from the University of Guam,
the United States of America. Mr. Tan was also an independent
non-executive director of China Resources Peoples Telephone
Company Limited, a company formerly listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Tan was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEAR

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 34, the Company Secretary, joined ZBR=EE @ 345 AFMWE R—AALLETR
the Group in May 1999. Prior to that, he was an accountant at ~ ANBAAREE o RINBEAREER] - BEEENR—FTE
an international accounting firm. Mr. Lo is a fellow member of & EHEIITERSEE - HASESHMASER
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds &8 @ WisE &P X ABEE BB+ HE7 o
a Bachelor’s Degree in Professional Accountancy from The fHIRBEREAEE ATMETERMEEE o
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the company &4 RS AR SEERIEREE AR ([ EEE
secretarial work and financial management of the Group. Heisa  #t] » "AGIEB74.77% OB AT - Ei&H
non-executive director of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited — MR ER EH) 2 FEITES -

(“KLHL"), a 74.77%-owned subsidiary listed on the main board of

the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of associates, jointly controlled entities and principal subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in notes 22, 25 and 41 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 54.

An interim dividend of HK30 cents per ordinary share was paid to
the shareholders of the Company during the year. The Directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK70 cents
per ordinary share to the Company’s shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 5 May
2008, and the retention of the remaining profit in the Company.

EFEMAREAKEERE_ZFT

+tF+=A
=+ —HUEFEZFRREEXGEMBRE -

EEXE

AARBEEZERAR - HEE AR - XEEHIE
BREEHBARZESDHHREE Hﬁ%%ﬁi‘éw
22~ 25K%41 °

KRR oIK

AEBMZ AFEEEHNES4BLEEREZRA ©
FR - AREBIRAFERE S BR30E
FTARRARIRRE - ESREZANNR_ZTZT/\FHAR

B &5 A2 B R A 2 BRR N R S B A
BATOBA - WRE FERERFIRARLF)

SHARE CAPITAL ;2. 3

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share AR BEEITRARFRZ BBFIBHNGE S
capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the consolidated ~ $RZ&RH{5E34 °

financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF HE - HEXEDO{n

SHARES

During the year, there was no purchases, sale or redemption by R » ARARHEEFAMBARBEEE - HEsk
the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed BERIARQF FHZES -

securities.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the
Group are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 57 and 58.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share
premium and the special surplus account of the Company are
also available for distribution to shareholders provided that the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2007, the sum of the retained profits, the
share premium and the special surplus account of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$5,614 million.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 December 2007, resulting in an increase in fair value of
approximately HK$5,118,000 which has been credited to the
consolidated income statement.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Expenditure of approximately HK$4,004 million was incurred
during the year primarily to expand the production capacity of the
Group. Details of all the changes during the year are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2007 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling HK$11,442,000.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Managing Director)

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu

Mr. Ho Yin Sang
(appointed on 11 January 2007)

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie
(appointed on 11 January 2007)

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Ming Fun, Paul

Mr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher
(appointed on 1 July 2007)

Mr. Henry Tan

Mr. Tse Kam Hung

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wing and Chang Wing Yiu,
being the executive Directors, and Mr. Tse Kam Hung, being an
independent non-executive Director, will retire from directorship
by rotation and will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher was appointed by the board
of Directors as a new independent non-executive Director
with effect from 1 July 2007. In accordance with Article 84 of
the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Cheng Wai Chee,
Christopher will hold directorship only until the annual general
meeting of the Company following his appointment and will
be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Wai Chee,
Christopher will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company and will be eligible for re-election as independent
non-executive Director.

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the
section “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” on
pages 16 to 19.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract which is
not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2007, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as

follows:

Kingboard

EEzkiiEa
RIBBLF+A=+—H EFREEIHE
ATRARR REERAE(E& B ESFRPERF
(85 R R GRD ) EXVED) 2 iy - R
HEFT  HEARBRERE S MHERPI5E352
FFEzERMrCEc EEkER » MRIE LD
BITABFETESFRZNEETACNEARRF
REBMERHMARAT (TR 2 s
BT :

—ETLFFR @RECIERE

Long position RE
@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (a) KRG EREEO.10E T2 ZE R ([R
(“Shares”) %)
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number share capital
of issued of the Company
Shares held W /N
Name of Director Capacity FrfFE 21T BERITIRAZ
EEMA RS &R BMAOBD T
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 3,880,685 0.46
SREIER S BB A
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note 1) Beneficial owner 791,000 0.09
PR SR 5 A (P =E1) EnfEA
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 860,709 0.10
REELE BEREAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner 2,769,174 0.33
EpoK iR S A (FeE2) BB A
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner 1,504,079 0.17
{384 S A (FE3) EnfEA
Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick Beneficial owner 960,000 0.11
KRR E BEREAA
Mr. Cheng Ming Fun, Paul Beneficial owner 120,000 0.01
EERFIE £ BB A
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) EEZRIGER )

Long position (continued) RE(E)
(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company  (a) AL E]FREEO10E T2 EER (R
(“Shares”) (continued) (7))
Notes: ByEE
(1) Out of the 791,000 Shares, 731,000 Shares were held by Mr. ™ 3% 791,000 A% 4 & # - E 5 731,000 A%
Chan Wing Kwan and 60,000 Shares were held by his spouse. 3 T EBRIKER AR AR - M60,0000% %15
Al B -
©) Out of the 2,769,174 Shares, 1,928,974 Shares were held by Mr. @) ME%2,769,174R IR EF - HH1,928,974f%
Chang Wing Yiu and 840,200 Shares were held by his spouse. &7 Ty Sk S E R AFEA - M840,200/%
&5 BB E A BIE -
&) Out of the 1,504,079 Shares, 477,079 Shares were held by Mr. @ TR71,604.079R AR (D& + HeRa77,079R K
Ho Yin Sang and 1,027,000 Shares were held by his spouse. By FARESEAARA -+ 1,027,000
&5 R H AL B354 -
(b)  Share options of the Company b) AR AESEERE

Interest in

underlying Shares

pursuant to
share options
of the Company

Name of Director Capacity NA BB ARE
EEUR G- Sl k=] B TR R
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 210,600
SREIER S BEHEEAA
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan Beneficial owner 2,658,800
PRAER S EmEAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 3,175,800
LIPS e EnEAA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner 5,104,800
fa] e A e A (BT aE) BEHEEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 2,951,800
REESLE EmaA
Note:  Out of the 5,104,800 share options, 3,120,800 share options fsE s M FZ51048000 BEEBREE T - HF
were held by Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 1,984,000 share options were 3,120,80015 I AR AL ERARER - M
held by his spouse. 1,984,00017 8| B HELB#E A ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) EEZRIGER )

Long position (continued) REE)
(c) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (“KLHL Shares”) in  (c) BEEERERER G ([EEEEKR])
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL”) FREIEO. 10870, ZiEk ([ EEEER
&5
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the issued
issued KLHL share capital
Shares held of KLHL
PIRFE 31T HEEEER
Name of Director Capacity pEp] R 23T AN
EEMS ERIE g4 2B
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 934,500 0.038
SREIER S EmlEA
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan (Note 1) Beneficial owner 100,000 0.003
PR ER ST A (P 5ET) BmEAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner 100,000 0.003
Pk R S A (MEE2) BHEEAA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner 540,000 0.01
fa] A S A (BT EE3) EmEAA
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner 804,000 0.02
REELL BmEAA
Notes: BEE
(1) The 100,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Chan (1) BRoK SR 5T 4 2 Bl B 156 7% 100,000% & B TE [
Wing Kwan. R ©
© The 100,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. @ Sk R 5 A 7 B (845 5 7%100,000 82 B 1E 2
Chang Wing Yiu. WAL
(€] The 540,000 KLHL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Ho @) ] A 5 4 2 BRAB 45 B 52540,000 % 728 18 8
Yin Sang. R ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(d) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in the share
capital of Kingboard Laminates Limited, a non wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director

EFMA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing

SREIER S

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan
BRKIRSE A&

Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

REESLLE

Mr. Ho Yin Sang
R L

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu
oA

(e) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of
Elec & Eltek International Company Limited (“EEIC”), a
70.77% owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director

BERAS

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing

SREIER S

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick
REERAE

rd

Kingboard

RAEE)

Capacity
R EE

Beneficial owner
Ema A
Beneficial owner
EnlEEA
Beneficial owner
BEHEEAA
Beneficial owner
Ema A
Beneficial owner

EnEAA

([EEICHR 17 ]) °

Number of
issued EEIC
Shares held

Fr#FE 3 1TEEIC
ghr 24

Capacity

Beneficial owner 60,000
BmEAA
Beneficial owner 74,000
BHEEAA

EFZERAER 2

@  AREHFZEHEHEL

(e) K] BT70.77 %12 2 B E L
EEEEGR NG ([EEIC])RAK R EiHHK

Number of

non-voting deferred

shares held
FriF s =
EIERR (2L B

1,904,400

1,481,200

846,400

529,000

423,200

Approximate
percentage

of the issued

share capital

of EEIC
{HEEICE A TARA
2K A DL

0.03

0.04
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)
Long position (continued)
U] Share options of EEIC

Name of Director

EEHEA

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing

SREIER S

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan

PRAER S

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu

LIPS e

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick
REERAE

Note:  The interests are held by virtue of an aggregate of 3,244,000
share options of EEIC accepted by the Directors on 24 June
2005. The number of share options were subsequently adjusted
pursuant to the 1 for 5 bonus issue effected on 13 October
2005. The relevant Directors are entitled to subscribe for EEIC
Shares at an adjusted subscription price of US$2.033 per EEIC
Share. The share options are exercisable in whole or in part at
the staggered manner within 5 option periods, commencing on
26 November 2006, 26 November 2007, 26 November 2008, 26
November 2009 and 26 March 2010 respectively and all ending
on 24 May 2010.

Kingboard

EFZERAER 2

RAEE)

] EEICZ (BE R 1E

Capacity
s

Beneficial owner
BEHEEAA
Beneficial owner
Ema A
Beneficial owner
BEmEAA
Beneficial owner
BEHEEAA

B

Interest in

underlying

EEIC Shares pursuant

to share options

(Note)

BERBREERT

HERAEEICAR (H #E 2
(Bf&E)

973,200

973,200

973,200

973,200

REERENEEN_TTEAFA=+T
H 5 4& $£3,244,00017 EEICE 5t 8 A i
B BEBRERR  HER-TTAF+
A+=BE— R EEEIT 2 AT
® - AEEFAIREAEREETREEICHK
132.033ZE JUREEEEICH S - BEBRED B
HE-ZEEXRNF+—A=+A  —ZTZLHF
+—A=+XB - ZTENEF+—A=+X
A ZTTNF+—AZ+ R BR=Z—ZF
=R+ RAEZZ—ZTFRA-FTWEAILTR
{EE S A TE AR A D R AT R 2 Eh s H A

#5 -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued)

Long position (continued)

(9 Ordinary shares (“KCFL Shares”) of US$0.10 each in
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited (“KCFL”), a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEMUE ERIE

Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner
fa] 64 S A (BT EE) EmEAA

Note:  The 2,000 KCFL Shares were held by the spouse of Mr. Ho Yin
Sang.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as at 31 December 2007.

ERCRORER 2

RE(&)

@ A al I &% A M E L m]Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited([KCFLJ)#&
HKIET(EO. 105 7T.2 BB ([ KCFLAR (7 ])

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital

issued KCFL of KCFL
Shares held {HEKCFLE 31T
FTRFE 817 IR 2 LAY
KCFLAZ D 21 B Aot

2,000 0.0003

e s (AERASEAE 2 BB HFA 7%2,0008 KCFL ) ©

R EAWEEIN  R_FTLF+_A=1T—8H"
BESEFRREIHEALTNAR B REAEMIE
BORE (& RESF RHEERPIEXVEL) 2 E Rk
0 - AR HESFTREE EAESLER -
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SHARE OPTIONS Echepie

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company, EEIC  Z&AF] * EEICKREEREER B LBt 25
and KLHL are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial  [E&R4rE B FERRMIEEIS o

statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share  TRIFBEA QA BELERERERN 2 EEF) -
options during the year:

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Exercised as at
1.1.2007 during 31.12.2007
R-_BTLF theyear R-TEZ
Category 1: Directors —HA—H Reclassifications 21
18 EF EENGRES BIOH REFRITE r‘ﬁiﬁ@i
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing 1,145,000 - (934,400) 210,600
SREISE S A
Mr. Chan Wing Kwan 3,026,000 - (467,200) 2,558,800
BRAKER S
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan 3,419,000 - (467,200) 2,951,800
REELE
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu 3,643,000 - (467,200) 3,175,800
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) - 3,588,000 (467,200) 3,120,800
A A S A (BT EE)
11,233,000 3,588,000 (2,803,200) 12,017,800
Category 2: Employees 19,989,000 (3,588,000) (2,496,800) 13,904,200
28 BB
Total all categories 31,222,000 - (5,300,000) 25,922,000

FRERRRIAFT

Note:  Mr. Ho Yin Sang was appointed as an executive Director with effect from WsE :  RALAEREAANTES TS +E—A+—
11 January 2007. BBER -

The weighted average closing price of the Shares on the five REEITHEELBEREZHAESSH @ BH 2N
trading days immediately before the date on which the options  #F15UTH{E A33.508 7T ©
were exercised was HK$33.50.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BigpsiE o)
The following table discloses movements in EEIC’s share options TR FREEICE S ERRENE R 2 &
during the year:

Outstanding Outstanding

as at Exercised as at

1.1.2007 during Lapsed 31.12.2007

R_FFLF the year during R-TT+F

Category 1: Directors —HA—H 2R theyear +—HA=+—H

F18H - EBF R ARTTIE RERITRE FANE R AT

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing 973,200 - - 973,200
SREIER S

Mr. Chan Wing Kwan 973,200 - - 973,200
BRoKERSE A

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu 973,200 - - 973,200

Mr. Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick 973,200 - - 973,200
SRR

3,892,800 - - 3,892,800

Category 2: Employees 8,013,600 (780,600) (438,800) 6,794,200

Fof: EE
Total all categories 11,906,400 (780,600) (438,800) 10,687,000

PrERERI AT

During the year ended 31 December 2007, no share option was BZE_ZZ+HF+_A=+—HILLFE ' WERE
granted pursuant to the employees’ share option scheme of  ZEEEHRIE &8 LBRE B BB B

KLHL. 1 o
ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES MERR R

Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time during Bk EXARBEFTIFE LRSS - AR RIS EAEIM
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to B 2R FIRFAEM SRS BT ER 2 - B
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits — EEFAIFEB AR BISIEMEMIEA B LS 2 kD
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the = FfEFME °

Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2007, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain Directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Long position
Ordiinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Kingboard

ERCEXSHiER

AR R EATAIM B A R ER SLERNFE R
SFAEABEDALERM AR R EEERLHEE
BAEEARBZZERAK -

EBRE

RIEA D RIEE S LK IEs6BFELE
BRESTMATHE R -FTLF+ A=+
B - OB ( EXPREE TEF 2 RaRINE
MEARREEAARD T D BITRAZ BRI

RE
AL EIEZREEO. 108 T2 ZER ([HR 17 )

Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital
issued of the Company
Shares held {RARAR]
Name of shareholder Nature of interest FTiEE 31T BEITRA
e e EatE ianE2gE! 2B AL
Hallgain Management Limited (“Hallgain”) Beneficial owner 259,968,929 31.01
(Note) (Ff7) ERBEEA
Capital Research and Management Company Investment manager 79,651,400 9.50
KEKE
Commonwealth Bank of Australia Interests of controlled 50,011,030 5.96
SR FBERTT corporations
Xt ER R
Note:  As at 31 December 2007: (i) no shareholder of Hallgain is entitled to M R-TTEF+= B =+—H()EHalgan%

exercise, or control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more
of the voting power at general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its
directors are not accustomed to act in accordance with any shareholder’s
direction; and (i) Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wing and Chan Wing Kwan,
being Directors, are also directors of Hallgain.

RAE#RHallgainlER KT ERABE
ERIFTR =0 A L2 RRHE - MHallgain
RESEITMERRBEMBRRETTE R
(iNEFRERLAE KRR E T AHallgain
ZEE-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position (continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2007.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange throughout the
year ended 31 December 2007 save for the deviation that all
independent non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and will be
eligible for re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors adopted
by the Company.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent for the purposes of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales or purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers combined or suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the Group’s sales or purchases
respectively.

Kingboard

EBBRW @)

RA(#)

B MBS  AARBHEEARR RS
T A=+ BZARRERTRAZ M 18
iR A o

®RER

EERR BRREUIFTERYRIREEESR
BEZEMARBARRZ ARABERMUNER
ARRBFASHERENTAEREREEEMN
REESN - ARARBE-_ETLF+-A=+—H
I EE—EE TR RAES EMARR(T ERRRLD
B ARTEL c DR EATRTA

AR B R TRIRN LR R 8 10PTH
REGE(RETA D ZEBESETESRRZHZ
BTl KRAERERELEEENR - 28E
SR WE-HETRETAMHMERERE
RAMFRMNBEBESFETERRXH 2B TTR -

ARRIEEERBILFATESREEMARAS
BABGIELBHEBE I H D 2 FEHER - NRFIR
- BETRBIESAGM S - 2EBUIFNTE
EHRBIAL -

EEERRHER

FR - AEERERARSAHRUEEA 2R
HEFLBEES LN AR E 2 HEFLHEE
Z30% °

32 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

“ET LR B IEE



Kingboard

Kingboard

Directors’ Report 2%

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, Techwise Circuits Company Limited (“Techwise”)
and its subsidiaries (“Techwise Group”) sold printed circuit
boards (“PCBs”) to and purchased laminates from Shirai
Electronics Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Shirai”) and its subsidiaries
(“Shirai Group”) amounting to approximately HK$556,420,000
and HK$123,218,000 respectively. The Techwise Group also
sub-contracted the services of the Shirai Group, namely the
drilling of laminates by the Shirai Group on Techwise Group’s
behalf, amounting to approximately HK$27,008,000 during
the year. Techwise is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, while Shirai is a substantial shareholder of Techwise
Shirai Circuits Limited (a 70% owned subsidiary of Techwise). As
such, Shirai and its subsidiaries are connected persons of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The sale of PCBs to the Shirai Group and the subcontracting
transactions with the Shirai Group did not exceed the revised
corresponding annual caps for the financial year ended
31 December 2007 amounting to HK$618,585,000 and
HK$29,260,000, respectively, which was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting
held on 10 December 2007. The purchase of laminates from the
Shirai Group during the year did not exceed the corresponding
annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2007 as
announced by the Company on 27 October 2006, namely an
amount of HK$161,000,000.

The Directors have engaged the auditor of the Company to
perform certain agreed upon procedures in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group. The auditor
of the Company has reported its factual findings on these
procedures to the board of Directors (“Board”). The independent
non-executive Directors, for the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of
the Listing Rules, have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and the report of the auditor and have confirmed
that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of its business,
on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

REZ S

FA - BEGEERAR(RIE]D REMBAA
(%R RIZEEE ) AIShirai Electronics Industrial
Co., Ltd. ([Shirail) X EKE A ([ Shiraite
B ) % & £49556,420,000 7% 7T 2 BNl 45 B& 1R
([ENRIARBEIR |) I 38 B A 2147123,218,0008 7L.2
BINER - BIESE SR FARShirait @I A
#4927,008,0007 7T 2 AR 7 - BDEAShiraite B R R
BEELEREREL - REAXRRFEEHRE
M~ a] - fmShiraiflRREEHER70%E s 2 8
ARREAHERER AR ZEZRE - Bt - 1R
B EWRAIE14AE > ShiraiREMB AR AL A
RIREAL -

R Shiraif [ # ENfARHE R K £2Shiraisk MAETTHN
HZZ DR TBRARRBRRR-_FFLF+ A
TRRTZEREIASMILEREZE-_FTLF
T A=+ HUEMBFELETHRTE LR
618,585,000/ 7T £ 29,260,000/& 7 © 4 AI[@Shirai
KEREERRER TRARNATN-FETAFTA
—HEAMERBE_FTLFTA=+—HIL
BT 2 BRI/ LR 161,000,000/ 7T ©

EZCEAARRRBMEARE 2 HERER S
ETETEBERT - ARRRBMTERESS
(EFE)REUERFAEIERER - 3iLH
RAIE14ABTIEM E » BUFATEECDEHE
BRIER S MRB 2 RE - YR RS ERE
RS TIBHARER —REBBEFIIL - BIR—K
BREIER R ZER B PIR] Hhas 2 RETT - B
FRBAFAE  YATEARBBR BB -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has also provided
guarantees to financial institutions to secure general credit
facilities for a non-wholly owned subsidiary, namely Techwise, in
the amounts of approximately HK$193 million during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme is set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under company laws in the
Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2007.

REX 52

bR EXTEEREEIN - ARRFRMA—HFEEER
BB R(RHR)RE —RIEEE MR EEER
HER - P R FREE49193,000,000% 7T ©

M iR 3R
FHMEESRBEAEEES 2 KB AFERIIEE
HEIE BT 2 HMEKE -

FMEESRD2ERARRIKLEEE EREEZR
BRAIL R 2 S BURRRTEE S Z HE -

ARRCHRNELERESE FRUEERAE
RIER 2 2R - SHEIF ISR R G M B HMERM T
35 °

=5k
ARABZARIEBERYBANMELEZIRE - &
EFMSHBRRDENILEEE SRR EMRS -

RELRIBIRE
BE-FTLEL-AS+—HILER  AAT-
HRRERARKRE -

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT BHAZFEH

Details of significant event occurring after the balance sheet date  #E R#% 4 7 EAEM 2 H1E - SN GEATBKIR
are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. KHFE43 ©
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AUDITOR 53 {0

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu  AZF2/1E %) =R 5 @ETEITT AR A RIZEE 2%
as auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by ZREARAAGEERERAERS FZ2HEARA
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general TR =t ©

meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board AEESH

Cheung Kwok Wing REI%

CHAIRMAN e

17 March 2008 —ZETN\F=A++tH
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Corporate Governance Report

AN S/
1IE=EoA #&%

The Board of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
recognises the importance of corporate governance practice
of a listed company. It is in the interest of the stakeholders and
shareholders for a listed company to operate in a transparent
manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory policies,
procedures and monitoring mechanisms and a clear definition of
accountability of directors and management.

During the year under review, the Board has complied with the
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except with a deviation from code
provision A.4.1 of the Code. Under code provision A.4.1 of
the Code, non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, the Company
does not have any non-executive director and the independent
non-executive directors of the Company were not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and are
eligible for re-election.

In addition to the Code, which is mandatory in nature, the
Board also observes certain recommended best practices
(“Recommended Best Practices”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules and has adopted certain Recommended Best
Practices which are suitable to the Company’s current situation.
The Board will continuously enhance the corporate governance
standard of the Company by reference to the Recommended
Best Practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all directors,
all directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions adopted by the
Company.

Kingboard

BB TEE(EARRREMB AR (G A%
B EFePAR LT ARCERERERZEE
e EMARZEERBRAE  KRSEBTRE
PR ERR A RS - WERARATESREE
BRI ARERAARBRZFE -

REEFE  EFE - HEETREHOXZMAR
AEEZ ETRRN( EWARR DM 14mEz 4
FERERTR R 263 MEIREE ST B
AATERRIN « IRIBTRANRXA 4116 - JERITESR
MERERARELH  WERIENESR - ARA
BRYEIMFNTES  MARTBLIENTE
FZREWEEEEH - HARBRERNEER
EIREE -

BEBSNEE 2 TASL - EFRNSE LR
SRR 2 RBRER A ((RARERA) - 1
ROEAAATNRTERLE TRESERN - &
FEHRDBREEER TS ERBRERS -
TIRBRRF AR A2 B -

ARRERMIFK T RRR L AR AT 82107
RERE(MRETA D ZEHESTRTERISZ
Bl - RAZREFFLEEENR - 28E
FHER - WE-HETRETAMERERERE
RAMFRANEHERETERRRH BT -
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DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Group and is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the management of the business and the
affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted internal
guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the
Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial
performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s
business and ensures implementation of appropriate
systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated
to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by
the Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman
of the Board and distributed to the Board members
within reasonable time before the meetings. Relevant
meeting papers are also sent to directors well before
the meetings, informing them of the background and
giving explanation on matters to be brought before the
Board. All directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To ensure the
directors make decisions objectively and in the interests
of the Company, the Company’s articles of association
provide that any director shall abstain from voting on any
resolutions in which he or his associates is/are materially
interested nor be counted in the quorum of the meeting.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings
are sent to all directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board
meetings and are kept by the Company Secretary.

-

Exg

EEGHERERERAEE AR
EEEAKRB EBREBHERSEE - KA
EEERANTIESIFTAREESTGIE
ZEE -BATEETIc EFEENEED
HEREEZRBE - FEEE - TEZ
B EAREREERTE - EFZER
REMAEEMBRIR  BRIAEEED
ZEFERBEBREEESEEAETER
R o RNEE BB EREERITBAE
ZBEEERTEREESE -

EEerHkNEEBRAMERETE
#HoAFEER R BEREREAES
CEFERARNNEEERRIT NS HR
EEREANRETEESRE - BHEE
ENHNERASHREERES 2
BEBMBREEFG 2 FHEIEREN
KRFHH SEFTREFSSZZELM
AZEREH S - ARRESFELTERR
RAERRBFZmZIRE - ARBZEEE
RAABETE  MEZFEH LEMARER
R E RS R /\iE’JEKﬁéﬁ{l k)
BEEVERERE - [EEAGRETE
AB & QQE@%@%&E“ T
REZFEFRECERMANBRTL2RBE
£ OREREERREH A IE
AIMETFE
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During the year under review, the Board had held four REBFEAN  EFGHTTHAER
mestings and the directors’ attendance at Board meetings EENEFEERNEFEERRR2H
and Board committees’ meetings were as follows: fERisRan T

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

Mesting Megti mg Megting
ghZae REE HE

Number of Meeting =g 4 3 2 2
Executive directors YTESE
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) RER(LE) 4 - - -
Chan Wing Kwan (Managing Director) ~ BEKiR(ZEE#45%E) 4 2 2 2
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE 4 - - -
Chang Wing Yiu D@ 4 - - -
Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick S 4 2 2 2
Ho Yin Sang AHER-TTLE
(appointed on 11 January 2007) —A+—REZE) 4 - - -
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie FREN-TELE
(appointed on 11 January 2007) —R+—REZMA) 4 - - -
Independent non-executive directors  BIEHTES
Cheng Ming Fun, Paul & 4 3 2 2
Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher BRE(N_FZtF
(appointed on 1 July 2007) +tA-REZA) 3 - - -
Tse Kam Hung i 4 3 2 2
Henry Tan A 4 3 2 2
The directors have observed the importance of directing EEAR AT THBEREE AR
and supervising the Company’s affairs at a more regular EBRCEEMN  c KEREBESE %%
interval. After consulting all directors, Board meetings BYSHERFEETGREFTERTRE
have been preliminarily scheduled to be held at quarterly FRTNPROREGEE o

interval and no less than four times in the coming year.
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Division and responsibilities

The Board of the Company is headed by the Chairman
whose role differs from that of the Managing Director of
the Company. The roles of the Chairman and Managing
Director are segregated and are not exercised by the
same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the
following:

o schedule meetings that enable the Board to
perform its duties and responsibilities and
to ensure all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner without
interfering the Company’s operations;

. prepare meeting agenda after consultation with
the Managing Director;

o exercise control over quality, quantity and
timeliness of the flow of information between
Management and the Board and to ensure
decisions made by the directors are made on a
fully informed basis; and

. assist in ensuring compliance with the Listing
Rules and the Company’s guidelines on corporate
governance.

The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the
overall strategic planning and day-to-day management of
the Group.

Kingboard
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Board composition

The Board currently comprises eleven members, four of
whom are independent non-executive directors who are
expressly identified in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of directors of the Company. One
of the independent non-executive directors possesses
appropriate professional qualifications (or accounting or
related financial management expertise) as required by
the Listing Rules. The composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)
Chan Wing Kwan (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwong Kwan
Chang Wing Yiu
Mok Cham Hung, Chadwick
Ho Yin Sang
(appointed on 11 January 2007)
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie
(appointed on 11 January 2007)

Independent non-executive Directors

Cheng Ming Fun, Paul

Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher
(appointed on 1 July 2007)

Tse Kam Hung

Henry Tan

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie is the sister of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wing. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan is a
cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai
Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang
are brothers-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms.
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie.
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Currently, the Company does not have any non-executive
director and the independent non-executive directors
of the Company were not appointed for specific terms
but are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible
for re-election. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence as required under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board comprises directors who collectively provide
core competencies, sales and marketing experience and
technical knowledge in laminates, printed circuit boards
and chemical products, administration and management
experience in the PRC factories, financial and accounting
skills, as well as in-house advices to comply with
international laws and regulations. The current Board size
of eleven directors with a balance of skills and experience
is appropriate for effective decision making, taking into
account the nature and scope of the operations of the
Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s Articles of Association set out a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. Any director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy
or as addition to the Board, shall retire and be eligible
for re-appointment at the next following annual general
meeting after appointment. The appointment of directors
are not fixed for a specified term, but at every annual
general meeting one-third of the directors, including
the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-appointment by shareholders. The directors
appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement
and re-appointment as mentioned above shall be taken
into account in calculating the total number of directors
for the time being but shall not be taken into account
in calculating the number of directors who are to retire
by rotation. All directors eligible for re-appointment
shall have their biographical details made available to
the shareholders to enable them to make an informed
decision on their re-appointment. Any appointment,
resignation, removal or re-designation of director shall be
timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement
and shall include in such announcement, the reasons
given by the director for his resignation.
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Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each director to
keep abreast of his responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every director is required
to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs
of the Board and the material matters of the Company
and to serve the Board with such degree of care and
due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

Every newly appointed director shall receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment. All directors shall
be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a
proper understanding of the operations and the business
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.
The Board has a procedure for directors, either individually
or as a group, in the furtherance of their duties, to take
independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the directors
to make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance
coverage for directors’ and officers’ liability has been
arranged against possibility of legal action to be taken
against the directors and the management.

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation
to furnish the Board with complete, adequate and
appropriate information in such form and such quality in a
timely manner so as to enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities
as directors of the Company. All the directors are given
separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management.
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All the directors are given separate and independent
access to the Company Secretary, whose role includes
ensuring that Board procedures are observed and
followed, and that applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is
responsible for drafting minutes and keeping minutes
records which can be accessed by any director for
inspection.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) which comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Tse
Kam Hung (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Ming Fun, Paul and
Mr. Henry Tan, to formulate policies and procedures for
determining the remuneration of directors and senior
management and other remuneration related matters.
The Remuneration Committee is set up with written
terms of reference which set out clearly its duties and
authorities delegated by the Board of directors, including
the following specific duties:

o formulate the framework or Board policy for
determining the remuneration of the Company’s
Board and senior management. The objective
of such policy should ensure that members of
the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performance and are, in a fair and
reasonable manner, rewarded for their individual
contributions to the success of the Company;

o recommend specific remuneration packages
including, where appropriate, allowances,
bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive payments,
and share options, if any, for each executive
director and the Managing Director and such
other members of senior management as it is
designated to consider;
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o recommend targets for any performance-linked
pay schemes operated by the Company, taking
into account remuneration and employment
conditions within the industry and in comparable
companies; and

. recommend to the Board the remuneration of
independent non-executive directors (including
non-executive directors, if any), taking into
account factors such as effort, time spent and
responsibilities.

When recommending the remuneration package for each
individual director, the Remuneration Committee will
consider his qualification and experience, specific duties
and responsibilities assigned to him by the Board and the
prevailing market packages available for similar position.
The emolument of the Directors on a named basis for the
year under review is set out on page 116 and 117 in note
15 to the financial statements. Review and comparison in
terms of Directors’ emolument package and net profits of
the Group are made from time to time with comparable
listed industrial companies with similar capitalisation to the
Group. Considering all such factors, the Remuneration
Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation
with the Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee had convened two meetings during which,
among other things, the remuneration packages for all
Directors, including Mr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher,
who was appointed to the Board on 1 July 2007, were
considered.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s account which gives a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Company deploys appropriate and sufficient resources to
prepare unaudited half-yearly account and audited yearly
account. Senior management is required to present and
explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial
performance and operations of the Company to the Audit
Committee and the Board and respond to the queries
and concerns raised by the Audit Committee and the
Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the auditor of
the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 52 and 53 of this annual report.

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the
key elements of which are as follows:

o formal policies and procedures are in place,
including the documentation of key processes,
procedures and rules relating to the delegation of
authorities. These allow the monitoring of controls
and restrict the unauthorised use of the Group
assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take
responsibility for important business functions.
Annual appraisal procedures have been
established to maintain standards of performance;

o monthly business and financial reports are
prepared, providing relevant, timely, reliable and
up-to-date financial and other information; budget
variances are investigated as appropriate; and

. an internal audit function, which reports directly
to the Audit Committee, is in place to determine
whether the above procedures are properly carried
out.
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The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of
the above internal control system of the Group including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
managements and will conduct such review at least once
a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment and
the Group’s assets are properly safeguarded. The Board is
satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled
with its own observations and with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk
management processes are satisfactory for the nature
and size of the Group’s operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has
established an internal audit team that reports directly
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
independently audit various functions, operations and
systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the
priority list recommended by the Audit Committee. The
internal audit team will prepare an internal audit report
highlighting the deficiencies and weaknesses in existing
audit functions, operations and systems for discussion by
the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on these
findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference setting out duties,
responsibilities and authorities delegated to them by the
Board of directors. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the following:

. review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

. review with the external auditor, their evaluation of
the system of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit
procedures;
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o review the balance sheet and profit and loss
account of the Company and the consolidated
balance sheet and profit and loss account of the
Group and submit them to the Board;

o nominate persons as auditor;

. review with the internal and external auditors their
findings on their evaluation of the Company’s
system of internal controls for the purpose of
assisting the Board in developing policies that
would enhance the controls and operating
systems of the Company; and

o review connected transactions and examine the
adequacy of internal controls of the Group as part
of the standard procedures.

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
scope and results of the audit and its cost effectiveness,
and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The Audit Committee
will review the independence of the Company’s auditor,
the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function,
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supply
non-audit services to the Company, the Committee
will keep the nature and extent of such services under
review, seeking to balance between the maintenance of
objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor
in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the

Company’s auditor to the Group were as follows:
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The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the
non-audited services provided by the Company’s auditor
and concluded that in their opinion such services did
not affect the independence of the auditor. The Board
has appointed an accountant to be responsible for the
accounting and financial matters of the Group and the
Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial
and relevant information which enable them to discharge
their audit committee function effectively and efficiently.
Besides internal assistance being available, the Audit
Committee may request for assistance and advice from
external auditor as and when they think necessary at
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee
shall meet with external auditor without the presence
of executive directors to discuss the Group’s financial
reporting and any major and financial matters arising
during the year under review at least once a year.

In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

. to investigate any matter within its written terms of
reference;

o to have full access to and co-operation by the
management;

o to have full discretion to invite any director or

executive officer to attend its meetings; and

o to have reasonable resources to enable it to
discharge its functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit
Committee are appropriately qualified to discharge their
responsibilities and at least one member has accounting
and related financial management expertise or experience.
The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Cheng Ming Fun, Paul
(Chairman), Mr. Tse Kam Hung and Mr. Henry Tan.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters, including the review of the
audited annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company'’s articles of association set out matters
which are specifically reserved to the Board for its
decision. Executive directors normally meet on an
informal basis every two weeks and participate in senior
management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group
and to monitor and ensure the management carry out the
directions and strategies set by the Board of directors
correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are given to
the management as to the matters which should bring to
the attention and be determined by the Board on behalf
of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees,
namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, each chaired by different
independent non-executive director, to assist the Board
in discharging functions specific to each committee. Each
Board committee has its own written terms of reference
setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements
which are substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members
who are independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Henry Tan (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Ming Fun, Paul,
and Mr. Tse Kam Hung. According to the written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee, the major
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

o regularly review the structure, size and composition
of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board with regard to any adjustments that are
deemed necessary;

ERZEREEECRNARERMNL
SRR ER IEuTum’f?%l M ERES
ERMBEREE  BRENEE_TT
TtF+ A=+ —HIFEZRERFE
MAEwE -

ESSFRHHEE

EEINRE
ARRZHABEREIIERAREFTER
EZER - RITEZ - REMEYBTH
g3 UEH2EREREZS
& NEEEAKEIHCEERKRE
BExkEREREERIAEMNITE
EEHRI 2R RERR - EEECEBW
BR RAAREEFSEIVHESS
REARBWERAREZEER -

ExzEg

BEFRDRU=-EEES - %F‘:Uﬁ.%ﬁé
Bg RAZBELFMEES  HHlA
7FEJ§%Z§E$M?%$H§.&I LAT;?;’; )J%
EZERETRLZESRTIR 2 ERAE
%%é%ﬁi’igﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ’%iﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁéﬁu
CREIZRA B RTHHHEES
GZRE - 2FRLHERBUER -

RAZESH-_RBUIFNTES BT
MEE(ER) - BRI ERFIHHLE
MK - RIBIRAZ B G EMAT B BESR
B REZEGZIBRERE:

. EHRREES 2 RE - ABRKAK
EHRA  URERRATIELD
AERAEFSRMERES

Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
“ZTAFFR BRLIER

49



Kingboard

Kingboard

Corporate Governance Report {35783k E

o review whether or not an independent non-
executive director is independent for the purpose
of the Listing Rules on annual basis;

. be responsible for identifying and nominating for
the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board
vacancies as and when they arise;

. assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contribution by each individual director to
the effectiveness of the Board; and

. be responsible for re-nomination having regard
to the director’s contribution and performance,
including, if applicable, as an independent director.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
had convened two meetings during which, among
other things, the nomination of Mr. Cheng Wai Chee,
Christopher, as additional director of the Company was
considered. Mr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher was
appointed as independent non-executive director by the
Board with effect from 1 July 2007 and pursuant to the
Company’s articles of association, Mr. Cheng Wai Chee,
Christopher, will retire, and be eligible for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Nomination
Committee had also considered the directors who should
retire by rotation pursuant to the Company’s articles of
association and the Code. The Nomination Committee
had resolved that Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, Mr. Chang
Wing Yiu and Mr. Tse Kam Hung, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. All the above-named directors
were nominated by the Nomination Committee to stand
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend
the general meetings to have personal communication
with shareholders. In annual general meeting, Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each committee
are required to attend and answer questions from
shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
is also required to be present to assist the directors in
addressing any relevant queries by shareholders. The
Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their
questions, comments and opinions in relation to the
Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) provide good
opportunities for shareholders to air their views and ask
directors and management questions regarding the
Company. All shareholders of the Company receive the
annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM
and other corporate communications. The notices are
also published in newspapers. Separate resolutions are
required at general meetings on each distinct issue. Each
shareholder is permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote in his stead.

Voting by poll

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
the Chairman shall demand a poll in the Company’s
general meetings whenever voting by poll is required
under the Listing Rules. The Company’s articles of
association has set out the procedures, requirements
and circumstances where voting by poll is required, and
in corporate communications to shareholders for matters
where shareholders’ voting are required, the procedures
for and shareholders’ right to demand a poll shall be
specified. Such procedure and shareholders’ right would
be reiterated and explained by the Chairman at the
commencement of the general meeting of shareholders.
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WA R CIE S

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 54 to 179, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 March 2008
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melER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —FEZE+4F+ - HA=+—HIFFZE

2007 2006
—EELE —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT

Revenue e 7 20,025,112 16,773,348
Cost of sales SHEE AR (15,178,498) (12,495,937)
Gross profit EA 4,846,614 4,277,411
Other income HbgA 9 84,453 50,275
Investment income FERKA 10 339,102 144,597
Distribution costs 7 SEAA (550,279) (457,526)
Administrative costs B (1,171,926) (1,024,102)
Loss on disposal and deemed disposal & &R /EH E—FRI

of interest in an associate kNG o) ki (23,658) -
Gain on fair value change of conversion  RJ A& K B& [0 3R 12 REST A

and redemption option derivative TAEZzAFEZSHKE 24 182,367 -
Gain on disposal and deemed disposal & KR /EH & — BB

of partial interest in a subsidiary NalEpo iRz WS 11 - 4,830,916
Discount on acquisition of an associate Y f& — B EE & A Bl 3T:E - 48,182
Discount on acquisition of additional U B — 51 BT /2B 2 B ZE o

interest in a subsidiary T YTRE 962 1,498
Finance costs B KA 12 (287,664) (313,266)
Share of results of associates e S NEIE 2 298,283 39,924
Share of results of jointly controlled entities  F&1f5 2% B35 4| F 42 245 (1,070) (1,755)
Profit before taxation [ 55 A3 ) 3,717,184 7,596,154
Income tax expense FRiSHifx 13 (245,030) (240,435)
Profit for the year INEE S ) 14 3,472,154 7,355,719
Attributable to: JEAEH R -

Equity holders of the Company RARERFEE A 2,778,321 7,068,015

Minority interests DEIIR R RERS 693,833 287,704

3,472,154 7,355,719

Dividends % 2 16 1,084,229 382,648
Earnings per share AT 17

Basic HR HK$3.330 HK$8.904

Diluted e HK$3.232 HK$8.527
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REEERER

At 31 December 2007 R —FEFE+F+-HA=+—H

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$ (0[0[0)
FEx FA&T
Non-current assets IERBEE
Investment properties "EME 18 1,197,952 40,220
Properties, plant and equipment s - RE RERE 19 13,752,739 10,254,325
Prepaid lease payments FENEEIE 20 1,265,127 471,727
Goodwill S 21 2,005,658 1,717,519
Investments in associates R ERRZI8E 22 741,128 486,929
Available-for-sale investments aHEERE 23 564,657 395,150
Convertible bond — loan portion MiRES—EESLS 24 86,188 =
Interests in jointly controlled entities NI REIEH|EE 5z 25 14,284 15,354
Non-current deposits ERBE] 2 26 993,168 265,430
Intangible assets WA E 27 725,884 2,185
Deferred tax assets RIETIAEE 33 21,994 19,499
21,368,779 13,668,338
Current assets MENEE
Inventories TE 28 2,648,216 2,498,354
Trade and other receivables and B 5 K H AU AR R
prepayments INSELNE O 29 7,182,019 5,805,993
Prepaid lease payments BN FEERIE 20 28,029 9,513
Conversion and redemption option AIHAAR % B [l 12 1
derivative PTETEA 24 205,461 -
Derivative financial instruments TTESmITHE 30 2,812 39,183
Taxation recoverable AT B R IE 12,074 2,439
Bank balances and cash IRITAER LIRS 29 3,494,596 6,097,231
13,573,207 14,452,713
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables B REMEERR 31 4,191,715 2,751,777
Bills payable AN e 31 880,992 653,608
Derivative financial instruments PTESmTA 30 1,184 195
Taxation payable FEAFITE 362,422 283,583
Bank borrowings — amount due RITEE-—FR
within one year I B 2 I8 32 1,759,340 1,296,421
7,195,653 4,985,584
Net current assets mEEEFRE 6,377,554 9,467,129
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRTBEE 27,746,333 23,135,467
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At 31 December 2007 R=ZZEZE+F+=-_H=+—H

2007 2006
e e
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FABT
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIBEE 33 29,165 36,323
Bank borrowings — amount due RITEE——F1&
after one year ZHl 2 I 32 5,490,372 4,086,223
5,519,537 4,122,546
22,226,796 19,012,921
Capital and reserves A& A Rt A
Share capital A& 2 34 83,810 83,280
Share premium and reserves I 5 18 I et 18,193,893 15,875,645
Equity attributable to equity holders of ~ ZNA Rl#Ezs15H A
the Company FE(h#E R 18,277,703 15,958,925
Equity component of share option —EK B A RIEE
reserve of a subsidiary e A 35 12,862 9,764
Minority interests DHRRER 3,936,231 3,044,232
Total equity RN 22,226,796 19,012,921

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 179 were  F54BEF179B 2R A MBHERER T ZTN\F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 17 March =A+t-BEEESHERFETZ - WHTHE

2008 and are signed on its behalf by: EFS
Cheung Kwok Wing Chan Wing Kwan
RETE RR 7K §B
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
0 EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EE+E+ - H=+—HI-FZF

Special g Share option
Share redemption ~ Go surplus Yy Hedging Tranglation ined f - Minorty
premum  resene acoount Tesenve s Inferests

Balance at 1 January 2006 WZEEAE
-A-B7&% 8477 3,616,879 897 (191) 10594 3466 117193 (10332) 127379 4283406 8232,167 3047 1411529 9,646,743

Decrease n farvalue changesof ~ BARMHATAE
derivatives under cash fowhedge  TAATEEE

D - - - - - - (18310) - - - (18310) - - (13310)
Increase i far value changes of IRAERELT
avalable-for-sale investments ERG N = - - - - - - 12012 - - 1m - - 120
Share of changes i reserve BIEBERT
of associates B2 - - = = = = = - 13862 - 13862 - - 13862
Exchange differences on transiaon 3 #4550 4557
offoreign operatons Ef/EREE = = = = = - - - 309059 - 300059 - 145%5 41350
Net income recognised directly ez
in equity BRREED) - - - - - - (18310) 1202 329 - 261628 - 10453 366,168
Proft for the year BERE - - - - - - - - - 7068015 7068015 - BI04 735719
Hedging resenve released in ReyAEE
respect of cash flow hedge psyats1 - = = = = - (382 - - - (#38%) - - (4382
Investment revaluation reserve e /R
released on disposalransfer LREERGE - - - = = = - 850t = -85 = - 850t
Total recognised income and TERERTL
expenses for the year WERR%EE - - - - - - (117193) 20663 32921 7068015 7,294,406 - 32239 7,686,645
Issue of new shares St
— from exercise of warrants -(TEARiEE 4213 850365 - - - - - - - - 854638 - - 854638
- fomexercise of shareoptions -~ {TEERERE 50 1929 - - - - - - - - 1982 - - 1982
Recognton of equity-setted share ~ EZMRGFANT
based payments - - - - - - - - - - - 6,717 - 6,717
Find dhvidend for he yearended ~~ BZ-EETE
31 December 2005 T2A=t-H
g RERE - - - - - - - - - plogn) 19g) - - plogn)
Interim dhidend forthe yearended ~ EZ-EERE
31 December 2006 T2A=1-A
gz HERE - - - - - - = - - (eann) (62721) - - (e
Disposaland deemed disposal of ~ HERE(ERE-F
partal iterest in a subsidiary HBARSAES - - - = - - - - [59460) - [59460) - 1306557 1,267,007
Acquistion of subsiciaries WENBAT - - - - - - - - - - - - 7845 7,845
Acquistion of adational inferests
in subsilaries EEHBATIES - - - - - - - - - - - - (58032) (58,032)
Controution from minority
shareholders DERRAERE - - - - - - - - - - - - 85 875
Divdend paid to minorty HTOERE
shareholders Il - - - - - - - - - - - - (12349) [123407)
Transfers &g - - - - - 618 - - - (618 - - - -
4803 869,657 - - - 6,185 - - (9460) (388,833) 432,352 6,717 1240464 1,679,533
Balance at 31 December 2006 WZEEAE
t2f=1-H
i 83,280 4,486,536 897 (191) 10594 9,651 - 10331 390840 10,967,587 15,956,925 9764 3044232 19,012,921
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # & —FEF+F+_—H=+—HIFFZ

Atibutable to e

Capital
Share Share redemption  Gooowil  suplus  Statutory
caplal  premum  resene  reseve  account  reserve

5

Balance at 1 January 2007

RZTELE—
—Rz&h 83280 4,486,536 897 (191) 10504 9651 -

Share option
Tranglation ined Minorty Total
reseve  profits a nferests ~equty

10331 300840 10967587 1598926 9764 3044232 19012921

Decrease i far value changes of Ttﬁﬁﬁhé

avalabledorsde investments  E5775/ = = = = - - - - 1690 - - 1690 - - 1690
Share of changes in reserve fEE‘*sﬂﬁiﬁ
of associates - - - - - - - - - B2 - 823 = - 62
Exchange differences on mﬁ,@’; SHfELS
translation of foreign operations X 2% - - - - - - - - - 64484 - 64484 - 199015 840499
Fair vlue gain on properties m%ﬁ@ RENE
transfered to investment CRTERE
properties - - - - - - - 6,583 - - - 6,583 = - 658
Net income recognised directly
in equty - - - - - - - 6563 16930 667,716 - 69129 - 19015 890244
Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - - 2718321 2718321 - 093833 3472154
Resenves released upon disposal
of associates - - - - - - - - - 1) - 1) - - 118
Investment revaluation reserve
released on disposal - - - - - - - - (85664) - - (85664) - - (85664)
Total recognised income and REERHDZ
expenses forthe year YRR - - - - - - - 653 (BB73) 66585 277832 33075 - B0/ 4275608
Issue of new shares from exercise  RAT(RES
of share options fﬂi‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁxﬁ 50 1929 - - - - - - - - - 1982 - - 1982
Recogniton of equity-settied iﬁ%m{ﬁ
share based payments - - - - - - - - - - - - 4448 - 4448
Final dvidend for th year ended \E
31 December 2006 f =t-B
R RS - - - - - - - - - - (316464 (316464) - - (316464)
Specia dividend for the year ended HZ-FE /\ﬁ
31 December 2006 A=
w zmwﬁxs - - - - - - - - - - (51633%) (5163%) - - [5163%)
Interim dividend for the year ended - 2 -5 %+
31 December 2007 tZh= f
IR zndRe - - - - - - - - - - (251430 (51430) - - (25140)
Acquisiton of subsidiaries KEHBAR - - - - - - - - - - - - - 263447 263447
Acquisiton of additional interests  Z3HE W%ﬁ
i subsicares - - - - - - - - - - - - - (162789) (162789)
Contribution from minoriy DR IERE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - - 104436 104436
Dividend paid to minority TRFHOERR
shareholders Wi - - - - - - - - - - - - - (206,863) (206,863)
Transfer upon exercise of RiEnERE
share option [ - - - - - - - - - - - - (920) 20 -
Transfer upon lapse of share option RE&EERIER
MER - - - - - - - - - - 90 40 430) - -
Transfers & - - - - - - - - - - - - -
50 1999 = = - nom . = . - (1105876) (1063977) 3098 (849) (1061,728)
Belance at 31 December 2007 -
_Jr EZ%@E 83810 4,505,828 897 (791) 10594 3178 = 6,583  (68403) 1,067,425 12640032 18277703 12,862 3936231 22,226,7%

Notes: B EE -

(@) Special surplus account represents the difference between the nominal (@ 5 Bl & £ Bk B 1R K A A AT ) B 0 (B BN A R
amount of the shares issued by the Company and the nominal amount of —AN=FREEESHWE 2B ARC BTRAR
the issued share capitals of the subsidiaries which were acquired by the BZZE%E -

Company under the group reorganisation in 1993.

(o) Statutory reserve represents the Enterprise Expansion Fund and General  (b) AR S TH B R RREREARANBEREER
Reserve set aside by certain subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant &%iﬁ@ﬂjZﬁ%}E}E%ﬁﬁ HfEES -
laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China.

(© The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on (© AEBEYEEGHRFBRANSETARZYE - BER
revaluation of certain properties for own use of the Group as a result RBEBEREMEMEE 2 SMKE ©
of transfer of those properties for own use from properties, plant and
equipment to investment properties.

58 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

—ETLFFER @RCIRE



Kingboard

Kingboard

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GmEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ —-A=1—HIFFZE

—ETLFER @RECIRE

2007
“22tE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET TAL
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BExK
Profit before taxation TR A A 3,717,184 7,596,154
Adjustments for; HE
Share of results of associates [ AN (298,283) (39,924)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities e AR E RS 1,070 1,755
Amortisation of intangible assets ﬂﬂ/ BEEH 632 500
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment WE - BERRENE 1,169,731 1,031,198
Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade HEH R LR
and other receivables BRZAEER 89,004 34,010
Dividends from available-for-sale investments AHEERE RS (15,092) (1,002)
Interest expenses and finance charges FETHEREMREER 287,664 313,266
Gain on disposal and deemed disposal of HERRENE—HHEAR
partial interest in a subsidiary i eyl e - (4,830,916)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEREHERE 7 s (85,664) (6,876)
Gain on falr value change of conversion and RRREOERETETAZ
redemption option derivative RTEEEE (182,367) -
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties RENEATEES Ya (5,118) (7,163)
Gain on falr value changes of foreign currency forward contracts  RERONEAAIA T EE S Uiz (86) (23)
Gain on fair value change of commodity forward contract EHERE AR TERD KE (368) -
Discount on acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary WE—RIB AR RMES T2 (962) (1,498)
Discount on acquisition of an associate KE-RBENRR - (48,182)
Release of prepaid lease payments BAEETERE 14,463 8,595
Interest income FIEMA (129,682) (51,499)
Imputed interest income on convertible bond RRERE WA (1,282) -
Loss on disposal and deemed disposal of interest in HERRENE—RHEAR
an assoclate EnBE 23,658 -
Loss (gain) on disposal and write off of properties, HERMENE - BERREL
plant and equipment B () 10,864 (144)
Share based payment expenses OS5 4,448 6,717
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital FtAEEC R KEBE TS 4,599,814 4,004,968
Increase in inventories FEEN (102,034) (627,438)
Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayments B 5 LA BN S R T B (1,206,368) (637,246)
Increase in trade and other payables Z 5 R EMEREZE 985,586 103,123
Increase in bills payable RSB 207,384 244,297
Cash generated from operations MBS EEIR S 4,504,382 3,087,704
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BABATIER (50,816) (14,411)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEREENEH 2,205 1,301
Other taxes paid B EHE (135,691) (81,935)
NET GASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBHBRERE 4,320,100 2,992,659
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2007
—ETtE 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Purchase of properties, plant and equipment BENE BERRE (3,518,081) (2,026,971)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (1,084,477) -
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEIHIERE (616,905) (350,271)
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties, BENE BERZ
plant and equipment FIEE (993,168) (265,430)
Acquisttion of associates i NG| (335,712) (121,852)
Prepaid lease payments made ENEMAEETR (784,506) (106,071)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KENBAR 37 (324,468) (69,747)
Consideration paid for acquisition of additional EERBARERRARE
interests in subsidiaries (449,728) (66,078)
Purchase of convertiole bond BEURRES (108,000) -
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (245) (907)
Net proceeds from disposal of partial interest in LE—ERBARR
a subsidliary ZFBHIESE - 4,985,909
Proceeds from disposal of interest in HE—RBEN AR
an associate g 6,543 -
Proceeds from settlements of foreign currency EENERBA N FETE
forward contracts 23 =
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEWE  BENR
plant and equipment LR ER 88,222 30,173
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments — HE At HERE 7 FTEZUA 678,393 28,969
Proceeds from settlements of interest rate swaps EEH| R 8 7 FTSEIE 44,427 -
Interest received BUHE 129,682 51,499
Dividend received from an associate El—RBEAFRE 160,631 -
Dividends received from available-for-sale investments B UkAT 4 H &SR &, 15,092 1,002
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH (FR) FERLFR (7,092,277) 2,090,225
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 & —FEF+F+_-H=+—HIFFZF

2007
—ETtE
HK$'000
TET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New bank borrowings raised HERTEE 4,157,458 4,272,733
Procesds from exercise of warrants TEAREEEZE - 854,638
Capital contributions from minority shareholders DYRR BT 104,436 87,591
Proceeds from exercise of share options AEEEERERGTE 19,822 19,822
Proceeds from issue of new shares of a subsidiary —RNBRRRTHROAETE - 1,159,500
Repayment of bank borrowings BRHIEE (2,490,470) (5,561,252)
Dividend paid on ordinary shares BIRERBERE (1,084,229) (382,648)
Interest and other finance charges paid ENFEREMREER (328,371) (355,204)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders BRDERERS (206,863) (123.497)
Expenses incurred in connection with issue of new shares —TANBARR THROEE RS
of a subsidiary - (47,396)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANGING ACTIVITIES AEZBAE (FR) REFE 171,783 (75,713)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS B4 RES%EER (L) EmFE (2,600,394) 5,007,171
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EzRERBEZEER
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 6,094,405 1,087,234
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR ERZRERBLZERER 3,494,011 6,094,405
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND BERRESEBRLRIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEHERS 3,494,596 6,097,231
Bank overdrafts BITES (585) (2,826)
3,494,011 6,094,405
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R IR AR M AT

For the year ended 31 December 2007#E —EE+E+ - H=+—HI-FF

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (“RMB”)
while the consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars, which the management of the
Company considered is more beneficial for the users of
the consolidated financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
of laminates, copper foil, glass fabric, glass yarn, bleached
kraft paper, printed circuit boards (“PCBs”), chemicals,
liquid crystal displays (“LCDs”) and magnetic products.

—REH
ARAEREREEMRIAZHEER
AT ERAEEEWAXSHERAT
(TBSRFT ) 2 4R 7 « RATEEMHE
B2 it R E B S B ATE
B — R B -

AEENNEEESARE(TARE]) -
RAEMBRRABITZY  AREER
ERBUBHGEVBRRNEREES
B8 -

AEETENEERER - H5 - PIBE
M KB RAARER - EIRIRE
R (TENRIAREEIR]) ~ (L TEmR - BRER
RRE(REERRF]) MEERBUER
& o
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new standard, amendment and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & B3R &M s+
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

ERAFEREEITZERME S
REA(EFBMEGREER )

REAFE  AEEEREANTZERE
RAEtAg((FESFMAE ) EMYL
REE _ZTT+F— A BRMBRIMBE
FAERFER - BT RRB(HEEY
TSR ])

January 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7

HK(FRIC) - INT 7

HK(FRIC) - INT 8

HK(FRIC) — INT 9

HK(FRIC) - INT 10

Capital disclosures

Financial instruments:
Disclosures

Applying the restatement
approach under HKAS 29 —
Financial reporting in
hyperinflationary economies

Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of embedded
derivatives

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

R EAVACCHES
BRYHRRENRTHR

B (ERA B RERRE

BEARE
TRTR BB

EREREHER

REE)-REETH F20% —BRE
BREET
PA L e
ZEITE
B8 (BB e R BB R RE
2EZEE)-REZN FR 2 EBE
B8 (B e R AEBITETAZ
REZEE) 2B BTG
BB (BB LR hEEERE R
REZEE)-2RE10% HiE

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has had no material
effect on how the results and financial position of the
Group for the current or prior accounting periods have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively.
Certain information presented in prior year under the
requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and
the relevant comparative information based on the
requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has
been presented for the first time in the current year.

RNZENBRBYISRRERNH AR R
K 25| A ME GBS AR A RY B
MR T AL EEBAZE - Et - AKE
BAYBEHRETRE -

AEBEEPRATEEGERF1R(E
AN REAUBRBENFTROBER
Ko HURIFERBER B G ERFI25%
RERM 2| MM EMDHE - MRE
FRGEABIRETA) RBEEMHH
BERNETHR B RABRLRERNERFE
BRER -

Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
DT FFR BRLIEE

63



Kingboard

Kingboard

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & B3R &M s+
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. [ER#HBREEITZEEBMER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REN(EBMBRWEN )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (&)

The Group has not early applied the following new or ANEBENWEIZRIER T EBHEERE
revised standards or interpretations that have been issued 7 S RIS ETR RIS A RE -

but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial EEQHERNE1R(CEE) BEREMIN)
statements’

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs! BRGIIEAERR(LERT) EERA

HKFRS 8 Operating segments! BRI R IRERIE S gani

HK(IFRIC) — INT 11 HKFRS 2: Group and treasury 5 (FRHSRMERRE  HEIKHRE
share transactions? Z88)-ZBE1R EoH-£EK

BEERHR 52

HK(IFRIC) = INT 12 Service concession B (HBRPSRRENRE RSCEERS
arrangements? ZEg)-R2EF12%

HK(IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes? A5 (ERSEMENRE  BRAHESE!

ZE®)-2EF13%

HK(FRIC) - INT 14 HKAS 19 — The limit on 5 (AR ERRERNRE  BEER
a defined benefit asset, ZE8)-2BE14R F19H T
minimum funding XnAEMN
requirements and their LR - &
interaction? B2ERRER

HiEE@EF

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. 1 RIZETNF— A BxERFERZFESHHE

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007. 2 i:?%‘itii A—BsEERR 2 FEHARE

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008. 3 i:? TNF-A—BRHEERAZFEHME

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008. 4 Ei:%‘i;?)\itﬁl —HRERARZFEHRE

e

The directors of the Company anticipate that the AR EETAHEB UL S H R ERT 2%

application of these new or revised standards or RUSRREE AR B 2 S8 R B 5 ROR 3

interpretations will have no material impact on the results BARE -

and the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & B3R &M s+
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared using the historical cost basis except for certain
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up
to 31 December each year. Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

3.

FESBE
RAEMBRRNVIRBELKARELRE I
WTA SRR - ETHERET
ERTRARAFERFE -

RAMBHRRNREEGTMAGRM L
BFAEMBERRERNGH - 15 - LREWH
BREABI MBS LMRURFERR
{RBIRE 2 ERIKEE -

FEIREEE

FAEMBHRREEARARARAESZ
ER(MBARBEEF+-_A=1+—H
L2 BBREK - ERNRBAE DB
BRZMBREEBRAERL RS 2 hE
& BRAEEEE -

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of RERKESEEZHNBARIZESE 8
during the year are included in the consolidated income ERKWEAREEEETERHERHIE

statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

CRAE ARSI A A YRR -

WHRE - BEHMBAR P BHKRIEL
HE - REESHBREANKEEMBKE
RATAEEH B -

PIESRBEARRRRS - &8 - WARE
SRKRE IR B IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R& B TSR RMIzE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

On acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries,
goodwill was calculated as the difference between the
consideration paid for the additional interest and the
carrying amount of the net assets of the subsidiaries
attributable to the additional interest acquired. If the
Group’s additional interest in the net assets of the
subsidiaries exceeds the consideration paid for the
additional interest, the excess is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 “Business combinations” are recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

FEEHBE =)

FEREEE(E)
FAMBAREEFEZ DB R ER R
AEERERZEENFRLZY - BEFE
ZOBRREROREREHAHASRZ
BREREE - AR AAMHBEMER P&
BREGZESEE - PBBRREHGER
BHOBBRRRHBRR 2 RAERD 22
BILEASEESEE  EPBERAR
HMRNEBEEREGENEHEIMNTE AR
% SERAIERSN ©

BB AR - BRI EIMER
PSRBT BRI ME S BB A A
BEFEZREERZRAE © MAKE
ISP B A BB BB 2 BSME R E Bl
BIMERPIX 2 RME - BEEE D NER
A Was R NER o

EBRast

WM BARRABEESTEEAALR -
WRERANEBEBRMETZEE « FIE
AR BE  ARAEERERIRK
BAMEBTRATAZ ATFERE 5
MEHEHEREE 2 ERMKANGTE - 1F
BEBYERREREINR EBA G 1R
R WRBB T 2 AT BREE - BERK
REE  HUKER 2 R FHERER -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination,
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or jointly
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associates, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R& B TSR RMIzE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - EF+#F+_-H=+—HIFFZF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & B3R &M zE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 B2 =—FE+F+=-HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Deemed disposal of interests in associates

Gain or loss on deemed disposal of interests in associates
represents the increase or decrease, respectively in the
Group’s share of the respective associate’s net assets
and adjusted for the release of goodwill and reserves
attributable to such change.

FEEHBE =)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & B3R &M zE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 B2 =—FE+F+=-HA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which ventures have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or
exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & B3R &M s+

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Goodwill

Gooawill arising on acquisitions after 1 January 2001 and
prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which
the agreement date is before 1 January 2005 represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions
after 1 January 2001, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and such
goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

Gooawill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January
2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for
which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary
at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary is presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R& B TSR RMIzE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January
2005 (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & B3R &M s+

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment (other than properties,
plant and equipment under construction) at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
properties, plant and equipment other than the properties,
plant and equipment under construction over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.
(see note 19 for the depreciation rates per annum of the
items of properties, plant and equipment)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & B3R &M s+
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
Properties, plant and equipment under construction,
representing property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production or for its own use purposes,
are carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Properties, plant and equipment under construction is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An owner-occupied property is transferred to investment
property at fair value when it is evidenced by end of
owner-occupation. The difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount at the date of transfer is
recognised in property revaluation reserve in accordance
with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R& B TSR RMIzE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE )

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
Leasehold land and buildings under development for
future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course
of development for production or for administrative
purposes, the leasehold land component is classified as a
prepaid lease payment and amortised over a straight-line
basis over the lease term. During the construction period,
the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & B3R &M s+
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZELF+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised
on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such
intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & BRI zE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ EE+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired (see the accounting policies in respect
of impairment losses for tangible and intangible assets
below).

Impairment losses (other than goodwill (see the
accounting policies in respect of goodwill))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & BRI zE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ EE+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis over the term of relevant lease.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case, the entire contract is treated
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in
land are accounted as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A BTSERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z _—Z&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
dates, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in
equity.

FLFEL A= —HULFE

FEEHBE =)

SN

RASEEER  MBHRRE LA*Z“%‘%“
ZHBEEEEUINEE (INE ) ETZR S
mEEER (R E’EEI%%&_‘%Z%QE%%
ZER)NZ 5 AR 2 ERGDE - N&
BEB - UINETIE 2 BRIER AEER
ERAZEXEHMRE - RAFEIRAR
SNESIEZ IFEMEIAE HIREE A FHEE
BEXREHHE - LHNSBERATEZ
FEBIRB T TENRE -

REEREERMEEKBRAMELZE
R%%ﬁ@ﬁééiﬂﬂ?&ﬁﬁtﬁﬁﬁqﬂﬁﬁu © AR
KRARE I EHEREFEND < EHH
BREEZEXZERIN  EUBERT
% EEHEBTINR A M ISR Z BRAHE
R EFBRERNFEIIRZIFEEHEB
ELZESZRTASANELR - ESHR
BHREREREL 2 ZRAKIN  BRAA
ERRAERER BT ERLE
BN BRAERER -

78

Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

“ETLFFR BECIEE



Kingboard

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & BRI zE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ EE+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & BRI zE

For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ EE+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & BRI zE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ EE+F+ -A=+—HIFFEZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R& B TR RMIzE
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z -~ ZEE+F+ -A=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into (i) financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), (ii)
loans and receivables and (i) available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A =1+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE )

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including convertible bond — loan portion, non-current
deposits, trade and other receivables and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (See
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A =1+—HIFFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include significant financial difficulty
of the issuer or counterparty; or it becoming probable
that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE )

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 120 days and observable
changes in National or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and
other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE )

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial liabilities held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bills payable and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHEE )

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet
date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of
the cash flow of floating-rate bank borrowings (i.e. interest
rate swaps).

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the entity
documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument that is used
in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFHEE )

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as other gains or losses.

Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in
the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit
or loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group
revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or
loss deferred in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was deferred in equity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE )

(continued)
Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted and vested prior to 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in the consolidated income statement in
respect of the value of option granted. Upon the exercise
of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value
of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per
share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded in
the share premium account. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the
register of outstanding options.

Share options granted and vested on or after 1 January
2005

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees of
the Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in the share option reserve.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in the share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE )

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivables for goods sold and services provided in the
normal course of business, net of discounts, return and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. st FEABAE R Z E B KIR
UNCERTAINTY
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting IR EEERASE 2 @5 ER (KIS
policies which are described in Note 3, management has ) BIEPEL AT ERT - S EErE4
made the following estimation that have significant effect EUIEMERAER I RBEREATE -
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial TXHINEBABRTEBREINNEEHG
statements. The following are the key assumptions HAEARZ2EMEIERR  MZER
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation BETEEATS e ER AN EERETE
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a ERE XA 2 ERRARE -
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.
Estimated impairment of goodwill EERELE
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an ErHEL0ERRAER  AEsTEER
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating EORZREELEMNFERER A58
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in STEEREERERTERREZREESL
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future By ARBELHRERSBEZ FEZREY
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating fhEt - DAETEIRE - HERRKRESRE
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the DR TEEREEE - Bnf e e E A REEIE -
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are R-ZT+E+_A=+—08  WEHEB
less than expected, an impairment loss may arise. At 31 NEIREENRMEEZEEZREED
December 2007, the carrying amounts of goodwill arising Bl 49 & 2,005,658,0007 7T K 152,820,000
from acquisition of subsidiaries and associates were i) = YNGID S NG e N E e
approximately HK$2,005,658,000 and HK$152,820,000 HEZE SRR 21 B2 EE o
respectively. Details of the recoverable amount
calculations of subsidiaries and associates are disclosed
in Notes 21 and 22 respectively.
Income taxes Frie®t
At 31 December 2007, deferred tax assets of R-BE+E+-_A=+—0  BBELRH
approximately HK$9,303,000 (2006: HK$9,678,000) in AR IAE 18 2 IR I R 0B A A 499,303,000
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the TT(=EE /N4 1 9,678,0008 ) B AR E
Group’s consolidated balance sheet. No deferred tax asset EireBEERBBERTER - AR THEE
has been recognised on the tax losses of HK$20,085,000 RACHEF] - BARRE20,085,0008 T (= EE
(2006: HK$6,258,000) due to the unpredictability of future 7NEE: 6,258,00058 70 ) Z IS ES 1R RE IR T
profit stream. The realisability of the deferred tax asset HMIELE SHEEHBEEETERTRE
mainly depends on whether sufficient future assessable B BRI AT A4 5 F 5 2R m] 4 51 A
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available CERNEREEMTE - MEAZARKE
in the future. In cases where the actual future assessable Rl - m M AR ZRIER R - B3R
profits generated are less or more than expected, a JERIIA & ZE Al fe /R E R R S — DR
reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets may W %A B SRR BRI N B e R AR ©
arise, which would be recognised in profit and loss for the
period in which such a reversal or recognition takes place.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. SMTA
6a. Categories of financial instruments 6a. ST EER
2007 2006
—ETtF —ERRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#&T FAET
Financial assets WG EE
Fair value through profit or loss HEEE BIRATE
(FVTPL) - held for trading FTABR B EE
— conversion and redemption — ] A% K B O] R 1 A
option derivative PTETH 205,461 -
— derivative financial —PTESMIT A
instruments 2,812 39,183
208,273 39,183
Loans and receivables (including ER&EWERR (B2iEH4
cash and cash equivalents) FIRE&EEER)
— convertible bond — loan portion — ARG ES - EEES 86,188 -
— non-current deposits —EmEETE 993,168 265,430
— trade and other receivables — B 5 REMEWEETR 6,102,586 5,210,028
— bank balances and cash —RITHEBR KRR 3,494,596 6,097,231
10,676,538 11,572,689
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 564,657 395,150
Financial liabilities WxBE
Fair value through profit or loss HEE R BIR A FEA
(FVTPL) - held for trading B A E 1,184 195
Amortised cost BESHR AN
— trade and other payables —B 5 RHEMEMIRK 2,759,661 2,392,112
— bills payable —ENRIE 880,992 653,608
— bank borrowings —iRITEE 7,249,712 5,382,644
10,890,365 8,428,364
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ®MIR#)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity and debt investments, convertible bond
— loan portion, derivative financial instruments,
conversion and redemption option derivative, non-
current deposits, bank balances and cash, bank
borrowings, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables and bills payable. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

6b.

MEREERERBE

FEEZTECHTABERERR
BERE  MBEES-EER
Do{TEESRTE R RED
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REMERE - TXEHIEZES
BT ELARRE 2 R\ Be R anfrfR (K%
R BOR - EREEEMEEZ
FREB - PARER K B A B RO HRER
BE 2B

Market risk 5 E R
Currency risk HEERR

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately
33.5% of the Group’s sales are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
group entity making the sale, whilst aimost 32.7%
of purchases are denominated in currencies other
than the group entity’s functional currency.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet dates are disclosed
in respective notes. During the year, the Group
has entered into certain foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge against part of its exposure to
potential variability of foreign currency risk arising
from changes in foreign exchange exposure. The
management continuously monitors the foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
foreign currency risk should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eMIR»)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HMBERAKREEBEERBEK(E)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) AR ()
Currency risk (continued) BHRER(E)
Sensitivity analysis BBE T
The Group mainly exposes to currency of United AEBETEMHEETRBUTHEE
States Dollars and Euro. The following table o NRFMAEBEHAREY,
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase HERAINE T RS % I BURRE © 5% 5
and decrease in RMB against the relevant AEBRIBREZEIE A BERIN
foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used BRBTANSEREL R » TEE
when reporting foreign currency risk internally EEHINERERA[FEHIR 2 SR E
to key management personnel and represents BRI o BURE DT EE M AL
management’s assessment of the reasonably EHINEDENEBIEE - HEKR
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The PER5%EB)E L IRFE - URE
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding AITERIEE S REMEKER - iR
foreign currency denominated monetary items and TS  BHMEMBEMNER - E
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% NEBRRRITEE - EFEEMNS
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity T EEEAREHABEEH
analysis includes trade and other receivables, BE5%H - &8 Al A A Frighn
bank balances, trade and other payables, bills EFEENBFE TAER - AR
payables as well as bank borrowings. A positive W MBS M 5% B - A AR ET R
number below indicates an increase in profit BAEHEREERA L -
before taxation where RMB strengthen 5% against
the relevant currency for net asset position and
vice versa. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit before taxation.
2007 2006
—EETLF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THT FAT
United States Dollars E7T (74,429) (14,780)
Euro BT 12,535 638
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eMIR»)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HMBERAKREEBEERBEK(E)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) AR ()

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to floating-rate bank borrowings (see
Note 32 for details of these borrowings). In relation
to these floating-rate borrowings, the Group aims
at keeping certain borrowings at fixed rates. In
order to achieve this result, the Group entered
into interest rate swaps to hedge against part of
its exposure to potential variability of cash flows
arising from changes in floating rate (see Note
30 for details). The management continuously
monitors interest rate fluctuation and will consider
further hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings
(see Note 32 for details of these borrowings). The
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider repay the fixed-rate bank
borrowings when significant interest rate exposure
is anticipated.

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on bank balances.
The directors consider the Group’s exposure of
the short-term bank deposits to interest rate risk
is not significant as interest bearing bank balances
are within short maturity period.

R ER

AEEFERITEEAZRER
BN XAk (ZEEEFBRME
32)  MZEFLEEMET - A%
BHENEE TEENERFRIBBE °
REBULER - AKBEET AR
B2 BRI RESMES
ZReNBEELY (FBRME
30) - BEEEF/BLIENXRKE -
W AS A T BB B — S A
g o

AEBEAZBESRITERME
EZRFEMNEXRR(ZEEERF
BRMES2) - EXEEEZENKE
B IEHHREBANEEAR - A
SEBERERTERRTEE

BN ERRRITAESRZRITHISF
KRE AEBZRITEHRARE
MEMERERE - EFRE - HRE
BRITHEB B MRS - 8
SERHRITHERAAR ZH KA,
BRI TEKX o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest bearing bank balances and bank
borrowings at the balance sheet date and the
stipulated changes taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and held constant throughout
the financial year to floating rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing bank balances
and bank borrowings had been 50 basis points
higher/ lower and all other variables were held
constant, the profit before taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2007 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$18,277,000
(2006: increase/decrease by approximately
HK$3,562,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its interest
bearing bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles and the Group has a team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

6. S£MIA#

6b.

MEEAREEERRBEE)

TS AR (&)

AR R ()

BBESHT

EEHRENN - AREBEAEER
SHRRITABRRRITEERFER
B AR BEE R RER
25 SPHNBEHRFREFT

2 EERATE -

st S ER1T A 88 R IR 1T 18 B FI &
./ B50E%F - mAAEME
=T HBE-_ZTHF+-A
=+ — B IEFE R BR T AT S R
A/ NN#918,277,0008 L (= F
TRF - I/ A 43,562,000
JL)  FEEHREASEEAERTE
IRITRSBRFERITEEZFER

B o
B EHER

AREEBER EHRABETR
FERAREER - ERBREEET
RERREEA ERILERR -
AREE—SEHEREERR
FEEHEELDRR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eMIR»)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HMERAKREEREBERBE(E)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) 5 e ()
Equity price risk (continued) eNEYIEAC =P
Sensitivity analysis BUREDHT

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 5% higher/lower, investment valuation
reserve for the Group would be increased/
decreased by approximately HK$27,217,000
(2006: increase/decrease by approximately
HK$11,150,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations at 31 December 2007 in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is
the carrying amount of those assets as stated
in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the board of directors has
delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank
balances exposed is considered minimal as such
amounts are placed with banks with good credit
ratings.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

TXOGUREDN - THRE®RE R
PR AERERTEE

R RA R AN T A B S FH/BK5% -
AEENREHERBERIHEE
WERAFERNES - EinsHD 4
27,217,000/ 70 ( ZEZ /N F 1%
AR #911,150,000/87T) °

IEEmR
MWZBZTR_EELF+ A
=t ARERTRERSRCHE
R EE A - AIAKEAX
RzBEBEERBRANGEEER
BERFABEZEFEERAEE - RlE
ERRRERE  EFEECRIRE
EEARGERERE  EEEL
REMEIEIZR - URRIERRE
B IEUR BB HIR N 2 (I8 o sk
REEER  AKEENSEER
BHAEIAKEEE - LR
AR E 2 B R SR E RS o
BUTE  ARBEERR A%
Bz EERBEXERE -

R RITERRIRITAERTIFRR
EERFZRIT  MZEFRZE
ERBEBMTRE

AEBEYESESET ZEERR
FHRRAZEAXZ T REFD
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensure compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December
2007, the Group has available unutilised
bank borrowings facilities of approximately
HK$8,968,937,000 (2006: HK$5,083,919,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash outflows are presented.

6. S£MIA#

6b.

MEEAREEERRBEE)

REBET/ER

AEBEREERDESAR  BEE
REMREFEBEENKYF - §H
HEREEERR/BENKE
B ARBRET - RERE
MERPOTE - BB BEERT
EENERIBR - BERTEERR

2h
ah °©

REBKBRITEEEATBES
MEZERR MN_ZZLF+_A8
=+—RH  AEEXRDAMRTE
BE#8E 4 58,968,937,000/ 7T (=
TENAF ¢ 5,083,919,000/87T) °

TRALAEESRTANMBEE
MZIBIER - BOEPTAEM B REM
5 IRBAKEANMBKAEE
&R BRI RREREASE
T=IE - RIBBEMERASRER

= °

WERAEEENTAETE 21
HIERRERHFRBR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eMIR»)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HMBERAKREEBEERBEK(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEEE R ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables mBE e kA ERBRT

Over Over
3 months 1 year Total
Weighted butnot  butnot undis-
average more than more than counted
effective iyear  Syears cash flows

interestrate Lessthan ZEAME —%HE Over 35 Canying
MEFEY  3months [EFEE EFBE Syears RLEE  amount
ERfiE Z=@EAR £ if B8nf #8 REE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TE#T TEn T#xT TET TERT & TER

Asat31December2007  R-EEL%E
+=A=t-H

Non-derivative financial liabilties  7£7451 /B &

Trade and other payables BB REMERER

2,322,518 431,143 -

2,759,661 2,759,661

Bills payable RES: - 880,992 - - - 880,992 880,992
Bank borrowings BTER
- fixed rate -E8 4.3 42,870 5512 56,840 - 105222 101,452
- Variable rate 28 4.7 496,559 1,285,655 6,240,411 115,155 8,137,780 7,148,260

3,742,939 1,728310 6,297,251 115,155 11,883,655 10,890,365

Derivative - net seftlement /74 TA-#ZEFF
Foreign currency forward SNERBHEL)
contracts - 60 291 894 - 1,245 1,184
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. eMI Rz
6b. Financial risk management objectives and 6b. HMBERAKREEBEERBE(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) TEEIE R ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) mEESEMERREMRK(E)
Over Over
3 months 1 year Total
Weighted but not but not undis-
average morethan  morethan  counted
effective 1 year Syears  cashflows
interestrate  Lessthan ={EAM L ) iBs Carrying
9 3months BTER B HE amount
={@An — : KA
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
AL ThL AL BT TAL
As at 31 December 2006 RZFTRE
tZA=1-R

Non-derivative financial liabiies /745178
Trade and other payables B 5 RE MR

2,067,364 324,748

2392112 2,392,112

Bill payable ENEE - 653,608 - - 653608 653,608
Bank borrowings FTER
- variable rate -%8 52 658,651 685,463 5,002,697 6,346,811 5,382,644

3379623 1010211 5002697 9,392,531 8,428,364

Derivative - net settlement THTA-HETE
Foreign currency forward NERBEN
contracts - 34 167 - 201 195
1 02 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. emMIR»)
6¢c.  Fair value 6c. AYFHE
The fair value of financial assets and financial HBEERMBERBEZ ATFERT
liabilities are determined as follows: TIERETE

the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (except for derivatives)
are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as input;

the fair value of conversion and redemption
option derivative is estimated using Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model and Binomial
Model; and

the fair value of other derivative financial

ARG AR 7E
BRAmSEE CMKEEE
EEBaBZ A FEDFIZ
Eminiise ERENER
BETE

REETERZNEBRN -
BRI REDNT - EE
HMBEERMB AR
(PTETERRINBAFE
FHRARSREDITEAR
SIS0 A M ER A RIE

B 5% — ST I ATERMEE
B REM - TR
RREERBEITAETAR
FE R

RS- EREEREY

instruments are determined based on the

ETHEMMGE - BEEHEMT
valuation provided by counterparty financial AT ENATE -
institutions for equivalent instruments.

The director of the Company consider that the ARATEERE » AR AN

carrying amounts of financial assets and financial RIZE M HE 2 WS EE R
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the BEZEREAEATEMRES -

consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

7. REVENUE 7. BExEa
Revenue represents the net amounts received and BEEERERNSENGHINGE P IHE
receivable by the Group from the sale of goods to outside ERORIT - EERIEERBERE) MR
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related MR 2T R EWRSEFRE - 2w
taxes and services rendered by the Group, for each year is T

analysed as follows:

2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
Sale of laminates SHEEIRER 7,590,476 6,288,922
Sale of PCBs $HE EIRI4R R R 7,601,201 6,649,997
Sale of chemicals HETER 3,806,630 2,725,653
Others (Note) EH A (Pf3E) 1,026,805 1,108,776
20,025,112 16,773,348

Note: ~ Amount included service income amounted to HK$28,637,000 Mzt . BIERFBUA28,637,000/8T( —TT/NEF ¢

(2006: HK$24,320,000). 24,320,00087T) °

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8 HEBRHESEH

SEGMENTS
Business segments £ R
For management purposes, the Group is currently EEEAE - AEE BRI KO AEES
organised into four operating divisions — laminates, PCBs, PI—BEER - EDRIEER  (ETEMKR
chemicals and others. These divisions are the basis on Hipth o WEHFIARERRBEFEST
which the Group reports its primary segment information. B BAE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - F =

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8.
SEGMENTS (continued)
Business segments (continued)
Segment information about these divisions is presented

jboard

B RS ER AR E
EEF A=+ AR

EERBESS =)

EBDE(E)
ZEBFIZ D BERIMT 27 -

below.
Laminates PCBs Chemicals Others Eliminations Consolidated
EREK ARREE  LIER £t 1t ]
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TR T#R T#T T#R TR
Year ended 31 December 2007 BE_EBLE
TZA=t-HILEE
Segment revenue nEblE
External sales HMEER 7590476 7,601,201 3,806,630 1,026,805 - 20,025,112
Inter-segment sales N HER 2,685,747 - 1,619,058 277,521 (4,582,332) -
Total At 10,276,223 7,601,201 5425688 1,304,332  (4,582,332) 20,025,112
Result iz
Segment result NEEE 2,126,782 578,574 658,061 90,891 - 3,454,308
Loss on disposal and deemed HEREELER
disposal of interest in an associate  BAAFIER 7 EE - (23658) - - - (23658)
Gain on fair value change of AR EDERE
conversion and redemption TETAZ AR
option derivative ey - - - - - 182,367
Discount on acquisition of additional U —EHB AR
interest i a subsidiary BoMERTE - - - 962 - 962
Unallocated corporate income KPEZ RAARA 349,673
Unallocated corporate expenses ) AN (256,017)
Finance costs BERK (287,664)
Share of results of associates AN E - 2,182 296,101 - - 298,283
Share of results of jointly controlled ({5 ERE4IEEEE
entities - - - (1,070) - (1,070)
Profit before taxation S TNyl 3,717,184
Income tax expense PR (245,030)
Proft for the year EREF 3,472,154
Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to market DEEZHETHREMEE o
prices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. EERMESE 2)
SEGMENTS (continued)
Business segments (continued) EBoE(E)

Laminates PCBs Chemicals Others Consolidated

EWER CRRESR 2 (IER Rt we

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TEx i 7 TET TER TER

Year ended 31 December 2007 BE-_Z2E5tE
TZAZ+-HILEE
Other information Hi B
Capital additions BRER 1,515,028 756,006 2,623,316 1,233,569 6,127,919
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 492,876 440,737 178,045 58,705 1,170,363
Impairment loss recognised inrespect L& 5 REMEIRER
of trade and other receivables BRZAERR 19,854 39,107 30,043 - 89,004
Loss on disposal and write off of LERMEYE - BE
properties, plant and equipment RkEER 896 6,279 3,689 - 10,864
At 31 December 2007 RZE5t%E
+ZA=t-8
Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 10,827,245 9,633,504 8205951 2,270,417 30,937,117
Interests in jointly controlled entities IR B 2 R - - - 14,284 14,284
Investments in associates NAUNGIVASY - - 741,128 - 741,128
Unallocated corporate assets AR AREE 3,249,457
Consolidated total assets REEERE 34,941,986
Liabilties af&
Segment liabilities PHEE (1,300,323)  (1,409,256) (1,122,152)  (736,652) (4,568,383)
Unallocated corporate liabilties G ) WANGIIY (8,146,807)
Consolidated total liabilities FagRERA (12,715,190)
1 06 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. EERMESE 2)
SEGMENTS (continued)
Business segments (continued) EBoE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2006

TZA=t-ALLEE
Segment revenue s
External sales HMAER 6283922 6649997 2725653 1,108,776 - 16,773,348
Inter-segment sales P HER 1,954,390 - 1285722 15,571 (3,255,683) -
Total =) 8243312 6649997 4011375 1,124,347  (3,265,683) 16,773,348
Result E<
Segment result PHEE 1,807,375 686,182 342,027 80,248 - 2915882
Gain on disposal and deemed HERBELEF
disposal of partial interest MBS ER
in a subsidiary 2 4,830,916 - - - - 4830916
Discount on acquisition of
an associate WA N aliTE - 48,182 - - - 48,182
Discount on acquisttion of additional i —FH B
interest in a subsiclary NABMERITE 1498 S - = - 1,498
Unallocated corporate income N AN YN 156,853
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ RAEZARIRH (82,030)
Finance costs BBRA (313,266)
Share of results of associates ElEBERREE - %0 30,834 - - 39,924
Share of results of jointly controlled  FE{f R
entiies EREA = = = (1,755) - (1,755)
Profit before taxation S EThal 7,596,154
Income tax expense FEHY (240,435)
Profit for the year FRH

BE-TT/E

Laminates
EHRER

HK§'000
TEn

PCBs  Chemicals Others

Mplik  (LIEm
HK§'000  HK§'000
TR Ly

Eliminations - Consolidated
i
HK$'000  HK$'000

TAL

Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to market

prices.

7,355,119

DEEZHEI2EMEANE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. XBRHIESE=)

SEGMENTS (continued)
Business segments (continued) EBoE(E)
Laminates PCBs  Chemicals Others  Consolidated
EAR  HRI&RR VIEm it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET BT T
Year ended 31 December 2006 HE-ZTRE
TZA=T-HILEE
Other information HipER
Capital additions BIKER 799,415 788,840 780,546 122,707 2,491,508
Depreciation and amortisation e REH 444,331 385,049 148,367 53951 1,031,698
Impairment loss recognised inrespect  St2 5 RE ML
of trade and other recelvables RLAEBE 30,687 1,185 2,138 = 34,010
At 31 December 2006 RZETRE
+=A=+-H
Assets BE
Segment assets NEBE 8,337,233 9,342,019 4,733,011 537,846 22,950,109
Interests in jointly controlled entities WEREHEE 2 - - = 15,354 15,354
Investments in associates NN - 247,158 239,771 = 486,929
Unallocated corporate assets FAEZARIEE 4,668,659
Consolidated total assets HABERE 28,121,051
Liabilties AE
Segment liabilities PHEE (1,053,085) (1,183,719) (1,054,577)  (107,024) (3,398,385)
Unallocated corporate liabilities G AN L (5,709,745)
Consolidated total liabilities FRafEBE (9,108,130)
1 08 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8. XBRHIESE=)

SEGMENTS (continued)

Geographical segments ED I

The analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical NEBEERN NEBRBEEMAEMEE
market based on geographical location of customers for TG R E D 2 EEBEATAT ¢

each year is as follows:

2007 2006
—ZTtF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT
The People’s Republic of China FhEE A R A
(the “PRC”) ([ Ed) 15,574,595 12,506,931
Other Asian countries HagoMER 2,735,260 2,556,456
Europe BOM 1,290,959 1,222,052
America =M 424,298 487,909
20,025,112 16,773,348
An analysis of segment assets and capital additions by HRAEE 2 EERIHUAFE - B
geographical area in which the assets are located has not BIREEMTMSEHRD EEERE ARG
been presented as the Group’s assets are substantially AT o

located in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - HA=1+—HIFFZE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Halg A
2007 20(0[6)
k- 44 o3 —EETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Other income comprises: HARABIE -
Rental income el A 30,341 6,014
Gain on fair value changes of BN EE )
investment properties Z Uz 5,118 7,163
Gain on disposal of properties, plant HEWE - BENERE
and equipment P - 144
Net exchange gain bE H s F 58 46,703 28,787
Others EHih 2,291 8,167
84,453 50,275
10. INVESTMENT INCOME 10. H¥EFIA
2007 2006
—ETLFE —EBERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FErx BT
Dividends from available-for-sale AMHHEREZIRE
investments 15,092 1,002
Interest income on listed debt security  tR{ERI{LHERE 7
classified as available-for-sale LhEBELEZ
investments FEUWA 32,263 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE
investments s
— listed equity securities — FTRAES 81,063 6,876
— listed debt security — FTERES 4,601 -
Imputed interest income on convertible  ATHAAK(E & FEETF B UL A
bond 1,282 -
Gain on disposal of investments HEREEEIRE
held for trading pdl & 107,296 85,197
Gain on fair value changes of foreign SN R HAS 4N E
currency forward contracts )2 W 86 23
Interest income on bank deposits SRITERF B WA 97,419 51,499
339,102 144,597
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z — £ &

11.

Kingboard

Kingboard

GAIN ON DISPOSAL AND DEEMED
DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group
spun off its interests in Kingboard Laminates Holdings
Limited (“KLHL”), a subsidiary of the Company principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of laminates and
laminate-related products, for a separate listing on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (the “Spin-off”).
The Group disposed of 675,000,000 shares in KLHL
to the public investors at a price of HK$7.73 per share
in KLHL, giving a total consideration of approximately
HK$5,217,750,000 before expenses, which amounted
to approximately HK$231,841,000. It resulted in a gain
on disposal of partial interest in KLHL of approximately
HK$4,166,273,000, including a gain on release of
translation reserve of approximately HK$59,460,000.

In addition, KLHL also issued a total of 150,000,000 new
shares to the public investors at an issue price of HK$7.73
per share in KLHL, resulting in a gain on deemed disposal
of partial interest in KLHL by the Group of approximately
HK$664,643,000.

As a result of the Spin-off, the Group’s interest in KLHL
was reduced from 100% to 72.5%.

PR RAR L

tFEFZA=F—HILFE

11.

HH &5 B il {6 HH &5 — R PR IS 24 R B
SRzl

REBEEZZTZF+_A=1+T—HLEFE
AN AEESIFERNEZEEERIERER
REI([BBEEER ) 2 #eas B AT E IR
B ET(T 9] - @ERERAERATR
MEBAR  ZENEFRERHEEERER
RERBREBBEER - AEEIRGRE
BREEIRRO7.73BTRAAREEELE
675,000,000 A% 2 E & E R AR 0 - R4
% 1 2 #9231,841,0007% 7T Al 2 2B 4
#£5,217,750,00078 7T ° tlj%%iigﬁﬁwﬁﬁ
DR 2 W2E#) 54,166,273,000/ 7T
Etm%}ﬁ&::ﬁ%%u&z)\%é@,%@59,460,000,%

JC °

o - BEEBR MR ETESR?.73
BT A A RIZ & & #1746 ££150,000,000
BREFEBERTRG - Bt - REER
EHEREBEERDPOER ZWEZN A
664,643,0007 7T °

DR ARBEREERER 2 S H
100%RZE72.5% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

12. FINANCE COSTS 12. MUERE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARAFANEEEE
repayable within five years ZETEEZFE 289,932 382,622
Interest on bank borrowings not FERAFAZEEEZ
wholly repayable within five years IRITEEZFE 4,203 -
Other finance charges HigEEH 3,177 36,637
297,312 419,259
Release of hedging reserve Y 2 B (o) - (43,823)
Fair value changes of interest rate FIEBHE L
swap contracts N EEE (6,636) (59,126)
290,676 316,310
Less: Interests capitalised B BAMEF B (3,012) (3,044)
287,664 313,266
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the FRAZENMBERATN —REERE
general borrowing pool and were calculated by applying £ RIETLFUSEREERTIZE
a capitalisation rate of 5% for 2007 (2006: 5%) to A% (=TT NF  5%)aTH ©
expenditures on qualifying assets.
1 1 2 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. Fi@MmM%
2007 2006
—®BEE  —TIAA
HK$'000

HK$’000
Fi#gn TAT

The amount comprises: THIABIE

Hong Kong Profits Tax BANEH

Charge for the year REFEZBIERH 94,330 16,310
Overprovision in previous years BAEFEBERE (4,558) (8,433)
89,772 7,877
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions HibrlAwER 2 Fi1B
Charge for the year NEE 2 FRIAS 167,258 246,190
(Over)underprovision in previous years  B1EFE GREERMS)
BETE (3,544) 4,404
163,714 250,594
Deferred taxation (Note 33) FEIEFI TR (MI7E33)
Credit for the year REFHEE (9,622) (18,036)
Attributable to a change in tax rate HEREFFE 1,166 =
(8,456) (18,036)
245,030 240,435

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President of
the People’s Republic of China. On 6 December 2007,
the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation
Regulations of the New Law. The New Law and
Implementation Regulations will change the tax rates for
certain subsidiaries of the Group from current tax rates
ranging from 15% to 33% to 25% starting from 1 January
2008. The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to
reflect the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
respective periods when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled.

EBFER IR ZMEN G ERE R
WIE17.5% 2 FERTE -

Hitp R AR 2 RIATIZ B REE R 2
ERRERGTHE -

RZZTZLF=A+/H PREEMPE
AREMBAEESF63F(PEARLTR
EEMRBPENHBE]) - REZTLEF
+ZAXNA - FRAREBRBEMAFEEE
) o RBHBOEARERIES  B=FF
NEFE—A—Big BAREEETHER
AIZ R BEHRREN T15%E33%&F T 3|
—525% - BLEFIEEREERARE - UK
BIBEARN BN EER L ERE SHRE
Rz -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - FEFE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 13. Ff3#RMAX% =)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before N 7 B8 37 ERRR B AT A 2 R
taxation as follows: T
2007 2006
—ZTtHF ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET BT
Profit before taxation BB B & ) 3,717,184 7,596,154
Tax charge at the domestic income LAE HFT 1S E33%
tax rate of 33% (2006: 33%) (Note a) (ZEZ/RF : 33%)
STEZ B (MisTa) 1,226,671 2,506,731
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ NAJF & 2 7%
for tax purpose A 34,029 60,506
Tax effect of income not taxable for BIERTI S 2 TR
tax purpose ze (107,276) (999,641)
Tax effect of share of results of DR E N T EE
associates g (98,433) (13,175)
Tax effect of share of results of jointly Sax (= bk el e
controlled entities 2RISR 353 579
Overprovision in previous years BEFEBEEE (8,102) (4,029)
Tax effect of tax holiday (Note b) B BB E(HMEb) (309,091) (287,014)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K FHERFRIBEIE 2 T & 4,563 1,639
Effect of different tax rates of R B ASNEL At R A
subsidiaries operating in other EREENEB AR Z
jurisdictions/areas other than the PRC AR &~ 72 (108,080) (709,560)
Tax exempted profits (Note ¢) Bt A (EEe) (390,770) (315,601)
Decrease in opening deferred tax asset & Fi 5 Rp D> BB FEX)
resulting from decrease in applicable REFHEER L
tax rate 1,166 -
Tax expense for the year RNEE 7R 245,030 240,435

Notes: PeE -

(@) The domestic income tax rate of 33% represents the PRC (@) B TS5 R33% I8 AN S B K I D AT E D
Enterprise Income Tax of which the Group’s operations are &2 PR EATSH o
substantially based.

(b) Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain (0) BiETRREEERE AR - AARE TR
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are exempted from PRC BAT G B AN EE (BRF B (A
Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting from the first profit- ZTRIEER ) # AT R E A ER A RS
making year in which profits exceed any carried forward tax B Hig = FHERRER®50% ©
losses followed by a 50% reduction in the income tax rate in the
following three years.

(© Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau © ARAEVETRFEK B QR 2% ERRFE
are exempted from profit tax. e

1 1 4 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - FEFE+F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived

14. FTFEERF

AR B A 2 A HIRR

2007
—ETLF

HK$’000
FERx

2006
e

HK$’000
FAT

at after charging (crediting): (PnE)ATIER :
Depreciation of properties, plant Y2 - BB K&
and equipment e 1,169,731 1,031,198
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEEHE(BEE
(included in administrative costs) AFTERAAR) 632 500
1,170,363 1,031,698
Net exchange gain b 5 W) F R
—included in cost of sales —BEFFAEERAE (59,226) (21,474)
—included in other income —BFFAEMUA (46,703) (28,787)
(105,929) (50,261)
Auditor’s remuneration ZERRTEN & 9,264 7,800
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FhE 5 & H fih FEUR BR FX
of trade and other receivables WERZBEEE 89,004 34,010
Gain on fair value change of commodity BREEEN AN FEES) 2
forward contract (included in cost U z5 (BT ASHERA)
of sales) (368) -
Loss on disposal and write off of & RIMEEYE
properties, plant and equipment MR Kk 2 E51E 10,864 =
Release of prepaid lease payments TR E FRIA 2 14,463 8,595
Total staff costs, including directors’ BTIRKALRE - 81
emoluments (see Note 15) Z=ME (RKEE15) 1,444,868 1,357,187
Cost of inventories sold BEETFERA 10,080,845 8,040,870
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 1 1 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A =1+—HIFFZE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 15 ERXRER#M&

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven ENSEN T —R(ZEZERF: +=8)
(2006: thirteen) directors were as follows: BEzMe0T

Year ended 31 December 2007
HECSRLELA=T-ALEE

Cheung Chan  Cheung  Chang Mok Cham Ho  Cheung  Cheng Tse Cheng
Kwok Wing  Kwong Wing Hung, i Wai Lin, Ming Kam Henry  Wai Chee,
Wing Kwan Kwan Yiu  Chadwick Sang  Stephanie  Fun, Paul Hung Tan Christopher Total
FEX RikE RRE  BkE 2E4 A REE DRl AEM RSH BE% A
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEx TEx  TEx  TER BT #r  TEn TEn TEn TR TEr  TEx
Fees e - N - - - - - 480 180 180 240 1,080
Other emoluments: Efie
Saesandotherbenefis  HEREMEN 2974 2008 226 226 2404 2078 703 - - - - 14089
Controutions to refirement ~ R4fiEF I3l
benefts scheme 3 102 89 9% 95 103 89 30 - - - - 603
Performance related TERB&R
incentive payment (Note) (R 7261 1531 13500 13361 13361 13000  22%5 100 200 100 - 98,469
Total emoluments HeasE 9737 17528 15821 15682 15868 15167 2,958 580 380 20 40 114241

Year ended 31 December 2006

—HItEE
Cheung Cheung ~ Cheung  Cheung ~ Cheung  Chang Mok Cham Lum  Cheng Tse
Kwok lam  Kwok  Kwok  Kwong — Kwok Wing ~ Hung, Gum Ming Kam  Henry
Wing W KaPo  Keung Na  Kwan Ping Yiu  Chadwick Wun  Fun, Paul Hung Total
588 | FEx FE ¥EE FET MM i | | A
HK$000 00 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000
ThR Thr T TEr T Thr TEr THr TEr TEr T TEr  TEn
Fees e = = = = = = = - - - 480 180 180 840
Other emoluments: s :
Selariesand other benefits  EEREMER 2755 2485 1490 1739 2523 202 1739 260 2782 - - - - 201%
Contributions to refirement & fi&A15+2)
benefts scheme # 100 87 66 74 8 3 80 9 101 - - - - 781
Performance related IR
incentive payment REE
(Note) (Hiz) 26900 15000 13000 13000 13860 13500 13620 13,000 13,000 - 100 200 100 135270
Total emoluments MeR 2075 175712 14556 14813 16459 15615 15439 15714 15883 - 580 380 20 157,046
Note:  The performance related incentive payment is determined with s . THERBEMEBRED2EZMEFEZ L
reference to the operating results, individual performance and BB - MARRREBTISEIEMET

comparable market statistics during both years.

1 1 6 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - FEFE+#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

15. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 15.

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

No directors of the Company had waived any emoluments

during the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

and the five highest paid individuals in the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2007 including four (2006:

five) directors of the Company. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2006: Nil) individual were as follows:

EEXRERME ~)

MERRREENEBE_TTLFR T
ERFTZA=T—BHIEFERELM
e AEERBE_ZTLFE+_A
=t+—REFERERREHFATAORA(Z
TTRRE AR)RARBZEF R~ —
BAAL(CTERE ORA)ZHMEMT ¢

Salaries and other benefits Fre REAMmET
Contributions to retirement RIRERFT B R

benefits scheme
Performance related incentive payments T {EZRI5 #ZE)

During both years, no emoluments were paid to or
receivable by the directors or the Group’s five highest
paid individuals, including directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

2007 2006
—®BEE  _TIAA
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT
2,300 =

99 =

13,850 =
16,249 =

RAEFEER  EFHAEELZZRSH
AT (BRES)BEC Yk & W AE 7 B
& (ERWE| RS HN B2 Sfohn BA R X2 v 2 8%
B SAERRER  WfE -
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16. DIVIDENDS 16. B&R2

2007 2006
—22tF ZETREF

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHR

Dividends paid EIRERE

Interim dividend for 2007 of HK30 cents —ZZ+FHHIRE
(2006: HK20 cents) per ordinary share &A% & 3@ AR 307511

(ZFZ,5F : 20/810) 251,430 162,721
Final dividend for 2006 of HK38 cents ~ —ZZT/NFEARHIAKE
(20086: final dividend for 2005 of BRRE mAR3s8 B
HK28 cents) per ordinary share (ZEERFIRE
—ETRERARE
28781) 316,464 219,735
Special dividend for 2006 of —ETRERRIKRE
HK62 cents (2006: no special FRERERze2B L
dividend for 2005) per ordinary share (ZBEERF: —_TTRHF
RERFRIIRE) 516,335 -
Additional dividend paid in respect of BRI B 1 BRI
the previous period as a result of GBI RRIEITT
new shares issued subsequent R MmELEE
to the approval of the previous HARER 2 2 BN B
period’s consolidated financial
statements - 192
1,084,229 382,648
Dividends proposed EERRE

Proposed final dividend for 2007 of BHR_STLFRBRE

HK70 cents (2006: HK38 cents) B mAR 70
per ordinary share (ZZZTRF : 38781) 586,669 316,464
Proposed special dividend for BE T NEERIRKRE
2006 of HK62 cents (2007: Nil) R E EAL6276 1L
per ordinary share —EELF RE) - 516,335
586,669 832,799
The final dividend of HK70 cents per share has been RAAREEFRZRERAKREFR70E
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject i - MEBRFAR B A EE R R B F R
to approval by the shareholders of the Company in the eHE - FOIEE -
forthcoming annual general meeting.
1 1 8 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17.

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to equity holders of the Company are
based on the following data:

FIGE-ZNE: 3
BREF 2 &7

Earnings for the purpose of calculating
basic and diluted earnings per share

B RS R AR BE
EEFZAS AR

BiREF
ARREGEFHEARGERNREEERA
FIETSIBURAE -

2007
—ETLF

2006
—EETRF
HK$’000
THET

HK$’000
FERT

2,778,321 7,068,015

Number of shares

B8 E

2007

Weighted average number of ordinary s+ EEARGREF|Z

shares for the purpose of calculating T A NN S 15 )

basic earnings per share 834,294,662 793,798,250
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BBEEENE

shares relating to: Limk

— outstanding share options — RITE 2 BB AE 25,207,611 29,654,784

— outstanding warrants — RIT(E 2 RAREF - 5,422,518
Weighted average number of ordinary st E#5EGRAF 2

shares for the purpose of calculating TIEAR INRE S &

diluted earnings per share 859,502,273 828,875,552

The effect of dilutive potential shares on share of results of
a non wholly-owned subsidiary, Elec & Eltek International
Company Limited (“EEIC”), based on the dilution of its
earnings per share for both years are insignificant.

REmBEFERN  BEG—EE2EHRE
MtB A EMKA L EEEBR AR EEIC])Z
EESRAFNMES 2 A8 EREZBRG
HFELTERK -

AR GREN 2

Additional information on adjusted

earnings per share: Mtpon& sk :

Basic FHAR HK$3.139 HK$2.756

Diluted g HK$3.047 HK$2.639
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 1 1 9

—ETLFER @RECIRE



Kingboard |

Kingboarc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
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17. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 17. BEREH =)
Additional information on adjusted basic and diluted SRR ELOR  MSE G IR AR 2 M &R T
earnings per share figures have also been presented, BAR RSB A B AE & F R
based on the profit for the year attributable to equity FAIERLE L IE B MERBINZ | @ sF4RET
holders of the Company less any non-recurring items, B

which are calculated as follows:

2007
k- -4, o33

HK$’000
FHERT

Profit for the year attributable to equity ~ ZANA Bl#EzE1EH AFE(S

20(0[6)
—EBERF
HK$’000
FHBT

holders of the Company A 2,778,321 7,068,015
Non-recurring items: FELEMIRE ¢
Add: Loss on disposal and deemed o HERBENE R
disposal of interest in N AR
an associate el =] 23,658 -
Less: Gain on fair value change of R ¢ ATHARR K B O] 12 A
conversion and redemption PTTETEZ AYE
option derivative BEEs (182,367) -
Gain on disposal and deemed HERBRIELE
disposal of partial interest in —MHBARE S
a subsidiary e 2 Was - (4,830,916)
Discount on acquisition of g Tl kN
an associate ¥riE - (48,182)
Discount on acquisition of Y B — B A )
additional interest in a subsidiary BEIMERITE (962) (1,498)
Earnings for the purposes of calculating 513 48 882 E K [ #5%
adjusted basic and diluted earnings BRER 2 87
per share 2,618,650 2,187,419
The denominators used are the same as those detailed FRAHERRA O BN EEARREET
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share. & & Az > EHER -
1 20 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. KREWMXE
HK$’000
THET
FAIR VALUE AFE

At 1 January 2006 RZZETRE—H—H 33,057
Increase in fair value NFEEEZAN 7,163

At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007 RZEERF+_A=+—H
;=—ZEZ+F—HF—H 40,220
Additions INE 1,084,477

Transfer from properties, HEAYME  WE MRS
plant and equipment (Note) (FffE) 68,137
DFEEM 5,118

Increase in fair value

At 31 December 2007 R-EBEE+F+-_HA=+—H 1,197,952
Note:  The fair value of the properties transferred from properties, plant fieE . ZERBEME  BERREZVEAEEA

and equipment at the date of transfer had been arrived at on the B2 AFE - TREAREEERE B S
basis of a valuation carried out on that day by Messrs. Chung, BREEMEETRZAETHEZEEE
Chan & Associates, independent qualified valuers not connected o

to the Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at AREBKRENER_ZZTF+ A

31 December 2006 had been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Messrs. B.I.
Appraisals Limited, independent qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. At 31 December 2007, the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties had been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
date by Messrs. Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
qualified valuers not connected with the Group. Messrs.
B.l. Appraisals Limited and Chung, Chan & Associates
are members of the Institute of Valuers. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

=t RAZAFEDIRERNKEYL EHE
2B A ERGEEMREEERFEERA
ARZBETHECEEER -HE_F
ELE+ A=t HIEAEEREME
ZAFEDNREARNEENEFEZBIS
BRfEEMEEITNZAETHEZELE
EZW - REBEBRFEERAREGETR
HEMPEEER - FREEHNSER/UY
ERHEEZINHREEE

AEERRNESHEAEELRELE
MOKAEZMBNERES  BFAAYE
B E - YD BRIEREYR -

Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. ¥EWMXE »)
The carrying value of investment properties shown above A EFTRREMERRERRE
comprises:
2007 2006
—ETLEFE ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FAT
Property interests situated in ETIBOREBEFE
Hong Kong under: ZYERER
Medium-term lease FRERFRAY 4,047 4,480
Property interests situated outside BN EABLAIN
Hong Kong under: R MR
Medium-term lease HRERFRAY 1,169,375 12,000
Long lease KEFAA 24,530 23,740
1,193,905 35,740
1,197,952 40,220
1 22 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

—ETLFFR @RLIRE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B 1§ R R HisT

Kingboard

Kingboard

For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 - FEFE+#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

19.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19.

TR - BERxR

Properties,
Furniture, plant and
fixtures equipment
Leasehold and under
Freehold  Buildings improvements ~ Plantand  equipment Motor  construction
land for own use 4  machinery Hi vehicles FEREMYE Total
XAERL#  EREF  NEEE BEREE RERRG e HEREE G
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Thn Thn Tn Tn TEn TEn TEn Tén
COST A&
At1 January 2006 R=F5 F-B-H 55,608 1,828,502 197,325 772639 195,161 111,146 878498 10992677
Exchange adjustments EREE 5,054 18,639 52,797 118,383 11,342 4,641 35,137 245,993
Additions RE - 367,221 28,150 764,753 60,092 39190  1,133826 2393282
Acquired from acquisition of subsiciaries  WiEEMBAFITER - 3,382 - 33,148 1,198 1,089 387 39,204
Disposals and write off {HE RS = (29407)  (20343)  (100912)  (28785)  (19.992) - (208389)
Reclassifications EA8R - 133418 4801 591,153 4145 297 (733814 -
At 31 December 2006 and RZZBAETZA=T-H
1 January 2007 Rk=%2+5-f-H 60707 2321755 262730 9123917 243208 136371 1314084 13462717
Exchange adjustments EREE 2451 121,374 20,999 719,183 20,640 9,708 180,737 1,075,098
Additions RE - 105,026 19458 1428526 69,647 18674 2,362,768 4,004,099
Acquired from acquisition of subsiciaries  WiEEMBAFITER - 3,382 - 44010 446 811 6,463 56,112
Disposals and write off {HE RS = (7,169) (6158) (07,150)  (48615)  (21656) - (289,748)
Transferred to investment properties (Note)  EEZREME (i) - (61,554) - - - - - (61,554
Reclassfcations ENA8 - 7995 14071 1,259817 33,081 (640) (1,386,254) =
At 31 December 2007 R=FFLF+-A=1-A 63,164 2,562,739 312,100 12,368,308 318,402 143268 2477748 18,245,724
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERAE
At 1 January 2006 R=2%:5-A-H = 176,409 50104 1,951,612 73,231 51,047 - 2302403
Exchange adjustments EHHE - 9,774 8,682 25,091 1,405 8,199 - 53,151
Provided for the year TEERE - 72,851 311 868,426 29,461 25,349 - 1031198
Eliminated on disposals and write off RN = (4947)  (18022)  (108443)  (27.044)  (19904) - (178360)
At 31 December 2006 and R-ZEAET-A=f-H
1 January 2007 k=ZEt5-B-A = 264,087 75,875 2,736,680 77,053 64,691 - 32083%2
Exchange adjustments EREE - 20,260 11,662 258,600 9,317 5676 = 305,524
Provided for the year REEHE - 44701 20611 1,045377 41,026 18,016 - 1,169,781
Eliminated on disposals and write off HERT R - (7,040) (6,059)  (144,992) 21,779) (11,792) - (190,662 )
At 31 December 2007 RIZRLETA=1-R - 312008 103089 3805680 105617 76,591 - 4492085
CARRYING VALUES KEE
At 31 December 2007 RZZEtE+-A=1-H 63,164 2,250,731 209011 8472628 212,785 06,677 2477748 13,752,739
At 31 December 2006 RZEEtE+-A=1-B 60,707 2,067,668 186,855 6,387,231 166,150 71680 1314034 10,254,325
Note:  During the year, the Group rented out certain of its leasehold Wiz  FR - AEERB S =5 HEE T RAER

properties to independent third parties for rental income. When
there was a change in use, upon the transfer from properties,
plant and equipment to investment properties, these properties
were revalued at fair value with a gain on revaluation of
approximately HK$6,583,000, which has been credited to the
property revaluation reserve.

Tt BEASRA - HEEEE - Y
¥ BELRRXFBEREZREMER  ZED
FRATEER - b1 46,583,00078
T EEAMREMGREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - FEFE+#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

19. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19.

(continued)
The above items of properties, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates

per annum:
Freehold land Nil
Buildings for own use Over the remaining unexpired
terms of the leases or fifty
years, whichever is the shorter
Leasehold improvements Over shorter of lease terms or
10 -20%
Plant and machinery 10 -20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 33'/3:%
Motor vehicles 20%
20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 20.

All of the Group’s prepaid lease payments are prepaid for
medium-term lease leasehold land outside Hong Kong.

Y%  BERSRE 2

EiiZ - BE KRRimE B ABREER
TOFE L RFHRITE ¢

KAFEREL i

BERETF BB LA FIERAR
TERYEF Bk 504F
(ABEEBE)

THAMERE BT A Bk
10—20% (AEE

55 R i B 10—20%

R - HEREE  10—337:%

E 20%

FIHEBEREA

AEEZENEEFRG/EENUINE
B4z HEIRAITRINER -

2007 2006
—EZLF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLEREDMTT ¢
Current asset RENEE 28,029 9,513
Non-current asset EMEEE 1,265,127 471,727
1,293,156 481,240
1 24 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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21. GOODWILL 21. W8
HK$’000
BT
CARRYING VALUE FREE
At 1 January 2006 RZZEZF—HF—H 1,659,354
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (see Note 37) UK B A FlE & ( B M 3E37) 48,621
Arising on acquisition of additional interests in UG BB B A A BB ME S EE A
subsidiaries (Note) (B7E) 9,544
At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007 RZEEZF+-_A=+—H
R=_ZTZT+HF—H—H 1,717,519
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (see Note 37) BB A FlEA (R H:337) 238
Arising on acquisition of additional interests in W B M B A Bl R IMERE L
subsidiaries (Note) (Pf3E) 287,901
At 31 December 2007 N_EE+F+-_A=+—H 2,005,658
Note: ~ Goodwill was calculated as the difference between the MEE : PEIRMERIMERS TN R E R B IMER
consideration paid for the additional interests and the carrying B AREEFEZ REEMEETE -

amount of the net assets of the subsidiaries attributable to the
additional interests acquired.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill B BB A R FTE £ 2 B 2 BB R
arising from acquisition of subsidiaries are disclosed as AEFIBREOT:
follows:
As explained in Note 8, the Group uses business AT S TR RE - AEB XK D E1E
segments as its primary segment for reporting segment EEEatFi"‘Bé{ﬂZE;r"* FER DR
information. For the purposes of impairment testing, = AMEC SR TERER DR &K
goodwill has been allocated to the cash generating units W%iﬂ’\ HeBheEEBEM([ReEE
(“CGU”) of laminates and PCBs business segments. BALL) o P BT & AR & B Rl 4R B AR
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to the EBoHzReELEBUZBEREES
CGUs of laminates and PCBs business segments Bl #) £ 288,139,000 B L (Z T TR F -
are approximately HK$288,139,000 (2006: Nil) and R ) K%1,717,519,0008 7L ( ZF T /<4
HK$1,717,519,000 (2006: HK$1,717,519,000), 1,717,519,000%7T) °
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - FEFE+#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

21. GOODWILL (continued) 21. @¥»)
The recoverable amounts of the laminates’ and PCBs’ EmER LR GBRRIRSEESA ZA]
CGUs have been determined from value-in-use WhlEzBIRFTRBETELZETE - TEHD
calculation. Goodwiill is expected to generate cash flow for BEmMBHEAIISRE - AETEFHE
indefinite period. To calculate this, cash flow projections B BEREEAINKSRETEEFFRiL &
are based on five year periods financial budgets approved ZHFHBREE AEE - FREEE
by senior management. The key assumption for the EZTEREATEEERE IR K K
value-in-use calculations is the budgeted gross margin EXSBIA10%NT7% @ TR BB
at a discount rate of 10% and growth rate of 7%, which RANEBEESMBSREZHEET - £
is determined based on the unit’s past performance and NIREELASEN 7R SESNEERR
management’s expectations for the market development. B WESRE REHFACHERDE
Since the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit b 48 H 30 & ASRE ©
is higher than its carrying amount, the directors consider
that the carrying value of goodwill at the balance sheet
date is not significantly impaired.
22, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22, MBEXARZER
2006
—ETLF —ZEER
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHBT
Cost of investments in associates B AT 2 A KA
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 122,668 196,824
Unlisted in the PRC RABIIE T 401,182 188,137
Share of post-acquisition profits, JRE {15 Wi B 12 )4
net of dividends received (BB W R) 178,315 88,106
Share of reserve FE(E S 38,963 13,862
741,128 486,929
Fair value of listed investments EmRE 2 A AFE 718,303 171,794
1 26 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A =1+—HIFFZE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, RBERFZEE®)

At 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Group had interests N _EEREN T+ F+_A=1+—
in the following associates: B - NEEES A TES QR
Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital/
Place of issued share capital
Form of registration/ Principle held by the Group
business incorporation place of AEBFER
Name of entity structure Baye operation Bh /BB Principal activities
BERER EHERY MR 0 EEEEMY RAEEL A TEEH
2007
—B3tE
CNOOC Kingboard Incorporated PRC PRC 40% 40% Manufacture and
Chemical Limited® Falinevs i )i sales of methanol
PERRREC IRRAR: BERDETE
G-Prop (Holdings) Incorporated Bermuda HongKong  36.51% - Property investment
Limited (‘G-Prop”)* Rl ARE Bk and leasing
SERFARAR WEREREE
(I2EL)"
ERICTBMN)ERARF  Incorporated PRC PRC 25% = Refining of heavy
BalilAv e HE oil and sales of
chemicals
REZHRAHICIER
Topsearch International Incorporated Bermuda PRC - 25.04% Manufacture and
(Holdings) Limited Rl BRE i sales of PCBs
(‘Topsearch)*
ERER(ER)ERAT SER A BHRIRHER
(28
* Companies with their shares listed on the main board of the * AN REERFTEIR ETZ Q7] °
Stock Exchange.
# These companies were established in the PRC in the form of # IEERRTIAFRINE B S E B EHAEFRBEK
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures. v
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 1 27
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Kingboard

B RS R AR BE
EEF A=t ALEE

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. RERVELARZERE #
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group BE-_ZZtF+-_A=+—HLFE "
entered into subscription agreements with G-Prop AARHEEERRIERZE - URE()EE
to subscribe for (i) 740,518,325 ordinary shares of 740,518,325% E3@A% © [hEELEAD B
G-Prop, which represented 36.51% of the enlarged 1TREAN36.51% * 1B 4 A 119,964,000/
issued share capital of G-Prop, at a consideration of T RNV=FZEEARKRES NeBA
approximately HK$119,964,000 and (ii) a three-year 108,000,000 7T ° AT ES 2 FIFH N
zero coupon convertible bond with a principal amount of ftzE24 o
HK$108,000,000. Details of the convertible bond are set
out in Note 24.
The Group also acquired 25% registered capital of & & BE_ZTT+F+_A=+—HIEFE -
LT (35M)BR AT at a consideration of approximately AEETWEEREIGEMN)BRARF
HK$213,045,000 during the year ended 31 December MER25% » KIB4)/A213,045,000/8 7T °
2007.
In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2007, N RBEE_ZET+F+_-_A=+—H
Topsearch issued new ordinary shares to the public ILEE @ EEEBAARIE @ BITHYT
through placement and diluted the equity interest of the AR BAEERE ERIRER25.04%#
Group in Topsearch from 25.04% to 21.15%. The Group SHE21.15% o AEBMHRMSHESETE
also disposed of certain shares of Topsearch in the 25 Bt EETHARNEBBEN
market and thus Topsearch ceased to be an associate of A RZTZEELF+=A=1+—HAKR?
the Group and has been accounted for as available-for- ERHEERE - HE_ZT+F+—-A
sale investments as at 31 December 2007. The loss on =+t HILFE HERGELEZHE
disposal and deemed disposal of interest in the associate NI 7 1840 /4523,658,000/8 7T ©
amounted to approximately HK$23,658,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2007.
Included in the cost of investments in associates is REEE QB 2 RWERABIEF NI BER 2
goodwill of approximately HK$152,820,000 (2006: Nil) AR B| 2 PR 4)152,820,0008 (=&
arising on acquisition of associates during the year. The TREF 1 RE) - BEEBHHINWT -
movement of goodwill is set out below.
HK$’000
T
At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006 and RZZETRE—H—H
1 January 2007 —ETRFE+HA=+—H
k=TTt HF—H—H =
Arising on acquisition of associates g =Nl e 152,820
At 31 December 2007 R-ZEZLF+_A=+—H 152,820
1 28 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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22,

Kingboard

Kingboard

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
The recoverable amounts of the interests in associates
including goodwill have been determined from value-in-
use calculation. To calculate this, cash flow projections
are based on five year periods financial budgets approved
by senior management. The key assumption for the
value-in-use calculations is the budgeted gross margin
at a discount rate of 10% and growth rate of 7%, which
is determined based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Since the recoverable amount of the associates is higher
than its carrying amount, the directors consider that the
carrying value of goodwill at the balance sheet date is not
significantly impaired.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associates is set out below:

22,

Total assets BERE

Total liabilities afFEeE

Net assets BEFE

Group’s share of net assets of S 3 d /NG
associates BEFE

Revenue (Note) LAY

Profit for the year (Note)

Group’s share of results of associates
for the year (Note)

Note:  The amounts included the revenue and profit of Topsearch for
the period from 1 January 2007 to the date of which Topsearch

ceased to be an associate of the Group.

A R A (B RE)

NS iy /N
AEREFRE (M)

B RS R AR BE
EEFZAS AR

REEATZ’E 2)
REFE N R 2 = (BEBHE) 2ATkE S
RIERBEAEEET - RAEERE
B REREBHALESREREMiLE
Z BFRMRTEE AEE - EREBE
EZ EERRBEEEN R 2 i & 18
REDRAB10%KT%  THEZEBER
BREBBHMSERHEETE - AR
B NF R EleEe N REE - §E
ERR RNEERAZHERABET &R
BARRIE °

REEH AR R 2 ARSI T

2007 2006
—EZLF —EBERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
2,306,348 3,716,266
(702,738) (2,067,384)
1,603,610 1,648,882
588,308 486,929
2,123,579 294,607
757,672 99,945
298,283 39,924
et : ZRECHEREEEH-_TTLF—A—BEZR
EREAREEN SN EHE 2 S EE
H e
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23.

Available-for-sale investments comprises:

ATt R E
AT A B

2007 2006
—ETLE —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FHT
Listed investments: s
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ —RAES i 2 IRAE S 544,332 230,206
— Debt security listed in overseas — g T 2 B
with fixed interest of 4.625% per Br o EEFE
annum and maturity date on 4,625 1
15 November 2016 —ZE-RE+—A
+H1 B E)Ef - 155,419
544,332 385,625
Unlisted equity investments JEEMRAIERE 20,325 9,525
Total CH 564,657 395,150

At the balance sheet date, all listed available-for-sale
investments are stated at fair value. The unlisted equity
investments are stated at cost as their fair values cannot
be measured reliably. Fair values of those investments
have been determined by reference to bid prices quoted
in active markets.

The above unlisted investments represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
established in PRC which are engaged in property
development and hotel operation. They are measured
at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably.

REHER  FAEATHBE LHREHER
FEFIE - R TR SERt B IE EMARA
BRERQYVE  MEBRAAIIE - ZFREZ
RNHETNRSERERT IS MHHIRE
EETE -

Lili3E MR EERLABRMETIHEL
MRAFS 2 E - ZELAERRT
BRI e EMRBR OO SERE - A
RAFEZABMGEEEREKN  BEES
BRAREASEAEERFE  BHIFELTHR
BERBEEEBIZKAAMBRRERE -
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24. CONVERTIBLE BOND 24. THREKERS

2007 2006
—ZZtEF ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FAT
Unlisted convertible bond JE LM ARRES

— loan portion —BEHS 86,188 -

— conversion and redemption option — AJ RS N BB O34
derivative — fair value BOTET A - RFE 205,461 =
291,649 =

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
subscribed a three-year zero coupon convertible bond
with a principal amount of HK$108,000,000 from G-Prop,
an associate of the Group. The convertible bond can be
converted in whole or in part into new ordinary shares of
G-Prop at any time from the issue date (i.e. 25 October
2007) to the maturity date (i.e. 24 October 2010) at a
conversion price of HK$0.162 per share.

The convertible bond cannot be redeemed by G-Prop
prior to the maturity date and the Group may request
G-Prop to redeem the convertible bond at its face value,
at any time during the period from the day immediately
after the second anniversary of the issue date and
expiring on the maturity date.

The convertible bond comprised of two components — (i)
loan portion and (i) conversion and redemption option.
Since the economic characteristics and risks of the
conversion and redemption option are not closely related
to the host contract, it is separated from the host contract
as conversion and redemption option derivative on initial
recognition.

HE_ZTTtHHF+_A=1+—HBLFE
AEERBEBREARNEEZ=ZFT LA
HMIRE 7 - 7N % /108,000,000 % 7T ©
A EF e ETRERAENI—EZTLF+
A-t+aR)EEIHA(BI=—FT—F+A
ZHAME)IEERIREA - REREER
01628 LR AP A DB AT E 2 FTE &

f%

SETAREABEMERAHARES - M
AEBURERETHRE BAFRZA
REIHBILHEA - EREREERE
EfEE AT E S o

AHRESBEEMESY — (NEE#HD
K@rT i b B ORI o MR AR
REDEREEZEEFERRREE AL
WEZIBEE SRS EAFETEH
DS AR A AR N I R BT A T
B

=
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24. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)
On application of HKAS 39, the fair value of the
convertible bond — loan portion is determined based on
an effective interest rate of 8.35% per annum on initial
recognition and the fair value of the conversion and
redemption option derivative is determined by using
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model and Binomial Model,

respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the gain
arising from change in fair value of conversion and
redemption option derivative amounted to approximately
HK$182,367,000 (2006: Nil).

25. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25.

ENTITIES

Cost of unlisted investment in HENEHIEES
jointly controlled entities FEETIREK A
Share of post-acquisition losses E(GUE 12 B 18

FEMH R 5 B 52
FE (PEE)

Amounts due from jointly controlled
entities (Note)

Note:  Amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured,
interest-free, with no fixed repayment terms and are not
repayable in the foreseeable future.

B RS R AR
EEF A=+ AILEE

24. TRERF )

RATEGTERNEIMRE - RYFHER
AHRRES - EER D 2 A FEBZER
FHIE8.35EETE - AR N R F
BOTETAZ A FEARA N — & BT
HEEERA N _AARUEF -

BE_TTLE+_A=+—HLEE
AR EEEEEETET A2 A TEE
B i 2549 5 182,367,000 T (2 E X
FRF)-

RiRZEFEREZER

2007 2006
—EENRE

—EETLF
HK$’000
FHEIT

HK$'000
TAT

15,953 15,953

(19,891) (18,821)
(3,938) (2,868)
18,222 18,222
14,284 15,354

MisE: ERCRREEGIERFAREEN 28 BE
EEZRE - BANA RAGREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

25. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25. REFARFEREZES =)

ENTITIES (continued)

Included in the cost of investment in jointly controlled RERES RIS ERANBIEBREEE
entities is goodwill of approximately HK$10,943,000 BE A R4 B R AT A 4 A B14910,943,000
(2006: HK$10,943,000) arising on the acquisition of BT (ZZTZ/NHF 10,943,000/ 7T) 2 &
jointly controlled entities in prior years. The movement of 2o gEEFFI T ¢

goodwill is set out below:

Goodwill
HE
HK$’000
THET
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006 and RZZTEZTRF—H—AH-
31 December 2007 —EERF+A=1+—HK
“TELF+-HA=+—H 10,943
At 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Group had interests RIEELER_EENF+_A=1—
in the following significant jointly controlled entities: B AEER T EALREHEEES
s
Place of Proportion of
Form of registration/ nominal value of
business incorporation registered/issued capital
Name of jointly structure and operation held by the Group Proportion of
controlled entity £/ it/ FEm AR rEBMEEEMES/ voting power Principal activities
HEEHERER 78 REXMH BRTRAHELA FARLH TEXK
2007 2006 2007 2006
i 14 -3 § —22tE = X3
Guangzhou Express Logistics Incorporated PRC 49%* 49%" 50% 50% Provision of
Limited (‘GZ Express’)# il # logistic services
BENEEMRRBERAR REIIRIRT
(TEMBE])*
Concord Modern Technology Incorporated Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% 50% Manufacture and sales of
Limited optical discs
RENHERAR Rl ave 3 SHERBHE R
Full Summit Development Incorporated Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% 50% Manufacture and sales of
Limited optical discs
HEEEERAR Rl ave 3 SHERBHE R
* Under the joint venture agreement of GZ Express, the joint * BIEENSEZEEHE  SEBHENEE 2
venture partners have joint control over the entity’s daily BE &8 R RR R LRSI -

operating and financial decisions.

# The company was established in the PRC in the form of Sino- # ZRAARIEEE B EHEAERBEKTL -
Foreign Equity Joint Venture.
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25. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 25. RiFARFEREZES =)

ENTITIES (continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of the AERES R ARE KRZEGEE 2
Group’s jointly controlled entities which are accounted for WIS BRI T -

using the equity method is set out below:

2007 2006

—BTLF ZETRF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T T

Total assets BERE 79,183 95,889
Total liabilities BERE (108,945) (123,509)
Net liabilities BEFHE (29,762) (27,620)

Group’s share of net liabilities of jointly  ZN£ [ fE{ L [F]322 ]

controlled entities EREEFE (14,881) (13,811)
Revenue ] 32,430 94,649
Loss for the year REFZ A (2,140) (3,509)
Group’s share of loss of jointly FRAEEEGER

controlled entities for the year P EEE 1R (1,070) (1,755)

26. NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 26. FRETE

Non-current deposits represent deposits paid for the ERDETSIERBEME « BB KFEMN
acquisition of properties, plant and equipment and RIEBEMEL XN 2R - ZFFoEHE
investment properties, and the deposits will not be HHB12EARNTEER - Bt - %
realised within twelve months from the balance sheet ERBEAERBDEE - ZZFTSEHE
date. Accordingly, the amounts were included in the non- 729 7R B 12 B 7R &2 [ 173 5E A BRE ] PO 1 B R A2
current assets. The deposits can only be refundable to NFAREEE - FARME - RAFIESE
the Group when the suppliers fail to deliver the assets to B AEBBERRARBERAURBRZEE
the Group within the timeframe as agreed with the Group. =3

The directors of the Company expected that the assets
will be received by the Group within next two years.

1 34 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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B RS R AR
EEF A=t ALEE

—TTLEER RECIEE

Mining Know-how
right fee Total
PRuERE BXEAEE &%
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFHET F#ET
COST AR
At 1 January 2006 R-TTRE
—H—H = 2,329 2,329
Additions BN = 907 907
At 31 December 2006 and RZTETRF
1 January 2007 +=-—A=+—8
NZZTT+4F
—H—H — 3,236 3,236
Acquired from acquisition of U BE — IR B A &)

a subsidiary RN 695,847 - 695,847
Exchange adjustments b SR 28,239 - 28,239
Additions NE = 245 245
Disposals k= = (6) (6)
At 31 December 2007 RZETLF

+=-A=+—H 724,086 3,475 727,561
AMORTISATION iy
At 1 January 2006 RZETREF

—A—H = 551 551
Charge for the year RNEELH - 500 500
At 31 December 2006 and RZTERF

1 January 2007 +=—A=+—~H

MZZT+F

—H—H = 1,051 1,051
Charge for the year REESH - 632 632
Eliminated on disposals R = ®) ©®)
At 31 December 2007 RZZTLF

+=—A=+—8 - 1,677 1,677
CARRYING VALUES FREE
At 31 December 2007 RZETLF

+=—A=+—~H 724,086 1,798 725,884
At 31 December 2006 R-ZEERF

+=A=+—H - 2,185 2,185
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27. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 27. WELEE #)
Mining right has finite useful life of 40 years and is FREERE 2 [EF r] B H A40F - (FABNM
amortised using the units of production method over the A B VR IR R 42 R A 7 = 4993,000,000 18
total proven reserves of the coal mines of approximately B - HEz_TTtF+_A=1+—H1
93 million tonnes. No amortisation of mining right was FE - BREEDARERZS - WAREBAE
provided during the year ended 31 December 2007 as B - BT E G R AE TS o
the coal mining site is still under construction and no
production of coal has been commenced.
Know-how was acquired from third parties, has finite useful ME=ZAURBEBZEENHEETETAF
life and is amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 years. B - WIREARER RS AES o
The recoverable amount of intangible assets had been EREAE RS ERFEREBETES
determined based on the value-in-use calculation. BT RenBEANLSREIEZHi
Cash flow projections are based on five year periods EZ AFHRFEE AEE - FREE
financial budgets approved by senior management. The B E T EREATBEENERZIFAERL
key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is the %R RSP A8%NE% - JHiREIEE 2
budgeted gross margin at a discount rate of 8% and RATHEBERBAEE - AFUA FHRZR
growth rate of 5% which is determined based on the SREBUSBIBTILREHE - ARERE
management’s expectation and past performance of EZAWESESNEREE - HAQG
the industry. The cash flow beyond the five-year period EERE NEERZEREERTET
are extrapolated using a steady 5% growth rate. Since M EARE ©
the recoverable amount of the intangible assets is higher
than its carrying amount, the directors of the Company
consider that the carrying value of intangible assets at the
balance sheet date is not significantly impaired.
28. INVENTORIES 28. #®
2007 2006
—EEtLF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Raw materials =g 1,926,465 1,861,387
Work in progress S m 526,894 456,599
Finished goods I o 194,857 180,368
2,648,216 2,498,354
1 36 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited

“ETLFFR BECIEE



Kingboard

Kingboard

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 29.

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

HttHEE
B2 REMERER R AN R

2007 2006

—EZLF —EERF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET THET

Trade receivables B S EINERFR 4,925,821 4,456,464
Bills receivables FEUNZEE 857,508 466,178
Other receivables and prepayments H b FEURBR X KR FB A R IB 1,398,690 883,351
7,182,019 5,805,993

The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days,
depending on the products sold, to its trade customers.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at

the balance sheet dates:

AEEGETESEF ZEERIRER/120
B REAEERME - NEER - B5
FEURTR 2 BRER D ATAN T

0 - 90 days 0£90H
91 — 180 days 91%&180H
Over 180 days 180H A E

All bills receivables are aged within 90 days at the balance
sheet dates.

2007 2006
—E2tEF —TEARF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx THTT
3,935,709 3,664,990
939,195 750,160
50,917 41,314
4,925,821 4,456,464

A RKNREREDREERENOR
A o
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 29. HtWEEE 2
Trade and other receivables and prepayments (continued) B RHEMEWERERRAENTEE)
Before accepting any new customers, the Group has EERMNTEAFERH - NEBERNEE BT
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential LHEETLEETP2ER B0
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors ITmEEERAE ATMNEFREEEER
has delegated the management to be responsible for BEREEME BPZRERTISEFE
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for any B o 87%(ZZTZ/NF : 89%) i Hi sl Rl
customers. Limits and scoring attributed to customers BB S EWRFEREBFEA 2 ERH
are reviewed every year. 87% (2006: 89%) of the trade SR Y e (= IS
receivables that neither past due nor impaired have the
best credit scoring attributable under the credit grading
system used by the Group.
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance ANEEEZ FEWERGESIEN EIEE
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of A 0 EBRHE 45626,320,0008 L (=2 F
HK$626,320,000 (2006: HK$504,551,000) which were 7NEF 1 504,551,00087T) - IR AR
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has g E - ANE N E RS RIEEL RE
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not iR  ANEERZEHBWEISET
hold any collateral over these balances. The average age ARG - ZERWERR Z LHRE: A121
of these receivables is 121 days (2006: 119 days). B(ZZZ"4F : 1198)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables REEH  BEEEREZESHEKRIER
which are past due but not impaired at the balance sheet TEEWONTOT :
dates:
2007 2006
k- -4, o33 —EBERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
91 - 120 days 91£120H 276,256 259,139
121 — 150 days 1212150H 239,424 166,789
151 - 180 days 151F180H 59,723 37,309
Over 180 days 180B A £ 50,917 41,314
626,320 504,551
1 38 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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29.
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Trade and other receivables and prepayments (continued)
The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
past due beyond 240 days because historical experience is
such that these receivables are generally not recoverable.
Allowance on trade receivables between 120 and 240
days are made based on estimated irrecoverable amounts
by reference to past default experience and objective
evidences of impairment determined by the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of
the estimate future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group monitors any change in the credit quality
of the trade receivables since the credit was granted
and up to the reporting date. The directors of the
Company considered that the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year FH &R
Impairment losses recognised R R EEE
Amounts written off as uncollectible S AT Y [@ 2 FRI8
Balance at end of the year FERER

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$320,615,000 (2006: HK$286,285,000)
which have either been placed under liquidation or in
severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

29.

B RS R AR BE
EEFZAS AR

HtMHEE 2

B REMERERRRBNREE)
BEERBEREE2408 A £ IR —
BAEEWE - AEEHZERRERS
HIEL B - RIS T 12022408 2 B 5
EUWERR 2 & - H2ZRERRLRE
FIZ AT TR E S BAER] - REZE
BEBREREEENRA BEENERITR
et RS REREMZ Z5E1E -

HETEZRERR 2 TRE LR - BF
PRRHEERERHRAS  AEEEE

ZEHRBERERER 2 EMES - AL
NEIEERAG  BEFPME @ NEBEWE
BAEHEERR  BREZERS5H KR
BPO# -
RIBREHEZEE
2007 2006
—ETLF —EBETRF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAT
286,285 252,275
89,004 34,010
(54,674) -
320,615 286,285
REREEBEZERNERECE S ER

BRIX #4582 5320,615,0008 L (—Z 2
A 0 286,285,000/87T) * A ERIBAE
B EAMBREBIET 2 5HE - AEER
ZEER B AR o
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 29. HtWEEE 2
Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments B LEMEWERRTENZRBESIE T
are the following amounts denominated in a currency NEBERE N EE NGB EZR
other than the functional currency of the group entities to 5
which they relate:
2007
—ETtF
Amount
&8
’000
T
United States Dollars E7T 230,494 136,119
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the RITERERSOEAEEFE2RER
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original REBAA=@ARKUT ZEBARITE
maturity of three months or less. At 31 December 2007, Ko RZEZ+F+_A=+—H - BT
the bank deposits carry interest at the prevailing market FHIRRITMSFERNENF0.18EZE3.4
interest rate which range from 0.18% to 3.4% (2006: B(ZZZTAF : NTO72EE517E )5t
0.72% 10 5.17%) per annum. B e
At 31 December 2007 and 2006, the Group had bank RIBEZ+FR _TERNF+_A=1+—
balances and cash that were not freely convertible or A - REENA BB RRKES P EIMNE
were subject to exchange controls in the PRC amounting BRIMAR CRITERRBE 2RO AR
to approximately HK$1,316.4 million and HK$865.4 1,316,400,0007% 7. 5 865,400,000/ 7T °
million, respectively.
1 40 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 20. Hth&EE %)
Bank balances and cash (continued) RITEBRRER(E)
Included in the bank balances and cash are the following PRITEBLESBEETINERETRZ 21
amounts denominated in currencies other than the REEHE NS HE 2 758 -
functional currency of the group entities to which they
relate:

United States Dollars ETT 115,963 22,619
Euro &t 767 -
Japanese Yen H 12,786 3,144
Macau Pataca SHR P ik 373 -

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. fTE&mMTIRA

2007 2006
- -4 o2 ZTTRF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
RE A BE B8
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET THT THAT
Interest rate swaps pilpsen i
— derivatives not under — W EAEE
hedge accounting FIBRZTETR 1,174 - 38,966 -
Commodity forward contract  RERFIRAL 368 - = =
Foreign currency forward EESNESH
contracts 1,270 (1,184) 217 (195)
2,812 (1,184) 39,183 (195)
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 1 41
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30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. fi&&mT R =)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group
used interest rate swaps to minimise its exposure to cash
flow changes of its floating-rate Hong Kong dollar bank
borrowings by swapping borrowings from floating rates to
fixed rates. The critical terms of these interest rate swaps
were similar to those of the hedged bank borrowings and
the directors designated the derivatives as cash flows
hedging instruments and considered they were highly
effective.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the loss on
fair value change of approximately HK$73,370,000 (2007:
Nil) had been deferred in equity.

In December 2006, the Group repaid all floating-
rate Hong Kong dollars bank borrowings, which were
effectively hedged by the interest rate swaps. However,
the Group did not terminate those interest rate swaps at
the same time. As a result, the hedging accounting was
discontinued and the credit balance of approximately
HK$43,823,000 included in the hedging reserve was
released to the consolidated income statement during the
year ended 31 December 2006.

HE-_ZZXF+-_A=+—HLLFE "
AEEERABEERTEERTES A
M EiE MR RIY SR E 2B TRITIER
RenEEHPH AR - ZFMNXEMZE

RRKEHHRITEE 2 TR RFKAEEL
EEEERMTETARBREREYHT
B WRBZETEBAY -

HE_ZEAFt+_A=+—HLEFE "
BE#73,370,0008 L 2 A EE B EE
(ZZ2ZLF 88 ERBRARLERRE -

RIZBEZRF+-F  AEECRSEE
VAR St BR G B R 2 iR BETE 2 B T
RITEE - A - AEBIWERFKIEZ
ER = o At e EERIE B
AT A E] R 18 R £943,828,00078 7T 2 #S 2
ERBEZTERNF+TA=+—AHLF
B2 iR AW R EE -

142
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30.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30.

(continued)

At the balance sheet date, major terms of the interest rate

swaps are as follows:

Outstanding

contracts as at Notional
RELT BEIE & amount
FHzEHN EE
HK$'000
FAT
31 December 2007 300,000
“ETAF
+=—A=+—H 300,000
31 December 2006 3,250,000
ZETREF
+-B=+—8 300,000
300,000

At the balance sheet date, the Group entered into
commodity forward contract. The major terms of the

outstanding contract are as follows:

Currency Quantity

B 2

us$ Copper 100 Metric Tonnes
e 100 AW S

fTEEmTI A=)

REEB - FRmHZ ERIGEFOT:

Receive
Maturity
ZH A

floating
Pz S

Pay fixed
FrfdER

Within 1 year HIBOR 2.55%

—FR BERITAERFE 2558

Within 1 to 2 years HIBOR 3.40% 10 3.74%
—EMFEA EBRITRAERE  3.40F3.74F
Within 1 year HIBOR 2.18% 10 3.43%
—FR EBRITRAERE  2.18E3.43E
Within 1 to 2 years HIBOR 2.55%
—EMEAN BRBBTAEFRE 2552

Within 2 to 3 years HIBOR 3.40% 10 3.74%
ME=FA BRBIAFRFS  3.40E3.74E

WEER - AEEFZEHERAL » &
HARBIHZ BRI 2 E BT

Maturity

Commodity Forward price

PR A mERE

31 January 2008
—EENF-HA=1+—H

US$7,125/metric tonne
7,125% 7T, AHE
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30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. fi&&mTIT R =)

(continued)
At the balance sheet date, major terms of the outstanding WREER  MAFIEZREINESLY ZE
foreign currency forward contracts are as follows: BRI
At 31 December 2007 R-—Z2ZELtHE+-A=+—H
Notional amount Maturity Forward contract rates
H{E F|HAE RPSHNER
9 contracts to buy US$1,000,000 each Within 1 year US$1 to HK$7.732
NP EHEEE1,000,000E T2 A4 —F A 1ZETTH7. 7328 7T
12 contracts to buy US$1,000,000 each Within 1 to 2 years US$1 to HK$7.695
+ = &HEEE1,000,000FTLZ A4 —EWFNR 1370 H.7.69578 7T
9 contracts to sell US$1,000,000 each Within 1 year US$1 to HK$7.732
NP &5 HEE1,000,000E T2 A4 —FRQ 1T, 7.7328 7T
12 contracts to sell US$1,000,000 each Within 1 to 2 years US$1 to HK$7.695
+ =& HE1,000,000E T2 E 4 —EWMFEA 1E7T5,7.6958 7T
At 31 December 2006 R-ZBEXF+=-HA=+—H
Notional amount Maturity Forward contract rates
H{E Z|HA A BEHPSHNER
1 contract to buy US$20,000,000 Within 1 month US$1 to HK$7.778
— 7B E 20,000,000 T2 A4 —EAR 12T H7.7788 7T
6 contracts to buy US$1,000,000 each Within 6 months US$1 to HK$7.728
N B E 1,000,000 T Z A4 NEAR 1T, 7.728%8 7T
6 contracts to sell US$1,000,000 each Within 6 months US$1 to HK$7.728
A 51,000,000 7T 2 &4 ~MEAR 1ZETT R, 7.72875 7T
6 contracts to sell US$1,000,000 each Within 6 months US$1 to HK$7.750
N Ep 51,000,000 T2 E 4 ~EAR 1ETT R 7.750/8 7T
The above derivatives were measured at fair value at each FRTETERSEERIRAFEE -
balance sheet dates. Their fair values were determined ERAFEZREERSHFEMEEREER
based on the valuation provided by counterparty financial MESETEABREETEETE ©
institutions for equivalent instruments at the balance sheet
dates.
1 44 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 3i.
BILLS PAYABLE

The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables at

the balance sheet dates:

55 B H At FE A AR R B FE A SR i

BHRNERNGEE R ZREATAT

0-90 days 0£90H
91 — 180 days 91%180H
Over 180 days 180H A _E

All bills payable are aged within 90 days at the balance
sheet dates.

Included in trade and other payables and bills payable are
the following amounts denominated in currencies other

than the functional currency of the group entities to which

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET FAT
1,657,401 1,468,344
289,407 303,117
102,222 94,413
2,049,030 1,865,874

PrA N RE AR REE B ERI90H 2
A o

B 5 RHEMENESRKENZEBE T
NEEER BB UIINEBE LR
2B

they relate:

2007 2006

—EZLF TEETRF

Amount Amount

&8 |

’000 000

T Tt

United States Dollars E7T 98,571 59,536

Japanese Yen H 351,606 193,922

Swiss Franc I ARR - 2,568

Macau Pataca SR 14 19

Euro BT 17,358 1,186
Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 1 45
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32. BANK BORROWINGS 32. H7EE

2007 2006
—ETLF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T T
Bank loans RITER 6,811,850 4,867,286
Trust receipt loans EEdIEE R 437,277 512,532
Bank overdrafts BITEL 585 2,826
7,249,712 5,382,644

Carrying amounts repayable: AR T EEEE 2 BREE
On demand or within one year FEESRKS RN —FNRN 1,759,340 1,296,421

More than one year but not more than ~ —%E A _F{B T#BiBME

two years 1,465,643 676,550
More than two years but not more than  FI4E LA _H{E BB A4
five years 3,939,295 3,409,673
More than five years REE 85,434 -
5,490,372 4,086,223
Total 55t 7,249,712 5,382,644
The bank borrowings are unsecured and bear interest at IRITIEE BERR - WEMIBHETE -

market rates.

1 46 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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32. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 32.
Included in the above bank borrowings are the fixed-rate
bank borrowings which are repayable as follows:

|MITER @)
BT REAR T BREENE
BIRITIEE -

2007 2006
—BBEE  TIAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fixed-rate bank borrowings repayable: 7B I HARI (&8
ZEBBRITEE
Within one year —FR

FEx THTT

48,382 =

More than one year but not more than ~ —4 A BT BB E

two years

26,698 =

More than two years but not more than LA BTN ERB R F

five years

The fixed-rate bank borrowings carry interest ranging
from 4.21% to 5.67% per annum.

The rest of the bank borrowings are variable-
rate borrowings which carry interest ranging from
HIBOR+0.4% to HIBOR+1.0% (2006: HIBOR+0.575% to
HIBOR+1.0%) per annum.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank
borrowings are as follow:

26,372 =

101,452 =

EERITEEFEENT42185.67E -

BRTIRITEEAEEZEEE  F8EN
TEBRITREREN0ABZFBRITRA
EH{FBIMOECTTNF : HHRITRZE
FEMOS75EE B AMRITRERFS M0
BT -

AEEPTEE T ERAEGIERETH
FlR) BEMT -

Effective interest rates BEBERA=
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEBE
Variable-rate borrowings FEEER

4.21% to =
5.67%

3.8% to 4.675% to

5.4% 5.5%
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32. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 32. S§ITEE®
Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts BITEEBETINEE TR K
denominated in currencies other than the functional PASNE®EETHE 2 5158 -

currency of the group entities to which they relate:

United States Dollars T 57,042 61,304
Euro BT 6,727 =
Japanese Yen H 50,700 1,082,024
33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33. RIERIA
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and TRARBRBARIARBRBAA D THER
assets recognised and movements thereon during the ZEEREREEBEREEAREFR 2#
current and prior reporting periods: B :
Accelerated tax Tax Write-down
depreciation losses  of inventories Total
MERKATE BgEE FERA &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET THET THET
At 1 January 2006 RZEZ F—A—-H 60,040 (10,447) (14,239) 35,354
Exchange adjustments [ 5 5% 212) (282) - (494)
(Credit) charge for the year A& E (B[@E) FH (18,746) 1,051 (341) (18,036)

At 31 December 2006 and ~ —EEANE+—A

1 January 2007 =+—HkK
“EZ+E-A—H 41,082 (9,678) (14,580) 16,824
Exchange adjustments [ 5 5% 617) (580) - (1,197)
(Credit) charge for the year ~ AFE (B[R ) T (901) 955 (9,676) (9,622)
Effect of change intax rate i R& &) 7§ & - - 1,166 1,166
At 31 December 2007 RZZTL4F
+-A=1+—-H 39,564 (9,303) (23,090) 7,171
1 48 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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33.

Kingboard

Kingboard

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, certain
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities REFIERE
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE E

At 31 December 2007, deferred tax assets of
approximately HK$9,303,000 (2006: HK$9,678,000)
in relation to unused tax losses and approximately
HK$23,090,000 (2006: HK$14,580,000) in relation
to write-down of inventories have been recognised
in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet, and the
Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets due to the
unpredictability of the future profit streams arising from tax
losses amounting to approximately HK$20,085,000 (2006:
HK$6,258,000). All tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

33.

B RS R AR BE
EEFZAS AR

BRERIA ()
EFREEHEAERBRARAERER

SRABTEHIES o U T RARSELTH
BEBAEMERROARBELDS
A7 -

2007 2006
—EZLF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT
29,165 36,323
(21,994) (19,499)
7,171 16,824

RZZEZLF+T_A=1+—8 B#EX
PHABEERERTFTEMRAED RIL
9,303,000/ 7t (=T ZT /X F : 9,678,000
77T ) & #923,090,000/8 70 ( Z 2T /X EF ¢
14,580,0008 70 ) 2 EIEFHIEEE KA
ERAEERBERER MASEL
ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/mﬁkmlﬁéﬁ ' Eﬁ?ﬁiﬁ;ﬁ
&1 A ##920,085,0008 L (Z T T /R F ¢
6,258,000/ 7T ) 2 B IH BB AT E 4 R R s
FIZIR o FTETIEE R ] MR 455 o
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. KX
Number of shares Share capital
B® B
2007 2006
k- -4 -3 “ETRE
HK$000 HK$'000
T#T AT
Ordinary shares of SREE10B T
HK$0.10 each LER
Authorised ETE 1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000 120,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid BEREITRERERT
At beginning of the year REA] 832,799,046 784,767,161 83,280 78,477
Exercise of share options TEELERE
(see Note 35) (RKIzE35) 5,300,000 5,300,000 530 530
Exercise of warrant TR RIRIER 2 R
subscription rights HER (PE36)
(see Note 36) - 42,731,885 - 4,273
At end of the year RELR 838,099,046 832,799,046 83,810 83,280
1 50 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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35.

SHARE OPTIONS

(a)

Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company

Under the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 2 July 2002, which is valid
for a period of ten years, the board of directors
of the Company may, at its discretion, grant
options to subscribe for shares in the Company
to eligible participants (“Eligible Participants”)
who contributes to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Company. Eligible Participants
includes (i) any employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interests
(“Invested Entity”), including any executive director
of the Company, any of such subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (i) any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors)
of the Company, its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; (i) any supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (v) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and (vi) any person or entity
who from time to time determined by the Board
as having contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group based on
his or its performance and/or years of service, or
is regarded as valuable resources of the Group
based on his/its working experience, knowledge
in the industry and other relevant factors. The
subscription price for the Company’s shares
shall be a price at least equal to the highest of
the nominal value of the Company’s shares, the
average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date
of an offer of the grant of the options and the
closing price of the Company’s shares quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the date of an offer
of the grant of the options. The options must be
taken up within 28 days from the date of grant
upon payment of HK$1 and are exercisable
over a period to be determined and notified by
the directors to each grantee, which period may
commence from the date of acceptance of the
offer of the grant of the options but shall end in
any event not later than ten years from the date of
adoption of the Scheme.

35. Bk

(a)

FAREEEEBRETE

BEARNIIR-_ZZE_F+HA-H
RNE R A+ F 2 B BIRE
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HE IR BE LB - UREAR
REIRD - B ERSEEBIEGNA
na) - EEFAFEB A RS AE B
BRAREZENEE([ZEER
Bz EREBkBES @ 81
ARE] -~ EAIZEWNB R T S ER
ZIREERZEMNRITES : (i)A
Aa) s BB ARSI SIREE
BRAMERITES - BIEBIEH
1TES (i) ANEEEAKE AR
ERIFEEEE 2 EE SRR
HPER (v AEERERZREE
BAMES : (vAEBIMKE
RIS ERZIRE TR 2 ERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - FEFE+#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

35.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@)

Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group (excluding options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group) must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at the date of adoption of
the Scheme. The limit on the number of the
Company’s shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of
the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
The total number of the Company’s shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each grantee (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the Scheme or
other schemes of the Group in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant must not exceed
1% of the Company’s shares in issue at the date
of grant unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

In accordance with the terms of the Scheme,
share options of the Company issued vest at the
date of grant.

At 31 December 2007, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was
25,922,000 (2006: 31,222,000), representing
3.09% (2006: 3.75%) of the shares of the
Company in issue on that date.

35. BB =)

@

EAREEELBRETR(E)

AR B 8 R AR B A E AT
AR TROZBEBRE(CT
BEREZ 8 RARE TR
SR RRE R BERERAE)
BEATE T Al # AT 2 AR B M) A8
2 AR BBBARRNERNZ
FHEIR B BTN 10% - ARE
Zat 8 R AKBEAEME BIRE
ERHHRTEREFTEZESL
BRAEEITEM A RITZARAIR
MEBEARE - TEHEBARF T
BEBTRN30% - RBERHHA
HIEEA+ @A SR - FiREZ
R AEBEE A E SR TE
ARAZEBABRE(BREDITE
RHRITEZ BEBBRAE) BITE
BT R FEITZARRRDE
- TEEBAARNELBHE
BITBRD1% > RIFBARRBE
RBERAZHE - RIER ©

REBZA B2 65K - NRRIAEST
ZEEBREREL PRS-

R—ZTZLE+-_F=+—8 -
BEZTEE R B M ERITE
ZEBEEREYR KRG EA
25,922,000 % (Z T T X F -
31,222,000%) * HER AR AR
B A2 BT 3.09% (=TT X
F:3.75%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - F =

35. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(a) Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company (continued)
A summary of the movements of the share options
under the Scheme for the year is as follows:

BARERAR L

35. BB =)

Balance at 1 January 2006 RZEERF
—R—Rz#&
Exercised during the year (Note) PERTTE(HE )
Reclassifications BHAE
Balance at 31 December 2006 and = R=ZERE
1 January 2007 +-R=1—
k= gitﬁ
_H H Zu\ﬂﬁ%
Exercised during the year (Note) RERTTE ()
Reclassifications EXi
Balance at 31 December 2007 RZZEZ+5+=RA
=+—Rz&H%

Note:

The share options were granted on 11 October 2002 at
an exercise price of HK$3.74 per share. These options are
exercisable during the period from 15 October 2002 to 2 July
2012.

During the year, options to subscribe for 5,300,000
shares in the Company at HK$3.74 per share were
exercised. The weighted average closing prices
of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately
before the exercise date of 18 May 2007 was
HK$33.50.

(b) Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
The 2002 Elec & Eltek Employees’ Share Option
Scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was approved by
the shareholders of EEIC at the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 8 November 2002 and
was adopted and took effect from 12 November
2002 upon fulfillment of all the conditions
precedent as set out in Rule 3 of the 2002
Scheme.

(@ ARAREEELBRETEE)
FAN - HerEIET 2 BEBRES
BT

Granted to Granted to

directors employees

BTEE BFER

29,280,800 7,241,200 36,522,000

(4,258,800) (1,041,200) (5,300,000)

(13,789,000) 13,789,000 -

11,233,000 19,989,000 31,222,000

(2,803,200) (2,496,800) (5,300,000)

3,588,000 (3,588,000) -

12,017,800 13,904,200 25,922,000
B &
REZZZE-F+A+—BRE 2 BB
RERERI74ET - ZEEBEBREATR =

(b)

T F+A+ARE"T——S+A"HH
FIATHE

Al IR EF 37475 T BIE R B
5,300,000 % & A ml fg 0 2 B 5L g
BEERFERNITE - ZARIK/MGR
ERTEEHR_ZS+FRATN
AT AER S B EBZFTAT3R 2 N
YT (B A33.50/ T ©

EEICEE B LEREE
—ZTT= Efﬁﬂkﬁﬁ,\@%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
*gn‘l‘iﬂw_z TFFHENDRZ
ZF+— ﬂ/\Egﬁ%{TZHﬁﬁq‘—r?sU
KﬁﬁéEHCJﬂx%ﬁt/ﬁ WR=ZFF
ZFEEIFRRISE AT A KRG
EREE =TT =F+—A+=H
RBTEERAN R HE 3 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A =1+—HIFFZE

35.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
(continued)

The 2002 Scheme was implemented for the
purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating
talented directors and employees of EEIC to
strive towards long-term performance targets and
allowing the participants to enjoy the results of
EEIC.

The 2002 Scheme, administered by the committee
of directors of EEIC (the “Committee”) as
authorised by EEIC’s directors, is open to full-time
employees and directors of any company within
EEIC and its subsidiaries, the parent group and of
an associated company of EEIC, subject to certain
conditions being satisfied.

The 2002 Scheme entitles the option holders
to exercise their options and subscribe for new
ordinary shares in EEIC either at a “Subscription
Price”, which equals to the average of the last
dealt price of EEIC’s shares for the last 5 market
days immediately preceding the relevant date of
grant, or at a “Discounted Subscription Price”,
whereby the discount shall not exceed 20% of the
Subscription Price as defined earlier.

Options granted at the Subscription Price may be
exercised commencing on a date not earlier than
the first anniversary date of the date of grant and
ending on a date not later than 5 years after the
date of grant. Options granted at the Discounted
Subscription Price may only be exercised
commencing on a date not earlier than the second
anniversary date of the date of grant and ending
on a date not later than 5 years after the date of
grant.

35. BB =)

(b)

EEICEEBLXBRETEI(E)

T FHEZHETENEER
5| - BERHEIEA B ZEEICES
REESNEEREXBEEZ I
E2HEATMREEICEEPTE -

R EIHEEICEFREL
EEICEXZZE&([ZBg)E®E -
AHEEICIE MEA AR LEME R
Al - BARISENEEICHE QTR Z
EREBNERSE  WAFET
fERAFiZ=RIR - TTAIEE ©

ST FF A TEBEER
BAER - UAEREEARE G
H H3 1 7 {8 A 1 B EEICAR 1 & 1%
BEETHHZIREE] iz
NERBEATREREE20%2
[TEREE]  TERSELE
PR Ko FRBBEEICHT &AL -

BRBERL 2BEBRETAT
FREHEHR—BAFEAETE
R B AFATTE 297
ERBERL 2BEBRERTH
TRERELEHRE_BAFERE
NEXEH B R B ARTE -
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35.

Kingboard

Kir '_i ._ll-._i-.'i"i:._

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
(continued)

The duration of the 2002 Scheme is 5 years
and the total number of shares in EEIC that may
be issued shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of EEIC as at the adoption date
or subject to certain conditions being satisfied,
15% of the issued share capital of EEIC as at the
adoption date. The total number of EEIC Shares
issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
number of EEIC Shares in issue from time to time.
The 2002 Scheme has accordingly terminated
in November 2007 without affecting the rights of
holders of any options granted and outstanding
under the 2002 Scheme.

Share options may be accepted within 30 days
from the date of offer upon payment of S$1.00 as
a nominal consideration by the participants, but
the grant of share options do not confer rights on
the option holders to any dividend entitlement or
to vote at any shareholders’ meeting.

A summary of the movements of the share options
under the 2002 Scheme for the year is as follows:

B RS R AR BE
EEFZAS AR

35. BEMEEE =)

(b)

EEICEEBEBRETEI(E)

ZEEFFEIZERARF - A
17 2 EEICRRD B E TS B B IR AN
HHIEEICE ZE/TIRA10% » = fF
B TIRHERE - TMSHBRBRME
HAEEICE Z1TRR AR 15% - BR L H
BRI+ A A SRR 2B
BRE(REEERMRITEZE
SRR ) TR E L R G T &
71 ZEEICRR 1D 428K T{#_ﬂﬂ%
E%’”‘?:IEEICHxT‘ﬁ@%(Z1% -z

ZFHER T LF AR
JJ: RIS FE—TT —FiE
B TFERERITEZE(EEER
B AN ZRER]

BEABEIRERT R E L) B E#EET80H
N A2 8EE S 1.005 ETIES
SKENRE TR - BB
TEW T AR SRR
REFRZIER] o

FA_ZTT_FFEATERER
BZEBHEMT

Granted to Granted to
directors employees
BYES #YER
Balance at 1 January 2006 “ET R F-R—HZ
(Note a) wea(Misra) 4,866,000 6,798,000 11,664,000
Granted during the year (Note b) E(\@W?%ﬁ (FizEo) - 1,020,000 1,020,000
Exercised during the year RERTTE - (9,600) (9,600)
Reclassifications BN (973,200) 973,200 -
Lapsed during the year RERKN - (768,000) (768,000)
Balance at 31 December 2006 and N=FEE+=-A
1 January 2007 =+-BR-ZTtF
—A—Bz# 3,892,800 8,013,600 11,906,400
Exercised during the year RERTE - (780,600) (780,600)
Lapsed during the year RERKN - (438,800) (438,800)
Balance at 31 December 2007 R-_ZEZE+E+=A
=t—HZz2& 3,892,800 6,794,200 10,687,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A =1+—HIFFZE

35. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 35. BEMKRE )

(b) Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC (b) EEICEE@EBREE(E)
(continued)
Notes: B EE -

(@) The interests in share options arise by virtue of (@ ZEEEBRERSRATIRE

(i)

4,055,000 share options accepted by the
directors of the Company and 5,745,000

Ao

U

ZERBETENE-ZZ
EEXNA-+HBEER

share options accepted by the employees REIBEFRAEEEES
of the Group on 24 June 2005, and would 53 5l B 44,055,000 15 K&
entitle the relevant directors and employees 5,745,000 17 18 5¢ B A% 4
to subscribe for shares in EEIC at an adjusted MR - ZSEEBERE
subscription price of US$2.033 per share MTEHAEERES#

after the 1 for 5 bonus issue effected by EEIC
on 13 October 2005 (“Bonus Issue”). The
share options are exercisable in whole or in
part at the staggered manner within 5 option
periods, commencing on 26 November 2006,
26 November 2007, 26 November 2008,
26 November 2009 and 26 March 2010
respectively and all ending on 24 May 2010;
and

150,000 share options accepted by the
independent non-executive directors of EEIC
on 29 September 2005, would entitle the
relevant directors to subscribe for shares
in EEIC at an adjusted subscription price of
US$2.375 per share after the Bonus Issue.
The share options are exercisable in whole
or in part at the staggered manner within 5
option periods, commencing on 5 September

# - REEICKR=ZZH
F+A+=BR—HLREE
HEEITHAT AR B 1T ([ ATAR
BT BRI AR REE
0%2.033% ST RIEEIC
f&tn o BEBEARES BB
ZEERF+—AZtR
A - —ZZ+F+—A
—+XB - ZETNEF
+—A=+XH ZZTZT
hE+—A=+RAR=
T—TF=A=1+ A
E-T-TFHA-FN
B 1F T 8 5 B A A2 A RS
A5 BATE 2 F sk H A &

AN

77

ZE R E N EEICHEIF
HOTEEN_FTTRFN
B =+ LB # #5150,000
NBREEREMRES - %
SEEBRERTEHE
EHRET  RAAREITR
BREHABREESRER
192.3755% TLRARBEEICHR
7 - BEBBRET DB

2006, 5 September 2007, 5 September —TTRFAARA =
2008, 5 September 2009 and 5 July 2010 TELFANARA - —F
respectively and all ending on 4 September ENEABER - — T
2010. NENARBR=Z—F
FLARRRE—_Z-F
FNAMB FRERERE

e AR A D BRAT R 2 38
HERES o

(b) The interests in share options arise by virtue of (0)
1,020,000 share options accepted by the full-
time employees of EEIC and its subsidiaries on 12
December 2006, would entitle the relevant employees
to subscribe for shares in EEIC at a subscription
price of US$2.400 per share. The share options are
exercisable in whole or in part at the staggered manner
within 4 option periods, commencing on 13 November
2008, 13 November 2009, 13 November 2010 and
13 September 2011 respectively and all ending on 12
November 2011.

ZEBEBEREEZENEEICK
HEMBARZBEER-_TTRF
+= A += A £ #1,020,00015 &
SERENER - ZSEEERE
BT ERESET  ZRBESR
24003 T RFBEEICKD © BT
BAHRE TN NE+—A+=
B —ZETAF+—A+=80- =
Z—ZTF+—A+=AKR=F——
FENAT=ARE-_T——F+—
A+ A iEmEELBRESRBA
DEATERHREF IS ©
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35. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 35. BEMKRE )
(b) Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC () EEICEEEEBEREE(E)

(continued)

The average of the closing prices of EEIC’s FR - EEICIRH REZZE1TE
shares quoted on The Singapore Exchange BRI AER 5 BRF I EH R
Securities Trading Limited on the five trading days SHMBRAR MR FHWTE
immediately before the various exercise dates B268ETL(ZTZT/NF : 2.763F
during the year was US$2.68 (2006: US$2.76). JT) ©

The share options were granted on 24 June 2005, EBEERECR_ZEZERF A
29 September 2005 and 12 December 2006. The Z+WmA ZETRFALAZ=TA
estimated fair value of each share option granted AR—ZTERF+_RA+_HE
on those dates were approximately HK$1.58, H oo RizS5 HEIRH 2 &0 BB AT HE
HK$1.55 and HK$2.56 per share respectively. BT A ED RIX ATRKR.58%

7T - 1.658TTK2.56/8TT °

These fair values were calculated using the ZELNTEDNIE=ZEEAE - &
Trinomial Lattice Model. The inputs into the model NAEHEZBEBEWOT :

are as follows:

Share option grant date

BEBRESHAMY
12 December 29 September 24 June

2006 2005 2005
—$PAE PPEF -PPE%
+=A+=R AB=+hR XA=+mA

Share price at grant date Bl HE 2 AR (E US$2.740% 7T US$2.920% 7T US$2.530% 7T
Subscription price RBE US$2.400% 7T  US$2.855E7TF  US$2.44% 7T+
Expected volatility TEHDR IR 36.6% 21.2% 25.4%
Expected life JEEFH 5 yearsE 5 yearstE 5 yearsE
Risk-free rate BRI 3.7% 4.2% 3.7%
Expected dividend yield TR B & 7.5% 7.5% 7.5%

* The original subscription price of the share options * HARETARET  WR=FT
granted on 29 September 2005 and 24 June 2005 FFNAZTNABR-ZTHEF
were adjusted to US$2.375 and US$2.033 respectively NAZ T AR 2 Bk ERE
as a result of the Bonus Issue. ZIRRBEBE D RIAER2.3755%

JCK&2.033% T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z - FEFE+#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

35.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
(continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using
the historical volatility of EEIC’s share price
over the previous five years. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate for the effects of non
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
approximately HK$4,448,000 for the year ended
31 December 2007 (2006: HK$6,717,000) in
relation to the share options granted by EEIC.

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL
The share option scheme of KLHL (the “KLHL
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of
KLHL and the shareholders of the Company on
18 May 2007 and 25 June 2007 respectively.
The KLHL Scheme has been taken effect after
obtaining the approval from the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007.

35. BB =)

(b)

(©

EEICEEBLBRETEI(Z)

TE R IR IZEEICIR BB A A F 2 E
SORIRERE o K FT A BRI
BREZRIEGERIEERE - 17
FERHIRREEEREZMERE o

AEBREBEE-_ZZTLF+=A
= t+—BIFEHREECELEZE
Je FE AR AE FE TR 404,448,000 70 (=
TTNEF ¢ 6,717,000 7)) FZ 48
2 o

EERERESECERESR
BREEBRRRRAARRRED
AR—FEFLFRAATNAR=
BERAFRA T BERNE
EEERE TR 8I([2HE
EiRELEREE]) - REREE
RELEBEEAIN _TTLFL
HANBESHR ETZEGHE
& REEM-
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A =1+—HIFFZE

35.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL
(continued)

The KLHL Scheme would be valid for a period
of ten years. The directors of KLHL may, at its
discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares
in KLHL to eligible participants who contribute to
the long-term growth and profitability of KLHL and
include (i) any employee or proposed employee
(whether full-time or part-time and including any
executive director), consultants or advisers of or to
KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (‘KLHL's
Invested Entity”) in which KLHL and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “KLHL Group”)
holds an equity interest; (ii) any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any
KLHL'’s Invested Entity; (i) any supplier of goods
or services to any member of the KLHL Group or
any KLHL’s Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of
the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity;
(v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
KLHL Group or any KLHL's Invested Entity; and
(vi) any shareholder of any member of the KLHL
Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the
KLHL Group or any KLHL'’s Invested Entity.

The subscription price of KLHL’s share in respect
of any option granted under the KLHL Scheme
must be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares of KLHL as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares of KLHL
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (i)
the nominal value of the shares of KLHL.

35. BEMEEE =)

(©

EEEENREESEABRETE
(#&)

R ERE LR 2 A XA
BTF BEREREESSVHE
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REIREEEEERIZEERIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A =1+—HIFFZE

35.

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL
(continued)

The option may be accepted by a participant within
28 days from the date of the offer for the grant of
the option upon the payment of a consideration
of HK$1. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by
the directors of KLHL to each grantee, and in the
absence of such determination, from the date
upon which the offer for the grant of the option
is accepted but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. The directors of KLHL may, at their
absolute discretion, fix any minimum period for
which an option must be held, any performance
targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the options
can be exercised upon the grant of an option to a
participant.

The total number of shares of KLHL which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the KLHL Scheme and any other
share option scheme of KLHL (excluding, for this
purpose, options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of
KLHL in issue as at the date of approval of the
KLHL Scheme.

The maximum number of shares of KLHL which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
KLHL Scheme and any other share option scheme
of KLHL must not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of KLHL from time to time.

35. BB =)

(©
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SEALTARERZREERER
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R EEEIRE BT 8 &
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ETEEEREEREREER
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HEIFAREMEARTTERBFT
82 BB TR A] T 31T
ZEEEERROEE  RETE
HBREEERTRE 2 EEITRA
30% °
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35.

36.

Kingboard

Kingboard

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c) Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL
(continued)
The total number of shares of KLHL issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the share capital of KLHL then
in issue unless approved by the shareholders of
KLHL and the Company in general meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, no
share option was granted pursuant to the KLHL
Scheme.

WARRANTS

At an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 30 September 2004, a bonus issue of warrants
to the shareholders of the Company (“Warrants”), in the
proportion of one Warrant for every ten shares held in
the share capital of the Company, was proposed and
approved. Consequently, 65,447,638 Warrants were
issued, conferring rights to the holders of the Warrants
until 31 December 2006 to subscribe for up to an
aggregate of 65,447,638 shares at a fixed subscription
price of HK$20 per share, representing an aggregate
subscription price of HK$1,308,952,760.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, 42,731,885
new shares were issued on exercise of the Warrants and
all of the remaining Warrants were expired.

35.

36.

B RS R AR BE
EEFZAS AR

ExiBE 2

© BERERESELERETS
(&)
REA+—EABRRSLEAL

RHzELBRE(BEETRER
RNTEBREBRE) BITEME %
TRETERITZRBRERRN A
g TEEEREEEREREH
TRAZ1% » BRIFEEERER
RARRZBRINBERAE AR
1ERlEm ©

HE-FFLF+-A=+—BL
FE - WERRREEERELE
B BUI B S P AR -

SRR S
RZZBZMFENA=+THRITZARFR
RERIAE L ARREZREESRAELAR
AR A AR AR 10 JE Bl — 1 77 ME%th
Bl AR AR FITALR R EE (R

EE]) > WESHE - Bt - A2 EE%%
1765,447,6381) RIRHEE - HisA AR
TN -_ZBEZRNF+_A=F+—HBZ
Al - REBROBTZEEREE  RER
%4 $£65,447,638/% 11D - MERREE
4 #£1,308,952,76058 7T,

BE_ZEXF+_A=+—HLEFE
R 17 R RERE T B 25 1742,731,885 8%
B - 2 EFIRRBIRELC BIE -
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37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. WiEMELT
(@ In July 2007, the Group acquired 60% equity (@) RZZEZLFL A AEEWEH
interest in F[ZHEBEEIRBRRAF], a company BHEEKERER AR (ZARE
principally engaged in mining of coal, for a cash ENEREER) 260%HE - R
consideration of approximately HK$365,764,000. & R 1B 4 5365,764,0007 7T © It
This transaction has been reflected as purchases BRXHRMABEEENBE M
of assets and liabilities rather than as a business WIEHETEE P o
combination.

The net assets acquired in the transaction are as WIERSFEAZBEFENT :

follows:

HK$’'000
FHIT
Net assets acquired: BABEFHE :
Properties, plant and equipment Wz - BB MR E 17,959
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIE 3,549
Intangible asset — mining right A E — R 695,847
Trade and other receivables and prepayments 2 5 [ H i FEUL BR ZX 12
TR 24,024
Bank balances and cash RITRABR RIS 61,576
Trade and other payables 5 REMEMIRR (24,117)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (169,232)
Minority interests DERRE R (243,842)
Total consideration satisfied by cash LIRS 2 R (E 365,764
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of BEEE—RWNEBARIZEE
assets and liabilities through purchase FEBRKEBELZ
of a subsidiary: WEmt 55
Cash consideration paid BEeRE 365,764
Bank balances and cash acquired BARTEHREIA S (61,576)

HEBBE -RKMBARZ
BEENABRUEBHEARZ
Re kR eFEBEBRLFE 304,188

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of assets and
liabilities through purchase of a subsidiary
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37. ACAQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. WFEMEBLAT =)

(b) In April 2007, the Group acquired 51% equity (o) “EELENA - REEWEITIA
interest in JIFAE R EELBBHR AT, a company ARUBBERAR(ZARETE
principally engaged in manufacture of plastic NFEEB R TTH) 2 51% % -
components, for a cash consideration of 04 B 420,643,000 7T ° It
approximately HK$20,643,000. This acquisition RIS AR B 2 5 HASI AR o URBEFT
has been accounted for by the acquisition method B 2 B /238,000/8 7T ©

of accounting. The amount of goodwill arising
as a result of the acquisition was approximately

HK$238,000.
The net assets acquired in the acquisition, and the WEEFTRE A 2 BEFEKTE
goodwill arising, are as follows: EZEENT

Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value

WUEB A RS BFET
ZIEHERATE
HK$’000
FAT

Net assets acquired: BAEEFHE :

Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB N&EE 37,153

Prepaid lease payments JENFERIE 2,076

Inventories T8 140

Trade and other receivables and prepayments 22 5 Jz H i FE U BR 70 )2

TESFRIE 1,212
Bank balances and cash IRITEHREIRE 363
Trade and other payables Z 5 M EAE IR (934)
40,010

Minority interests DY R = (19,605)
Goodwill on acquisition IWREFTEE 2 S8 238
Total consideration satisfied by cash MRSz 2R E 20,643
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEA 2B M 5

Cash consideration paid BENBReRE 20,643

Bank balances and cash acquired BARITHER KRS (363)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents WEEB B AR 2 & &

in respect of the acquisition of subsidiary BeEEERRLFE 20,280
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37.

Kingboard

Kingboa

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries is attributable to the anticipated
profitability of the distribution of the Group’s
products from the combination.

The subsidiaries acquired in 2007 contributed
revenue of approximately HK$23,186,000 and
profit of approximately HK$2,169,000 to the
Group during the period from date of acquisition
to 31 December 2007.

If the acquisition had been completed on
1 January 2007, total group’s revenue for
the year would have been approximately
HK$20,027,934,000, and profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$3,471,749,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2007, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

ra

B RS R AR
EEF A=+ AILEE

37.

WeRRBR B 2% ()

()

(%)
WENBRRMELZHEBERES
PR SHASBE R 2 AT BT 5L
jj ]

RZZS tiﬂﬁzﬁ%ﬂﬁ% a8
WEARREE ST +F+= A
=T RIS AEEE TS
Bt 49 /523,186,000/8 L R ¥ A& E
s M B 8 492,169,000/ 7T °

WBBER =—ZZ+F—F—H%
B AFEEEBEETBOA
20,027,934,000% 7T + ANF & A
15 #9 % 3,471,749,0007%8 7T ° &
BRMEEFBA A - W ARREE
WHER-_ZZ+tF—A—H=EK
BAREEERAER S HEBRE
EEE  TTRERRREEZZTE
I
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37. ACAQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. WFEMEBAT =)

(© In 2006, the Group acquired 80% equity interest (©) RZZBZERF  AEBREAE
in Smark Foundate (H.K.) Limited, a company and (BB)BRAT(ZAE REWS
its subsidiaries principally engaged in manufacture NRAE BN FRIEENRIGREER) 2
of PCBs, for a consideration of HK$80,000,000. 80% A% #& - X & /& 80,000,000 /&
This acquisition has been accounted for by the TC o MIBUREELAUEE € 513ETIER -
acquisition method of accounting. The amount of W B AT EE A 2 P B 4 548,621,000
goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was BIT ©

approximately HK$48,621,000.

The net assets acquired in the acquisition, and the WHEFTIE A 2 BEFERFEEZ
goodwill arising, are as follows: RN

Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination
and fair value

AL g
ZIEEERATFE
HK$’000
FAT
Net assets acquired: BAEEFHE :
Properties, plant and equipment Y% BREMEE 39,204
Prepaid lease payments FEFEE A 6,128
Inventories T8 20,943
Trade and other receivables and Z 5 R EABRBERF &
prepayments TERTFIE 72,228
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIIRE 10,253
Trade and other payables B R EMEMIRR (96,544)
Taxation payable FESTE IR (116)
Bank borrowings RITEE (12,872)
39,224
Minority interests DB R (7,845)
Goodwill on acquisition WHEPTE A 2 B 48,621
Total consideration satisfied by cash URES 22K E 80,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEA 2B M F5a
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 80,000
Bank balances and cash acquired BARTHEB LIRS (10,253)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in WHEHB AR 2B e &
respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries ReSEEHRLFE 69,747
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37. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. UWBBMIEBLAE)(#)
© (continued) © (#)

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of WEMB AR TEEZBBRE S
subsidiaries is attributable to the anticipated PrirnEAREEER B BRI
profitability of the distribution of the Group’s BEMR) 2 TEET & FIRE ) ©
products (i.e. PCBs) from the combination.
The subsidiaries acquired in 2006 contributed R-IEENFKREZHEAT B
revenue of approximately HK$201,175,000 and WERHEE —_TTF+ -4
profit of approximately HK$2,745,000 to the =t B E AR EELEES
Group during the period from date of acquisition Bi 49 £201,175,00078 7T I 5 AN &
to 31 December 2006. &5 F) B g 492,745,000 T °
If the acquisition had been completed on HMEER—_EENF—HA—H=
1 January 2006, total group’s revenue for Ko AFEEBESEEBNS
the year would have been approximately 17,017,427,000/8 7T + AN 4F &35 7l
HK$17,017,427,000, and profit for the year would ¥ 49 57,390,219,00078 7T ° =&
have been approximately HK$7,390,219,000. The BRUEMESEZE W AERRERE
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes WEEN—_ZETNF—HA—HZK
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue BAREEERAERZ EEE LK
and results of operations of the Group that actually BEE S T EARKEE ZTE
have been achieved had the acquisition been Al o
completed on 1 January 2006, nor is intended to
be a projection of future results.
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38. COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but

38. i

2007
—ETLF

HK$°000
FET

KEME - BE &

2006
e

HK$’000
TAT

not provided in the consolidated FEMERTA
financial statements in respect of BRRGEPEHRER
acquisition of properties, plant EH B 2 BT H
and equipment 943,580 382,439
Capital expenditure authorised but TMUEEE  BE K
not contracted for in respect of HEMEHEBRRETH
acquisition of properties, plant L ERZH
and equipment - 44,413
943,580 426,852
39. OPERATING LEASES 39. #EMWEH
2007 2006
—Z=Z=LF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FBT
The Group as lessee: A E#A
Lease payments charged to the FRBEEHRE R ETINR
consolidated income statement Z AR
during the year
— for premises — 15,738 13,908
— for plant and machinery — B M e 722 450
16,460 14,358

RIBAREBRIZL2BY - BB
Z B REEREREE -

Under the leases entered into by the Group, all lease
payments are fixed and predetermined.

Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited 1 67
T FFR BRLIER



Kingboard |

Kingboarc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

39. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 39. #EEHEH =)
At the balance sheet date, the Group’s future lease REER  AEBRBETARMEZEEH
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are MR BB Y2 BONFTBER TSRS
payable as follows: i -
Premises Plant and machinery
nE RER#®
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZB2LE et NS ZBPLE —TTR
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET TR FHET THET
Within one year R—ER 7,565 14,186 20 617
After one year but not later ~ R—EEBRTER
than five years 6,287 8,632 30 -
After five years RAOfF& 26,315 24,310 66 -

40,167 47,128 116 617

2007 2006
—ETLFE ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
The Group as lessor: BAKE LA :
Rental income credited to the RERGT ALRE WZHTR
consolidated income statement ZHASWA - BN
during the year, net of outgoing 3 $5#9157,00078 7T
amount of approximately (Z2ZREF
HK$157,000 (2006: HK$120,000) 120,000/%7T) 30,184 5,894
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39.

40.

OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties are rented to
outside parties for periods up to seven years at fixed
predetermined amounts. At the balance sheet date,
the Group had contracted with tenants to receive the
following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year R—FR

After one year but not later than R—FEER
five years

After five years REF%

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which was registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) which was established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group and are invested in funds under the control of
independent trustees. Employees who were members of
the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme are members of both the ORSO Scheme and
the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after December 2000 are required to join the
MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the pension scheme is to make the required
contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and
the state-sponsored pension schemes of approximately
HK$53,896,000 (2006: HK$37,513,000) are charged to
the consolidated income statement.

39.

40.

#wEHEN )

AEEZ RENEHRARET 2B
SMFHIAAL  BHRRALEF W
A AKBCEAFSITIALN  ARE
RN 2 BABFL LR -

2007 2006
—EBEE  —TIAA
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHIT
45,281 4,249
37,885 7,645
2,420 =
85,586 11,894
B FRFIETE

A& E [ Iy 2 00— TRAR IR B SR KA 81 16k
I EEM 2 T BR R &) (B R IRET S ])
RRERHIERTEEGIR_ZTTF
ToARZZatEAEETE([RES
FtEl)) - ZER A EERAREZEE
DA YRERBHBIEFRAZESNZ
BEE - RKIBES B ZATE 2 B
BARGEIZEER - RESKABERARG S
RBREFEIZKE  MABR=-FZTT
FroAZEMARKEZ BB LA
EEA R

TEKERRZEERTERTERFZE
RERAKBAFTEKE - ZFHMBEAR
ARFHEHZX B DR ARKE
g UXNBRREN - AEBE RN S
BT 2 E—BERFAFHRR -

MR RG] - BB ERERE D
RIRTR MBI 2T 2 54 558,896,000
BT (ZZT /N4 ¢ 37,513,00087T) © I
Bira ks RPNk -
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41.

OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2007 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary
HELEER

Fogang Kingboard Industry Ltd.
BRZEEXARAA

Guangzhou Chung Shun
Century Fibre Glass Co., Ltd.
ENBREtERAERAR

Jamplan (BVI) Limited

King Board (Panyu) Chemical
Co., Ltd.
REEBNIERAA

Kingboard (Fogang) Insulated
Material Company Limited
R (M) REMTHERAR

Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates
Co. Limited
R (B BERERAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
30 e
BRRERMY

PRC'
P

PRC'
P

British Virgin Islands*
ABRLEE
PRC!

R

PRC'
E

PRC'
P

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRERE

k% /imas

RMB878,100,000
AR 878,100,0007C

US$44,595,000
44,595,000% T

US$1,000
1,000%7T
HK$100,000,000

100,000,000/ 7T

US$6,115,000
6,115,000% T

US$29,466,000
29,466,000 T

e UNSES S0 PN

AAREEMBARR-TTLF+=A
=+ —BZ BT :

Proportion
the owners

of
hip

interest held
by the Group
FRERE

Hanm
2007

46.47"

74.11

100"

100

7417

74.11

2006

72.50

100*

100

72.50

72.50

Principal activities

FRRE

Manufacture and
distribution of copper foll
BERDHIE

Manufacture and
distribution of glass yarn
RERDHREY

Investment holding

RAZR

Manufacture and
distribution of chemicals
HERAHEEIER

Manufacture and
distribution of bleached
kraft paper

BERAHRANEL

Manufacture and
distribution of laminates
HERAERRER
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41.

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Kingboard (Fogang) Paper
Laminates Co. Ltd.

RE(BHREEHRARLA

Kingboard (Hebei) Cokechem
Co. Ltd.
BEOTIE) S ERAR

Kingboard (Hebei) Chemical
Co. Limited
BRI IRRAR

Kingboard Natural Gas
Chemical (Chong Qing)
Limited

BERARILI(ER)
BRRA

Heng Yang Kingboard Chemical
Co., Ltd.
EERE L ITERAR

Kingboard (Lianzhou) Fibre
Glass Co. Limited
RE(EM) JRGABRAR

Kingboard (Lianzhou) Copper
Foil Limited

BEGEN)WEERAR

Place of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/
and operation
BT,

ERRERME

registered capital
BRTRERE
%/ EmES

PRC US$17,936,546
e 17,936 546571
PRC' RMB96,000,000
R AR 96,000,00070
PRC! RMB179,000,000
R AR H8179,000,0007%
PRC US$18,500,000
el 18,500,00057T
PRC HK$30,000,000
mE 30,000,000 7
PRC! US$13,700,000
Sl 13,700,000% 7%
PRC US$27,000,000
el 27,000,000 7

FLAFERMBLFFER )

Proportion of

the ownership

interest held

by the Group
FRERH

2007

74.77

100

100

100

100

74.17

L 140

46.47"

100

100

100

100

72.50

45,06

Principal activities

IERE

Manufacture and
distribution of laminates

BERD HERER

Manufacture and
distribution of coke
HERDEER

Manufacture and
distribution of chemicals
HERN L IER

Manufacture and

distribution of methanol
HERDHETE

Manufacture and
distribution of
caustic soda

BER D G

Manufacture and
distribution of glass fabric

Manufacture and
distribution of copper foil
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41.

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Kingboard (Panyu Nansha)
Petrochemical Company
Limited

BE(EBmY)AILERAR

Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings
Limited

Kingboard Investments Limited
RERERRAR

Kingboard Laminates Holdings
Limited
BERERERER AR

Kingboard Copper Foil (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Limited

BERECRP R RE)
BRAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
BT,
BRRERMN

PRC’
E

Bermuda*

BRE

Hong Kong?
B

Cayman Islands?

RERS!

Macau
R

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRERE
%/ EmES

RMB250,000,000
AK&250,000,0007T

1US$72,250,000
72,250,000% 7

HK$8,000
8,000 7

HK$300,000,000

300,000,000/

MOP100,000
RP9%100,0007T

FLAFERMBLFFER )

Proportion
the owners

of
hip

interest held

by the Group
FRERH

L 140
2007

74.77

46.47"

100

74.17

46.47"

45.06

100

72.50

45,06

Principal activities

IERE

Manufacture and
distribution of chemicals

RERDHIIER

Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

RERR
Investment holding

BALR

Distribution of copper foil
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41.
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

FLAFERMBLFFER )

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
BT,
BRRERMN

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRERE
%/ EmES

Proportion
the owners

of
hip

interest held

by the Group
FRERH

L 140
2007

Principal activities

IERE

Kingboard Laminates (Macao Macau MOP100,000 74.77 72.50  Distribution of laminates

Commercial Offshore) Limited & JRP100,0007 DHEAER
RERERORPREREERE)

BRAF
Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) PRC HK$189,491,052 74.17 7250  Manufacture and

Co, Ltd. P 189,491,052/ 7T distrioution of laminates
IFRERERERAT BERHEERER
Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) PRC! 15$32,010,000 74.77 7250  Manufacture and

Co., Ltd. =il 32,010,000% 7T distribution of laminates
RERER(RIL)ERAT BERAHERER
Kingboard Laminates (Shaoguan) PRC! RMB7,490,000 74.77 7250  Manufacture and

Co. Ltd. el ARE7 490,000t distribution of laminates
RERER(RE)ERAR HERDEEHER
Kunshan Yattao Chemical PRC! US$12,500,000 74.77 72.50  Manufacture and

Co., Ltd. e 12,500,000%7T distribution of laminates
RIWAELIBRAR SERHHERER
Techwise Circuits Company Hong Kong* HK$4,000,000 0 90 Investment holding

Limited Bt 4,000,000% 7 REEKR
HEREBRAR
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. F2ABXEMMELARHE =)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid the ownership
registration share capital/ interest held
and operation registered capital by the Group
Name of subsidiary ML BRITRME FRERE Principal activities
MELTER BRRERMN %/ EmES EaLH TERE
2007
Techwise Shirai (Fogang) Circuits PRC HK$135,000,000 63 63 Manufacture and
Limited T 135,000,000 T distribution of PCBs
HEBH(BE) ERERAT BUE R A HENRIREAR
Elec & Eltek International Bermuda/Hong Kong# ~ HK$122,467,240 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited BEE/ B 122,467 240757 REER
KL ERRERERAT
Elec & Eltek Display Technology PRC? US$14,700,000 9 88  Manufacture and sales
(Guangzhou) Company Limited R 14,700,000%7T of LCDs
KHRE(BM)ERSERAR HEREERRBETF
Avatex (Guangzhou) Communication ~ PRC? US$5,400,000 89.67 98  Manufacture of magnetic
Company Limited alziM 5,400,000% T products
FER(BM)BABRAR WEHEER
Elec & Eltek International Singapore? 1JS$98,656,000 70.77 70.89  Investment holding
Company Limited g 98,656,000 T RERR
KL EEEERAR]
Kai Ping Elec & Eltek Company PRC? US$27,850,000 67.23 67.35  Manufacture and
Limited R 27,850,000 distribution of PCBs
RATKFZESFERAR BUE R 7 SHENRIERBER
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 - FEFE+#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41.
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELRER

Kaiping Elec & Eltek No.2
Company Limited
RTRFIZEEFE_ERAA

Kaiping Elec & Eltek No.3
Company Limited
ATRNZEE FE=ARAA

Kaiping Elec & Eltek No.5
Company Limited
FATKHZEEFERERARA

Elec & Eltek (Guangzhou)
Electronic Company Limited

ERRE(RN) BT RRAR

Elec & Eltek (Guangzhou)
Technology Company Limited
RRE(BM) EFHRBRAT

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
BT,
BRRERMN

PRC?
e

PRC:
e

PRC?
o

PRC?
e

PRC:
Ee

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRERE
%/ EmES

US$21,670,000

21,670,000% T

1US$86,960,000
86,960,000% T

1US$30,075,100
30,075,100% 7T

US$70,596,000
70,596,000 7C

US$6,000,000
6,000,000

FLAFERMBLFFER )

Proportion

of

the ownership

interest held

by the Group
FRERH

L 140
2007

67.23

67.23

69.35

69.35

67.55

67.35

69.47

69.47

Principal activities

IERE

Manufacture and
distribution of PCBs
BER D HEORIRHER

Manufacture and
distribution of PCBs
BER A HERIEH R

Manufacture and
distribution of PCBs
BER D ORI R

Manufacture and
distribution of PCBs
BER D HEORIRHE R

Research and development,
manufacture and
distribution of PCBs

HERFE  SERAH#
EDRREEAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 &2 —EF+F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. F2ABXEMMELARHE =)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid the ownership
registration share capital/ interest held
and operation registered capital by the Group
Name of subsidiary HMmmi/ ERTREE FEEEE Principal activities
MELTER BRRERMN %/ EmES EaLH TERE
2007
Guangzhou Elec & Eltek Microvia PRC? 1S$24,800,000 69.35 69.47  Manufacture and
Technology Limited A2 24.800,000%7T distrioution of PCBs
BMKNZE RN R ERAA BUE R A HENRIREAR
Guangzhou Elec & Eltek High PRC? 1JS$25,000,000 69.35 69.47  Manufacture and
Density Interconnect Technology & Bi2 25,000,000 7T distribution of PCBs
No. 1 Company Limited BER A HERIEH R
BMENZEREEENRE -
BRAR
Elec & Eltek (Thailand) Limited Thailand Baht780,000,000 70.77 7089  Manufacture and
R 780,000,003 ¢k distribution of PCBs
BHER D HEDRIREER
Pacific Insulating Material Thailand Baht650,000,000 70.77 7089 Manufacture and
(Thailand) Limited B 650,000,000%8% distrioution of PCB
raw materials
BUER A HENRIREAR
RitH
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 # 2 - FEFE+#+_-A=+—HIFFZF

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41.

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/
and operation registered capital

Name of subsidiary 10 e ERTRAR
HEAFER BiRERHE k& EMEE

Shenzhen Pacific Insulating PRC? RMB67,491,458
Material Co., Ltd. e NEH67,491,4587

AP BEHHBRAT

Kaiping Pacific Insulating Material PRC 1S$15,000,000
Company Limited e 15,000,00005 T

FTPATHBEN AR

The Company directly holds the interest in Jamplan (BVI) Limited.
The Company’s interest in all other subsidiaries is held indirectly
through Jamplan (BVI) Limited.

# These are investment holding companies which have no specific
principal place of operation.

+ These companies were non wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited.

1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.

2 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures.

& Included treasury shares of US$896,000.

FLAFERMBLFFER )

Proportion of

the ownership

interest held

by the Group
FRERH

2007

70.77

Hanm
2006
N

70.89

Principal activities

IERE

Manufacture and
distribution of PCB
raw materials

BHER D HENRIREAR
RATHL

Manufacture and
distribution of high-end
PCB raw materials

BERDHRBERISHR
RAH

AAr|E#EAFAJamplan (BVI) Limited .2 ##
% o NARIRFTE E MM E R R 2 595 R
Jamplan (BVI) Limited@#35 5 -

IERRERBR AR WENEZ EE2ELEH

2o

ZERAREERERIERAR AR ZE2E

BEKBAR -

WERRTIANEBE (A BT -

WEARTIARIEER EREHAEHBK

X o

BIEETFR(896,000F T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4248 B 1§ R R HisT
For the year ended 31 December 2007 #Z —EF+F+ - HA=1+—HIFFZE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. F2ARXEMMELATRHE =)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company RV ARARESTRAAETIEZELRE
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, BEEENEEZARNTIMNB AT « NAF
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. EERAVNEHMHMB AR 2B BER
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion TE
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at BB A T E RS RS B B T ] B
the end of the year. S o
42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BREAEES
The Group entered into the following significant REFHEBBAEATEFANETIEAR
transactions with related parties during the year: ST
2007 2006
—BELF —EER
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHT T
Sales of goods to a minority m—REfB AR Z
shareholder of a subsidiary DRI ES R 556,420 486,661
Purchase of goods from a minority m—EB AR Z
shareholder of a subsidiary DEREREE S R 123,218 110,683
Drilling service provided by a minority —MEMB AR Z D&
shareholder of a subsidiary A& R IR FLAR TS 27,008 18,693
Purchase of goods from an associate A —RIEt%& A B & S 450,296 178,896
Sales of goods to an associate m—EEE A RHES M 66,412 9,941
Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments B 5 Ko H b e Y BR 2% K T8 5 FRO0E 6 1 FE UK
are amount due from a minority shareholder of a B /B A 74 B IR B SN IE 49155,408,000/% 7T
subsidiary of approximately HK$155,408,000 (2006: (ZFZ N4 : 143,098,000/87T) « AREE
HK$143,098,000). The Group allows credit periods of MABEEATEE VZEEREREE 2120
up to 120 days, depending on the products sold, to its H - SEisEZESTE ©
related parties.
1 78 Annual Report 2007 Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
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42,

43.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Included in trade and other payables was an amount due
to an associate of approximately HK$38,392,000 (2007:
nil) as at 31 December 2006. The related party offers
credit periods of up to 120 days to the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

2 AR
BRI
RT3

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Subsequent to 31 December 2007, the Group sold its
entire holding of 740,518,325 ordinary shares in G-Prop,
an associate of the Company, to an independent third
party namely Mass Rise Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, at a
consideration of approximately HK$120,777,000.

42,

43.

BRAEALXH2)

R-ZERE+-_A=+—0 BHKRE
b & -1 BR B FE FE 5 — R HSE &8 R R ZRIE LD
38,392,000 (=T tF : )8F) A
BEATRAEERE 2 EEHEERE120
E| °

TEEEAEHS
FA - BERHEMETEEBASZHEM
™

2007 2006
—STtF —ETNRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&x THETT
209,851 189,711
1,735 1,415
2,776 5,100
214,362 196,226

EERIBTRABRZHERTMEES
ZRERETRARTZBERETE -

BHEA®EHS
—EELE+-F=+—H%  A%EE
A 48 X {8 49 120,777,000 7 7T #5 &= & A
REZCERE(RRQRRAIZHE AR B
740,518,325 R E MR EHBELRBIE=7
EABEEEANHEEEERENBERR -
ESBRAH -
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Financial Summary

R

Results

ES: |

Revenue

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Equity holders

of the Company
Minority interests

Assets and liabilities

BERAE

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Equity component of share

option reserve of
a subsidiary
Minority interests

CEL

BRI AR
FSBiRX

ARE A

FEhnE :
RRAHER
BEA
DHBCR

BEMRE
RBlERE

ARBERFAA
FE G
—HMELRES
ARG
ez
LYRCR R

Kingboard

Year ended 31 December
BE+T_A=1+—HLEE

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
“2T=F -TIME —TTEF "TTAE ZPBLE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FHET FETT FHEIT FHET TET
4435503 7,082,390 13,098,354 16,773,348 20,025,112
550,094 1,257,497 1,788,802 7,596,154 3,717,184
(37,601)  (61,184)  (139,970)  (240,435)  (245,030)
502,393 1,196,313 1,648,832 7,355,719 3,472,154
472,366 1,103,845 1435809 7,088,015 2,778,321
50,027 92468 213,023 287,704 693,833
502,393 1,196,313 1,648,832 7,355,719 3,472,154

At 31 December

®»+=R=+—H

2004 2005 2006 2007

E=F —TT@EF _—TTHF NE ZEBEE
‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TR FET
7,625,277 16,489,146 19,360,822 28,121,051 34,941,986
(3,421,807) (9,345,642) (9,714,079) (9,108,130) (12,715,190)
4,203,470 7,143,504 9,646,743 19,012,921 22,226,796
3,664,655 5,505,064 8,232,167 15,958,925 18,277,703
= = 3,047 9,764 12,862

648,815 1,638,440 1,411,629 3,044,232 3,936,231
4,203,470 7,143,504 9,646,743 19,012,921 22,226,796
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